


CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and

careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no

assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock EExchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from

or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the

omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hAR A B R

RESULTS

Turnover

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
Total assets

Total liabilities

Total assets less total
liabilities

Non-controlling interests

Equity attributable to

owners of the Company
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1,412,542 1,072,045 903,974 749,481
351,493 937,706 196,614 151,957
(68,411) (43,002) (29,512) (26,679)
983,082 194,704 167,102 125,278
129,560 75,998 100,844 53,149
153,522 118,706 66,258 72,129
983,082 194,704 167,102 125,278

2,676,583 2,277,791 1,855,663 1,657,676

(653,772)  (587,576)  (455,921)  (379,060)

2,022,811 1,690,215 1,399,742 1,278,616

(548,174)  (397,686)  (312,213)  (250,283)
1,474,637 1,292,529 1,087,529 1,028,333
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), I hereby
present the report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year under review, the Group focused on
strengthening the development of its core businesses. In line
with market demand and development, the Group’s manufacture
and sale of electronic fire equipment business concentrated on
product innovation and quality. During the year, the Group’s self-
developed and manufactured fire detection and alarm products
were honored with an industry-recognised award for products
with technical innovation. The Group kept abreast of the impact
of the guidance of the new fire safety standards on products and
development of the fire safety industry, and stepped up training
throughout the operation stages of R&D, production, sales and
aftersales service to ensure strict compliance with the guidance
of the new fire safety standards, with a view to laying a solid

foundation for business development.

For the tourism development business, the Group’s operation of
environmental bus services in Hengshan Mountain scenic area
maintained a high utilization level. Riding on the stable increase
in tourists in Hengshan Mountain scenic area, the operation

contributes reliable and steady profit and cash flow to the Group.

To complement the future development of the Group, in
February 2017, the Group completed the placing of new H
shares under general mandate, with net proceeds from the
placing amounting to approximately RMB122.2 million, which
will be utilized in funding for potential acquisitions and/or
development of new businesses. In September 2017, the Company
contributed RMB66.50 million to establish Beida Jade Bird
Tongling Semiconductor Industry Investment Fund (Limited
Partnership) (“Tongling Investment Fund”), accounting for 19%
of its equity interest. The investment scope of the fund is to target
semiconductor industry chain projects in the city of Tongling,

Anhui province.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s business
recorded stable growth and posted a profit attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately RMB170.7 million
(2016: RMB129.6 million), representing an increase of 31.7%
over last year. Earnings per share for the year amounted to
approximately RMB12.5 cents (2016: RMB10.5 cents).

Looking forward to 2018, in order to achieve the operation
objective of stable growth for the manufacture and sale of
electronic fire equipment business, the Group will primarily focus
on the perfection and reform of the existing system as a whole,
implement stringent control over product quality and emphasize
the improvement of product structure. The Group will also give
priority to technical innovation and invest in the enhancement
of equipment for the R&D team to attract outstanding talents
in different fields, thereby ensuring the improvement of
product quality for the Company. With a view to refining market
structure, the Group will advise and assist dealers to assemble
a talented team, while improving product marketing and
promotion through, among other methods, advertisements on
e-commerce platforms and new media channels. For the tourism
development business, the Group anticipates that number of
tourists will remain stable due to intensive promotion by the
Nanyue District Government for Nanyue Hengshan Mountain
scenic area. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to identify
promising investment opportunities so as to expand and diversify
the investment holding business portfolio of the Group, thereby

creating additional value for the shareholders of the Company.

On behalf to the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to
extend my heartfelt gratitude to the shareholders and partners
of the Company for their unfaltering support and every staff
member of the Group for their efforts and devotion at work in the

past year.

Ni Jinlei

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
20 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company, through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in
research, development, manufacture, marketing, contract work
and sale of electronic fire equipment, development of travel and

leisure businesses as well as investment holding.

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment

The Group focused on research, development, manufacture,
marketing and sale of comprehensive and integrated fire safety
solution, including fire automatic alarm and control linkage
system, electrical fire monitoring system, automatic gas fire
extinguishing system and gas detection monitoring system. The
Group mainly distributes its fire safety products through dealers
across the region in the PRC. Its main production facilities are
located in Hebei, Beijing and Sichuan, the PRC.

During the year, the Group increased investment in the new
production lines of electrical fire safety products and advanced
equipment to meet the steady needs of the market. The Group
also focused on research and development of new series of fire
power monitoring products with higher product performance
and stability. In 2017, the Group won the honorary qualification
of “Famous Brand Product of Hebei Province” and “Top Ten

Alarm Brands”.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
1 February 2013 and 17 November 2014 and the circular of the
Company dated 27 February 2013 on the proposed spin-off of
Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Company Limited
(“Jade Bird Fire Alarm”), a subsidiary of the Company, and a
separate listing of the manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment business owned and operated by Jade Bird Fire Alarm
on The Small and Medium Enterprises Board (the “SME Board”)
of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. On 10 April 2017, the Main
Board Issuance Approval Committee (the “Issuance Approval
Committee”) of the China Securities Regulatory Commission
(“CSRC”) issued the reviewing results announcement of the 51st
conference meeting of the Issuance Approval Committee for 2017
on the website of the CSRC and announced that the proposed
initial public offering on the SME Board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange of Jade Bird Fire Alarm was reviewed and passed by
the Issuance Approval Committee. Details were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 6 April 2017 and 10 April
2017.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Tourism development

The Group is the environmental shuttle bus operator in
Hengshan Mountain scenic area, the PRC. The Group is also
engaged in provision of property management services and
operation of tourist service center and tourist souvenir shops
in the scenic area. The Group’s associates took part in several
tourism development projects in Hunan Province, including the
construction and development of landscape architectures and
primary land development of land around the Sonya Lake region
at Changsha County, and the development of tourist sight project
located at Tianzi Mountain.

During the year, fare revenue from tourists and pilgrims
continued to be the main source of income of the Group’s
tourism development business. Approximately 2.01 million
arrivals visited Hengshan in 2017, up 9.2% (2016: 1.84 million
arrivals) year-on-year. Service utilisation rate of the Group’s
environmental bus service remained steady at 93% during the
year under review.

Investment holding

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s investment holding
business mainly included investments in private equity funds (the
investment areas of which included private enterprises in the
PRC with businesses ranging from the provision of information
technology vocational education, insurance business, baby
products retailing business, manufacturing and sale of light-
emitting diode related products, property development, IT
development and solution business, air transport agency and
provision of technical consultancy services etc.), the equity
interests in listed companies in Hong Kong, and the equity
interest in a private enterprise in the PRC which is principally
engaged in manufacture and sale of light-emitting diode
related products. During the year, the Group invested in co-
production of films and television dramas in the PRC, because
of continuous growth in the entertainment industry, and the
Group is entitled to benefits generated from the distribution
based on the percentage of capital contributed in the film and
television drama projects. On 14 September 2017, the Company
(as a limited partner) entered into the partnership agreement in
relation to the formation of the investment fund, namely Beida
Jade Bird Tongling Semiconductor Industry Investment Fund
(Limited Partnership). The total capital to be contributed to
the investment fund is RMB350 million, in which the Company
agreed to contribute RMB66.50 million to the investment fund,
accounting for 19% of the fund size. The investment scope of
the investment fund is to target semiconductor industry chain
projects in the city of Tongling, Anhui province. Details were
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 14
September 2017 and 24 October 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CEEE T

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Outlook

Looking ahead, the Group’s manufacture and sale of electronic
fire equipment will pay attention to enhancing the effectiveness
and efficiency of the manufacturing process and system,
improving product quality and investing in technological
innovation. The Group will actively explore the market by
increasing support to the dealers and strengthening marketing

and promotion.

With the recent promotion of Hengshan Mountain scenic area
by the local government, the number of tourists and pilgrims is
expected to steadily increase. The Group’s tourism development
business will continue to be benefited from the booming tourism
industry of the PRC.

The Group targets to diversify its business and investment
portfolio in order to achieve continuous business growth.
The Group will continue to seek new promising investment
opportunities in the market to broaden its income sources and

increase profitability.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment

Turnover from manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment
of approximately RMB1.461 billion was recorded for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB1.268 billion), which was
increased by 15.2% year-on-year. The continued growth in the
manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment business
was mainly due to brand effect and industry recognition of the
Group’s fire safety solutions and satisfactory sales performance of
the dealers during the year.

Tourism development

The Group’s tourism development business recorded steady
turnover of RMB132.8 million during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB130.0 million), representing
an increase of 2.2% year-on-year. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in visitors to Hengshan during the

year.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Investment holding

The segment total assets of the investment holding business
increased from approximately RMB933.1 million as at 31
December 2016 to approximately RMB1,061.1 million as at 31
December 2017, representing an increase of 13.7%, as a result
of the formation of Tongling Investment Fund, investments in
film production and the increase in fair values of the investment

portfolio during the year under review.

Overall performance

On the back of the continuing good performance of the
Group’s main business, turnover totalled approximately
RMB1.613 billion for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB1.413 billion, increased by approximately RMB200 million
or 14.2% year-on-year. Gross profit reached approximately
RMB740.4 million (2016: RMB647.7 million), increased by
approximately RMB92.7 million or 14.3% year-on-year. The
Group maintained a steady gross profit margin of 46% (2016:
46%), which is a key performance indicator of the Group’s
overall efficiency and profitability. The Group’s distribution
costs, administrative expenses and other expenses were increased
by 14.3% to approximately RMB339.5 million (2016: RMB297.1
million), following to the continued growth of the Group’s
main businesses, in particular the manufacture and sale of
electronic fire equipment business. During the reporting year,
the profit attributable to owners of the Company was increased
by approximately 31.7% year to approximately RMB170.7 million
(2016: RMB129.6 million) mainly as a result of increase in
turnover. Together with the increase in fair value of the available-
for-sale financial assets held by the Group and joint ventures of
the Group and other comprehensive income during the year
under review, the total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was RMB171.5 million
(2016: RMB100.4 million).

Financial position

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current ratio (being ratio
of current assets and current liabilities) and the gearing ratio
(being measured by total interest-bearing debts to total equity),
which are key performance indicators of the Group’s short-term
solvency position and financial leverage, were 2.28 (2016: 1.91)
and 8.9% (2016: 8.2%) respectively. During the year, the total
bank loans were increased for the continuous business expansion.

The Group’s financial position remain solid.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i B o e

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s main core businesses are subject to the several key
risks and uncertainties including, and among others, operating

risks and financial risks.

Operational risks

The Group faces several potential operational risks including
intense competition from local and multinational competitors
with financial advantages and the industrial policy risks. The
competitors may develop and launch new products ahead of the
Group at more attractive prices, and this might lead to the risk of
declining gross profit margin of the Group. If there is unfavorable
adjustment of the industrial policies in relation to the fire safety
system products and tourism industry in the PRC, there may have
an adverse effect on the Group’s net profit. The Board always
monitors market situation in order to react promptly over any
potential risks. The Board meets and discusses with directors of
subsidiaries frequently to keep track of their situations so that it
can adjust segmental strategies timely. The Group has already set
out strategies including quality control enhancement, stringent
cost control and business diversification to deal with different

kinds of operational risks.

Financial risks
The Group also exposes to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

interest rate risk.

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), US dollars (“USD”),
Canadian dollars (“CAD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group
does not formulate a foreign currency hedging policy at present
as turnover, most of the production costs and operating expenses
are denominated in RMB and they are automatically hedged,
leaving limited currency risk. The Group closely monitors its
exposure and will take measures to lower foreign currency risk

when necessary.

The Group exposes to equity security price risk as listed equity
securities included in its available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. The change in fair value of the listed
securities will lead to the fluctuation of fair value changes of
available-for-sale financial assets included in the Group’s total
comprehensive income. The Group has not mitigated its price

risk arising from the listed equity securities.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B Wk i B o e

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

Financial risks (Continued)

The Group exposes to certain credit risk coming from certain
financial assets held by the Group, which include time deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, and receivables. In particular, with the
expansion of the Group’s operating scale, the absolute amount of
trade receivables will gradually increase. A substantial increase in
trade receivables will result in a decrease in the Group’s operating
cash flow and an increase in the Group’s operating risk. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade
receivables and has set up a credit control department to monitor
credit terms of customers. Senior management of each subsidiary
reviews overdue balances regularly. The Group maintains long-
term cooperation with the dealers and customer credit is in good
condition. The Group does not develop particular policy to tackle
credit risks from time deposits, and cash and cash equivalents at
present as the major counterparties are either well-established or

having high credit-rating.

The Group’s measure over liquidity is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient cash reserves to meet its liquidity

requirements in short and long term.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank
deposits and bank borrowings. The risk varies with the prevailing
market condition but is limited.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest
environmental standards and strictly follows the applicable
environmental requirements imposed by the PRC government
in its production and operation. For the year under review, the
Group complied with influential laws relevant to waste gas or
greenhouse gas emissions, water or land discharging, hazardous
or non-hazardous wastes, and use of resources. The Group
strives to reduce destruction to the environment by saving
energy and encouraging recycle of office supplies. Besides, the
environmental buses operated by the Group are equipped with
anti-smoking devices and do not use heavy-duty diesel to reduce

pollution.

B N EE )

$oA 35 e (At)

AR B R B R A T T B T 1
TERER > %% EEAFEENTH - Be
e B A5 ) e R IR - BT S > B
A SR T R R > PR CRE By R K AR
SR BN o B 5 R 3R OR g 38 i
MBS S AR B i R D RO AR AR
JEBg b Tt o AR S5 T B e AR A A A [ R o
QL I AR VAR e IO o
ZAREM o BB~ R 2 AR 2 E A
Bi & X 2 A Bk o A T BRLAR B i A R R W A
5 REFFEMRWRE - RALEZ
T T 7 ¥ R R R A A R E AT
Ao TR A G2 P B IR NI I T S S O > R
A5 52 S AF R L e B 4 T B SE AR W) B AR 1R
HER -

A % T 3B U ) O < PR IUA) i R E AR D
MR IR &S MRAE B R
WBlE G MR RIRH EETE -

A A T (R A B 1) SRAT A7 3k S SRAT A BT T
A= Ja B o A B R BB T T DU B HAT R

A SR Ok A FL AR RO o AR B K
~F- T O v B R i 2 < e I B it Y 7
BRARKUE o 4[] AR B2 - 7% 4% I < JBE SRk
2 SR R~ K B B - AR B R
Lo A5 FF O A Bl F) B ORI R o A 4R R BT e
Lo Sl 5 W 2 2 S AR BR T8 T > BU D B
BRERBOR o Heoh - AL SRR E L
Fetts 7 P AE B LR O AR S DU

5 -

ALK T BT R A IR A 7]
TR LR

13



14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
CEEE T

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS (CONTINUED)
The Group’s main core businesses are carried out by principal
subsidiaries in the PRC, the United States of America and the
Canada and the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in
2000. The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and

regulations to ensure sustainable development of its businesses.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group has established a comprehensive dealer operation
model for its manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment
business and mainly sold its fire alarm products to end customers
through dealers. The Group maintains good relationship with the
dealers. The Group’s marketing department is mainly responsible
for the evaluation of dealer qualifications and coordinating the
relationship between dealers, while the business department is
mainly responsible for executing sales contracts with dealers and
assessing credit limit. For the tourism development business,
the customers mainly comprised of tourists and pilgrims and
the Group is committed to provide good-quality environmental

shuttle bus services to the customers.

The Group has a close and good relationship with key upstream
component suppliers. The Group strictly regulated procurement
procedures in relation to supplier evaluation and selection,
and acceptance of purchased products. In addition, there are a
large number of upstream component suppliers in the market
and relatively stable purchase prices could be maintained when

purchasing at large quantities.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B PR w2 o3 B

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 5 November 2014, the Company entered into the equity
interest transfer agreement with a then connected person of
the Company for acquisition of 40% equity interest in Beijing
Shengxin Runcheng Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Shengxin Runcheng”) at a consideration of RMB400,000. Beijing
Shengxin Runcheng is a company incorporated in Beijing, the
PRC and its scope of business is asset management. Completion
of the transfer took place during the period and Beijing Shengxin

Runcheng became an associate of the Group.

On 14 September 2017, the Company (as a limited partner)
entered into the partnership agreement in relation to the
formation of the investment fund, namely Tongling Investment
Fund. The total capital to be contributed to the investment fund
is RMB350 million, in which the Company agreed to contribute
RMB66.50 million to the investment fund, accounting for 19%
of the fund size. The investment scope of the investment fund
is to target semiconductor industry chain projects in the city
of Tongling, Anhui province. Details were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 14 September 2017 and 24
October 2017.

Saved as disclosed herein this section, during the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group did not effect any material
acquisitions and disposals which would be required to be
disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i B o e

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s major
operations were financed mainly by the internal financial
resources, by corporate borrowings and by net proceeds from
placing of new H shares of the Company during the year. As
at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB658.2 million, which were denominated
mainly in RMB, HK$, USD and CAD.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net assets of
approximately RMB2,488.2 million (2016: RMB2,022.8 million).
The Group had total outstanding borrowings of approximately
RMB220.9 million (2016: RMB166.4 million) consisted of secured
bank loans of approximately RMB180.9 million (2016: RMB121.4
million) and unsecured bank loans of RMB40.0 million (2016:
RMB45.0 million). The bank loans were denominated in RMB
and USD and bore interest rates ranging from 4.35% per annum

to 5.66% per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s outstanding number
of issued promoters shares and H shares of RMB0.10 each were
700,000,000 shares and 678,720,000 shares respectively.

In respect of the placing completed on 11 July 2016, the Board
resolved to change the allocation of the proposed use of the
net proceeds on 1 December 2017. Approximately 90% of the
net proceeds from the placing would be applied to explore
acquisition opportunities and development of new businesses;
and approximately 10% of the net proceeds from the placing
would be used to repay existing indebtedness and supplement
working capital of the Group. Details of the above was disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 17 June 2016,
11 July 2016 and 1 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017,
approximately RMB74.5 million was used for acquisition of equity
interests in associate and subsidiary, capital contribution to
associate and payments for investments; approximately RMB7.1
million was applied as working capital of the Group; and the
remaining balance of approximately HK$1.3 million (equivalent to

approximately RMB1.1 million) was deposited in bank.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B Wk i B o e

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (CONTINUED)

On 11 January 2017, the Company and a third party placing agent
entered into a placing agreement, whereby the Company has
conditionally agreed to place, through the placing agent, on a
best effort basis, of up to 96,960,000 placing H shares to not less
than six but not exceeding ten independent placees at the placing
price of HK$1.43 per placing H share (representing a discount of
approximately 17.8% to the closing price of HK$1.74 per H share
on 11 January 2017). The placing was completed on 6 February
2017 raising net proceeds of approximately HK$137.9 million
(representing a net placing price of approximately HK$1.42 per
placing H share). Following the change of allocation of proposed
use of net proceeds resolved on 1 December 2017, the Directors
intended that approximately 85% of net proceeds from the placing
would be applied to potential acquisitions and/or development of
new businesses; and approximately 15% of the net proceeds from
the placing would be applied as working capital of the Group. As
a result of the placing, on 6 February 2017, the total number of
issued H shares of the Company was increased from 581,760,000
H shares to 678,720,000 H shares, and the total number of
issued shares of the Company (including both the H shares and
the promoters shares) was increased from 1,281,760,000 shares
to 1,378,720,000 shares. Details of the above were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 11 January 2017, 6
February 2017 and 1 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017,
approximately RMB93.8 million was applied to capital contribution
to associates and investment of the Company and payments
for investments of the Group, and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$29.1 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB24.3 million) was deposited in bank.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2017, which
is measured by total interest-bearing debts to total equity, was
8.9% (2016: 8.2%). During the year, the total bank loans were

increased for the continuous business expansion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i B o e

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
As at 31 December 2017, the Group held available-for-sale

financial assets of approximately RMB232.6 million, representing

7.3% of the total assets of the Group, which mainly comprised of:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

18.7% equity interest in Enraytek Optoelectronics
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“Enraytek Optoelectronics”) with
investment cost of approximately RMB113.5 million at fair
value of approximately RMB117.9 million, representing
3.7% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 December
2017. Enraytek Optoelectronics is an unlisted private
enterprise established in the PRC and is principally engaged
in LED and related industrial chain design, development
and manufacturing. There is an increase in fair value
of approximately RMB7.2 million included in other

comprehensive income for the year;

19% equity interest in Tongling Investment Fund with
investment cost of approximately RMB66.5 million at fair
value of approximately RMB66.5 million, representing
2.1% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 December
2017. Tongling Investment Fund is a limited partnership
investment fund established in the PRC with investment
scope of semiconductor industry chain projects in the city of
Tongling, Anhui province. There is no significant change in

fair value for the year; and

3,916,340 ordinary shares of Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corporation (“SMIC”) with investment
cost of approximately RMB31.2 million at fair value of
approximately RMB44.3 million, representing 1.4% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2017. SMIC is
a Hong Kong listed company with stock code 00981 and
is principally engaged in the manufacture and trading
of semiconductor products. There is an increase in fair
value of approximately RMB4.6 million included in other

comprehensive income for the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B Wk i B o e

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD
(CONTINUED)

Investment holding is one of the core businesses of the
Group, and the Group strives to identify promising investment
opportunities. The Group considered the optimistic future
prospect of LED and semiconductor industries and expected
that the Group’s investments will be benefited in the long run.
In addition, the Group will continue exploring investment
opportunities to diversify investment business portfolio as well as

broaden its income source.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group did not have any

significant investment plans as at 31 December 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had contingent liabilities in the sum of approximately
RMB503 million in respect of guarantee for banking facilities

granted to associates of the Company.

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Company received an assessment
demanding final tax for the year of assessment 2004/2005 from
The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”). The
amount of this assessment was approximately HK$47,852,000
(equivalent to RMB39,999,000) in which approximately
HK$47,748,000 (equivalent to RMB39,913,000) relating to a
claim for gain on disposal of long term investment recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2004. On 25 February 2013,
the IRD issued a notice to the subsidiary informing that the case
has been forwarded to the Appeals Section of the IRD for further
processing. The outcome of the tax claim cannot be readily
ascertained up to the date of this report. Should the assessment
regarding the claim for the gain be finally judged against the
subsidiary, current tax liabilities and corresponding income tax
expense of HK$47,748,000 (equivalent to RMB39,913,000) will be

recognised.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i B o e

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to certain foreign currency risk as most
of its business activities, assets and liabilities are denominated
in USD, CAD, RMB and HK$. The Group has not formulated
a foreign currency hedging policy as turnover and most of the
production costs and operating expenses are denominated
in RMB and they are automatically matched, leaving limited
currency risk. The Group continues to monitor its foreign
exchange exposure and will take measures to lower the foreign

currency risk when necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s certain fixed assets with
carrying amount of approximately RMB123.4 million (2016:
RMB72.7 million) were pledged as securities for the Group’s bank
loans.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group considers people as the valuable assets. The Directors
are of the view that the Group maintains good working relations
with its employees. The Group had stable workforce of 2,300
people situated mainly in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United
States at the end of reporting year, up 2% since the end of 2016.
The Group strictly complied with applicable labour law and
regulations. Competitive remuneration package with medical
and travel insurance are offered to the staff. Adequate retirement
funds and provident funds are contributed on a timely basis. The
Group emphasizes on working safety and sets out proper safety
guidelines and provides adequate training to workers. Staffs are
free to set up trade union according to applicable laws while
the supervisory committee of the Company (the “Supervisory
Committee”) had representative from the workforce.

Director’s emoluments consist of fees, salaries and allowances,
and discretionary bonus determined according to the

performance of individual Director.

The Group’s staff costs, including directors’ emoluments,
employees’ salaries and retirement benefits scheme contribution
amounted to approximately RMB225.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: RMB188.8 million).

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FH - BHEARBEHEZ B

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong, aged 56, is an executive Director and the
president of the Company. Mr. Zhang is primarily responsible
for overall development strategies and the fund and investment
management business of the Group. He was graduated from
Peking University with a Master’s degree in science. He worked in
several administrative departments of Peking University including
the vice president of the Remote Sensing and Geographic
Information System Department of Peking University which
was responsible for the State’s focal science and technological
project. Mr. Zhang is a director of Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-
Tech (Cayman) Development Company Limited, Beida Jade
Bird Universal Investments (USA) Limited, Beida Jade Bird
Universal Fire Alarm Device Company Limited, Chuanqi Tourism
Investment Co., Ltd. and Beida Jade Bird Universal Investments
(HK) Limited which are subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Zhang is also a director of Beijing Beida Jade Bird International
Education Investment Management Co., Ltd. and a supervisor of
Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited (“Beida Jade Bird”).

Ms. Zheng Zhong, aged 42, is an executive Director. Ms. Zheng
was graduated from the Molecular Biology Department of the
School of Life Sciences at Peking University in July 1997 and
subsequently obtained an MBA degree from the China Centre for
Economic Research at Peking University in July 2007. Ms. Zheng
worked for the Biological Engineering Centre under the Institute
of Chemical Metallurgy (now Institute of Process Engineering)
at Chinese Academy of Sciences, Department of Biology at
Shenzhen University and Shenzhen Kexing Bioproducts Co.,
Ltd.. She was also an assistant to the president of SINOGEN
(China) Investment Company, assistant to the head of Genetics
Research Institute of the School of Life Sciences at Tsinghua
University, president of Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd.,
vice president of Beida Culture Group, and assistant to president
of Beida Jade Bird and the general manager overseeing major
projects. She is currently a director of Beijing Jade Bird Yuda
Information Technology Co., Ltd. which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. She is also a director of Shenzhen
Beida Jade Bird Sci-Tech Co., Ltd., and a director and deputy
general manager of SBI-BDJB Investment Consultant Ltd..
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FH - BHEARBEHEZ B

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ip Wing Wai, aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director
and the compliance officer of the Company on 30 June 2015.
Mr. Ip holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in
Accounting from the The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 2004. Mr. Ip possesses 17
years of experience in accounting, auditing and corporate field.
Mr. Ip worked in an international accounting firm for auditing
and Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a listed company in
Hong Kong) as an accounting manager. During September 2006
to August 2008, Mr. Ip served as a finance manager and company
secretary in a Chinese coal investment company. He was in charge
of financial reporting, corporate finance, merger and acquisition
and company secretarial matters and he also coordinated the
audit work and due diligence work of a transaction in selling the
company’s interest in three coal mines in Shanxi to Shougang
Fushan Resources Group Limited (“Shougang Fushan”) (a
listed company in Hong Kong). He then worked with Shougang
Fushan as a senior finance manager from September 2008 to
March 2010. During the tenure, he was mainly responsible for
the group’s financial reporting, project evaluation, regulatory
compliance and investors relationship. Mr. Ip is currently the
company secretary of Huili Resources (Group) Limited (a listed
company in Hong Kong) and the vice president of King Stone
Energy Group Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong) mainly

responsible for merger and acquisition.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ni Jinlei, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive Director
and the chairman of the Company on 30 June 2015. Mr. Ni was
graduated from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s degree
in computer software in 1987. Mr. Ni was the computer software
engineer of Shenzhen Taiji Software Engineering Company,
manager of computer department of the securities exchange
center in Hainan, general manager of Guangzhou Nanfang Jade
Bird Information System Co., Ltd., senior manager of Integrated
Software and Device Corporation (USA), software architect of
ABB Energy Information System (USA), chief executive officer of
Beijing Beida-Online Network Co., Ltd., China regional director
(Young Learners’ English) of Global English Corporation,
founder and chief executive officer of Beijing Jinwenlang
Information Technology Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ni is currently a director
of Beida Jade Bird Universal Investments (HK) Limited, which is
the subsidiary of the Company and the chairman of Beijing Xizhi
Education Technology Co., Ltd..

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Ms. Xue Li, aged 59, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 30 June 2015. Ms. Xue attended post-graduation level and
is a certified public accountant and a certified auditor in the
PRC. Ms. Xue is a member of the Chinese Communist Party.
She was the finance manager of finance department of Lenovo
Group Limited, the deputy general manager (finance) of Digital
China (China) Limited, the chief accountant and deputy general
manager of Xinda Real Estate Co., Ltd. (an A share listed
company in the PRC), and the supervisor of Xishui Strong Year
Co., Ltd., Inner Mongolia (an A share listed company in the
PRC). She was the executive Director during the period from 20
May 2009 to 21 June 2012. Ms. Xue is currently the acting chief
executive officer, the executive vice president and the financial
controller of Beijing Aptech Beida Jade Bird Information
Technology Co., Ltd..

Mr. Xiang Lei, aged 66, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 31 July 2017. Mr. Xiang was graduated from the Stony Brook
College of the State University of New York with a Master’s
degree in systems management. Mr. Xiang is a council member
of the China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation and a council
member of the Gonghe Foundation. Mr. Xiang was the manager
of China National Machinery Import and Export Corporation,
senior manager of East West Bank, chief representative of Giti
Group’s Beijing representative office, investment consultant
of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation, vice
president of Beida Jade Bird Group, director of Beijing Beihu
Golf Club, and director of Giti Group. Mr. Xiang is currently
the director of Beijing Jiuzhou Yahua Cultural Agency Company
Limited and president of Beida Jade Bird Group.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shao Jiulin, aged 55, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Shao is a graduate of Zhongnan University
of Finance and Economics and a member of the Chinese
Communist Party. Mr. Shao is a senior accountant, certified
accountant and certified tax agent in the PRC. He was the head
of the finance division and chief accountant of Wuhan Light
Industry Fire Retardant Materials Manufacturing Company,
general manager of Hubei Daxin CPA Co., Ltd. and independent
director of Weifang Beida Jade Bird Huaguang Technology Co.,
Ltd. (an A share listed company in the PRC) and SINOPEC
Wuhan Petroleum Group Co., Ltd.. He is currently the vice

president of China Qinlu Industrial Development Co., Ltd..

Mr. Li Juncai, aged 56, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Li was graduated from the Geology Department of
Peking University in July 1983. Mr. Li is a member of the China
Democratic League. He is a senior engineer of geological and
mineral resources, certified appraiser of mining concession and
certified valuer of real estate. He was an assistant to the head of
the Fourth Geological Survey Department under the Jilin Bureau
of Geology, deputy general manager of Tonghua Dongbao
Import & Export Co., Ltd., general manager of Tonghua
Asia Shopping Centre under the Fourth Geological Survey
Department under the Jilin Bureau of Geology, manager of the
mining concession appraisal division of Jilin Dadi CPA Co., Ltd.,
and the deputy general manager and principal mining concession
appraiser of Wuhan Tiandiyuan Consultant and Appraisal Ltd..
He is currently the chairman of Heilongjiang Province Huan

Cheng Mineral Resources Appraisal and Consultant Ltd..

Mr. Lin Yan, aged 52, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Lin was graduated from the Peking University Law School
with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws in 1987 and was qualified as a
solicitor in the same year. He was graduated from the Department
of International Economic Laws, University of International
Business and Economics with a Master’s degree in Laws in 1990.
He was qualified as, among the first batch, a PRC solicitor for
securities in 1993. He worked for Beijing International Business
Law Firm as a full-time solicitor. He has completed the training
programme for independent directors organized by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission. He is a solicitor and a partner

of Beijing Xinghe Law Firm.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Li Chonghua, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2015. Mr. Li is a member of
the Chinese Communist Party. He is a post-graduate, qualified
as economist, and holds a practicing certificate of securities
practitioner. He was the deputy chief economist, the director
of the integrated plan unit and the director of reformation of
Beijing Chemical Second Plant. He was the board secretary and
the director of securities department of Beijing Chemical Second
Plant Co., Ltd.. He was seconded to listed company regulatory

department of China Securities Regulatory Commission.

CHIEF SCIENTIST

Professor Wang Yangyuan, aged 84, was appointed as the
Chief Scientist of the Company in May 2000. Professor Wang is
responsible for overall technological research and development
and monitoring the investment in Semiconductor Manufacturing

International Corporation.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Fan Yimin, aged 60, is the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee. Mr. Fan was graduated from Zhejiang University
with a bachelor’s degree in Chinese language in 1981. Mr.
Fan worked in the liaison office of the people’s government
of Zhejiang Province, Zhejiang Foreign Trade Company and
Zhejiang Qujiang Industrial Company. He is currently a member
of the management committee of Lingyin Temple in Hangzhou,
president of Hangzhou Branch of the School of Chinese Culture

and an executive president of Beida Jade Bird.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)

Professor Yang Jinguan, aged 55, is an independent Supervisor.
Professor Yang is a PRC Certified Public Accountant. He was
graduated from the accounting department of the Graduate
School, School of Finance of the Central University of Finance
and Economics with a Master’s degree in economics. He has been
teaching at the School since graduation and served as a tutor,
lecturer, associate professor and professor. He had studied at
Asahi of Japan. He is a professor of accountancy and the dean
of the registration office of the Central University of Finance
and Economics. He is the council member of China Institute of
Internal Audit, Chinese Certified Tax Agents Association and
National Higher Education Research Association, a member
of Accounting Society of China and a member of The Chinese

Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Ouyang Zishi, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
Supervisor on 30 June 2015. Mr. Ouyang worked for Beijing
Pastry Factory, the Association of Culture and Arts in Beijing, the
Audiovisual Press of the Bureau of Culture in Beijing and the
Beijing Television. Mr. Ouyang was the director and producer of
“KB&J7E”, a TV series, and the column director and producer
of “w”, a TV program. Mr. Ouyang is currently the chairman and
the general manager of Beijing Evercare Shichiku Medical Beauty

Clinic Company Limited.

Mr. Lu Qingfeng, aged 37, was appointed as an independent
Supervisor on 30 June 2015. Mr. Lu was graduated from
the Accounting Department of Tianjin College of Finance
and Economics with a Bachelor’s degree in accounting, and
subsequently obtained an MBA degree from the Oklahoma State
University of the United States. Mr. Lu worked for the finance
department of Motorola, Inc’s branch in Tianjin and was the
associate director of Beijing China Equity Company Limited.
Mr. Lu is currently the director of Beijing Xinzhongrui Venture
Capital Co., Ltd., the director of Beijing Shengxin Runcheng
Venture Capital Co., Ltd., the director of Greengery Capital
Limited, the director of Enraytek Optoelectronics (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd., and a director of Beijing Shengxin Kaiyuan Investment
Management Co., Ltd..

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)
Ms. Zhou Min, aged 42, is a Supervisor. Ms. Zhou was graduated

from the Department of Administration Management of Renmin
University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws. She
obtained a Master’s degree in economics from the University
of International Business and Economics in 2005. Ms. Zhou
joined Beida Jade Bird in July 1999 and subsequently joined
the Company in March 2000. She is primarily responsible for
administration and human resources of the Company. She is the

employee representative of the Supervisory Committee.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chi Hung, aged 42, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor
degree in Business Administration in Accounting from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chan has over 20
years of experience in finance, accounting, company secretarial
and compliance areas and worked for international accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified

Accountants. Mr. Chan joined the Group in September 2012.

Mr. Liu Junjie, aged 44, attended master post-graduation level.
During March 1990 to January 2001, Mr. Liu served in the
People’s Liberation Army Second Artillery Corps as a squad
leader, an assistant and an officer. During July 2001 to December
2016, he worked in the personnel department and internal audit
department of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange as
an officer, a staff member, a deputy director, a principal staff
member, a deputy administrator and an administrator. Mr. Liu
joined the Company in December 2016 and is a vice president of

the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ceng Yongheng, aged 48, holds a Bachelor degree in law.
Mr. Ceng has worked in Changsha Blower Factory, Hunan
Hongyi Investment Group, Xiangxi Mengdong Helu Tourism
Development Co., Ltd., Zhangjiajie Baofenghu Tourism
Enterprise Co., Ltd., Xiangxi Dehang Tourism Development Co.,
Ltd. and Liuyang Daowushan Zhouluo Tourism Development
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ceng joined Chuanqi Tourism Investment Co.,
Ltd. in 2008 and is currently a director of Chuanqi Cultural
Development Group Co., Ltd, a director and the general manager
of Chuanqi (Hunan) Enterprise Development Co., Ltd, and a
director and general manager of Chuanqi Tourism Investment
Co., Ltd..

Mr. Wang Xingye, aged 41, attended master post-graduation
level. Mr. Wang has worked in Beida Jade Bird. He is currently
an executive director and general manager of Beijing Beida
Jade Bird New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a director of Beida
Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Company Limited, the
managing director of Beijing Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment
Management Co., Ltd., an executive director and the general
manager of Beijing Jade Bird Dingsheng Investment Management
Co., Ltd., a director of Enraytek Optoelectronics (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd., a director of Ningbo Jade Bird Zhengyuan Equity
Investment Management Co., Ltd., a director of Ningbo Jade Bird
Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., an executive director and
general manager of Ningbo Jade Bird Liyuantai Venture Capital
Management Co., Ltd, and the chairman of the supervisory
committee of Shengyang Public Utility Holdings Company
Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong). Mr. Wang joined the
Company in March 2000 and is the secretary to the Board and the

chairman of the labor union of the Company.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Hu Lushan, aged 51, attended post-graduation level. Mr.
Hu is a senior accountant, and holds the certificate of senior
accountant, the certificate of senior tax agent and the certificate
of Certified Management Accountant (CMA). He has worked in
Beijing Building Materials Millstone Factory of Beijing Building
Materials Group as the accountant, the chief accountant and
the finance director; Beijing Yiheng Decoration Design Co., Ltd.
as the finance manager; and Beijing Northern Electric Power
Engineering Co., Ltd of the China Electricity Council as the
finance manager. Mr. Hu joined the Company in June 2001 and is

the person in charge of finance department of the Company.
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FRAMEWORK

The Company developed a set of documents with reference to
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules to govern its corporate
practice.

The documents are as follows:

1.  Code on the Corporate Governance;

2. Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors of

the Company (the “Securities Code”);
&, Duties of the Board of Directors;

4. Segregation of Duties between the Chairman and the

President;
5. Board Diversity Policy;

6.  Disciplinary Rules of the Company;

7. Term of Reference on the Audit Committee;
8. Term of Reference on the Remuneration Committee;
9. Term of Reference on the Nomination Committee; and

10.  Written Guidelines for Relevant Employees in respect of

their Dealings in the Securities of the Company.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all
the code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Securities Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. All Directors as well as
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information
are governed by the Securities Code. Having made specific
enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the Securities Code all over the year ended 31 December 2017.
The Company is not aware of any employee who does not comply
with the Securities Code.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders. Detail
responsibilities of the Board are laid down on the articles of

association of Company (the “Articles”). Major duties include:

1. convening Shareholders’ meeting and reporting work of the
Board to Shareholders;

2. execution of resolution passed in Shareholders’ meeting;
3. deciding business plan and investment proposal;
4. formulation plans for change in registered capital and

issuance of bond;

5.  formulation of major merger and acquisition plan and

disposal plan;

6.  formulation of job segregation and dissolution plan for the

Company if necessary;

7.  employment and dismissal of general manager; and

8. formulation proposal for amendment to the Articles.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance;
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management
and the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements; etc.

All Directors are free to access to corporate information for the
purpose of discharging their duties and responsibilities. They
may seek independent professional advice if necessary at the
Company’s cost. All Directors have unrestricted access to the

company secretary and senior management of the Company.

The Board delegated the management team with the responsibilities
for the day-to-day management, administration and operation of the

Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) HHEG(H)
Composition R
As at 31 December 2017, the composition of the sixth session of " &F—L4FE+ " H=+—H » FEAHEH
the Board is as follows: BT
Zhang Wanzhong Executive Director, President M 56 16/3/2000 30/6/2015
R PATES - WM
Zheng Zhong Executive Director F 42 21/6/2012 30/6/2015
W WITHEF
Ip Wing Wai Executive Director M 39 30/6/2015 N/AAREH
KB WITHEH
Ni Jinlei Non-executive Director, Chairman M 50 30/6,/2015 N/AARG
i FUMATESR - LF
Xue Li Non-executive Director F 59 20/5/2009 30/6/2015
34 FMATESR
Xiang Lei Non-executive Director M 66 31/7/2017 N/AANE
HE FUATESR
Shao Jiulin Independent non-executive Director M 55 21/6/2012 30/6/2015
Uk By TES
Li Juncai Independent non-executive Director M 56 21/6/2012 30/6/2015
A BT E S
Lin Yan Independent non-executive Director M 52 20/5/2009 30/6/2015
o BT
Li Chonghua Independent non-executive Director M 62 30/6/2015 N/AAR#EH
TR BT E S

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other W O R B A 2 AR AT ] B ZEES
material/relevant relationship with each other. B E A T B BR o

Profiles of the Directors are detailed on pages 21 to 25 of this  #FJBBEF A AERFB2AIHEH5H -

annual report.

Mr. Xiang Lei was appointed for a term commencing from 31 July JAFGAEEHERT > A A —~F—L4HE LA
2017 until conclusion date of the 2017 annual general meeting =+ —HHEEEARANFZ ~&F—L4ERKE
of the Company. All other Directors were appointed for a term of 5= K& &5 H M A& 1 - A Hih# F 2 T
three years starting from 30 June 2015. All Directors are eligible  #5H —F— 4N A =+ HRFHE =4 -
for re-election. 2R R G G EREAT

eijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limite
39 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Composition (Continued)

In compliance with rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed four independent
non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
expertise. Each independent non-executive Director has
confirmed to the Company in respect of his independence
pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules by way of an
annual confirmation for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
Company continues to consider all independent non-executive

Directors to be independent.

Segregation of duties between the Chairman and the President
Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a
balance of power and authority, the roles of the chairman and the
president of the Company are segregated and performed by Mr.
Ni Jinlei and Mr. Zhang Wanzhong respectively.

Board meetings

The Board convened 6 meetings during the year. Apart from
approval of 2017 quarterly and 2016 annual results, the Company
convened meetings and passed resolutions mainly to consider and
approve important transactions of the Company. The Company
notifies the Directors with sufficient time in advance and provides
them with detailed agenda and sufficient information before
each Board meeting and sub-committee meeting. The Company
gives at least 15 days advance notice before each regular Board
meeting. Individual attendance records of each Director at the
respective Board and sub-committee meetings are set out in the

table on page 37 of this annual report.

Directors’ and senior officers’ liability insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for all
Directors, Supervisors and certain management. No claims were
raised during the year against potential legal action arising from

their jobs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Directors’ training

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. For the year ended 31 December 2017, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by attending training courses on the topic related to the

risk management and internal control, and corporate governance.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established 3 committees to carry out certain duties.
They are the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the

Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include monitoring
the financial reporting system and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, reviewing financial information,
and advising the Board on engagement and independence of

independent auditors.

The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Shao Jiulin, Mr. Li Juncai, Mr.
Lin Yan and Mr. Li Chonghua. Mr. Shao Jiulin is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee had convened 4 meetings
to review the three 2017 quarterly results and 2016 annual results
of the Group, issues in respect of annual audits for 2017 and

connected transactions of the Company.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
as set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration
Committee is accountable to the Board. It is mainly responsible
for advising the Board on remuneration policy of the Board itself
and senior management, advising the Board on remuneration of
non-executive Directors, structuring the remuneration package
of all executive Directors and senior management, and review and

approval of performance bonus.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Juncai
and Mr. Lin Yan and one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhang Wanzhong. Mr. Zhang Wanzhong is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. A meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held during the year to review the remuneration
package of the Board, the Supervisors and the senior

management of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
as set out in the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
is accountable to the Board. Its primary duties include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) and making recommendations to the
Board after such review; identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to the
Board on appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and

succession planning for the Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Board has adopted a policy concerning the diversification of
members of the Board. In setting the composition of the Board,
the Company will consider the diversification of members of the
Board from various aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, race, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments to the Board
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The selection of candidates for the Board
will be based on a range of diversified categories, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board in
various aspects including professional competence, knowledge
and experience. The Nomination Committee considered the
current structure, size and composition of the Board could meet

the business development needs of the Group.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Zhang Wanzhong, one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Ni Jinlei and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Shao Jiulin, Mr. Li Juncai and
Mr. Lin Yan. Mr. Ni Jinlei is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held
during the year to review the nomination of Mr. Xiang Lei as a

non-executive director of the Company.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT HWAHEM R R

MEETINGS

Details of attendance of the Directors at the Board and sub- R#EE_"F—-tHE+__H=+—HIL4FF
committee meetings, as well as general meetings during the year — # F i #E F & K/ % B &L R IEH K &
ended 31 December 2017 are as follows: ZFEE o FIHnN

Executive Directors HiTEH
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong £ 3 bt 5/5 N/ARER 1/1 0/1 1/3
Ms. Zheng Zhong HEL+ 5/5 N/ARE N/ARE A N/ARE 1/3
Mr. Ip Wing Wai TR E 5/5  N/AMERM  N/ARER N/ARER 1/3
Non-executive Directors FHITHESE
Mr. Ni Jinlei e &k 6/6  N/ANEM  N/AREHA 1/1 3/3
Ms. Xue Li 13- ¥/ 6/6  N/AREM  N/ARER  N/ARER 1/3
Mr. Xiang Lei TEE A 2/3  N/ABNEA N/ARE N/ANER  N/AREH
Mr. Zhao Xuedong WAL 0/2  N/ARERM  N/ARER  N/ARER  N/ARER
Independent B FHTESE

non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Juncai FRA KA 6/6 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/3
Mr. Shao Jiulin BB LR 6/6 4/4  N/ARE 1/1 1/%
Mr. Lin Yan S epin 6/6 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/3
Mr. Li Chonghua LIS 6/6 4/4 N/ARE N/ARE A 1/3

There were two special general meetings held during the year #% —~ & — L4+ H =+ —H 1L F 84T
ended 31 December 2017. 7T R B R A AR o
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee was set up according to the Articles
and is accountable to the Shareholders. It is mainly responsible
for monitoring the operation and management of the Company
as well as the act of Directors and senior management to
prevent any abuse of power and infringement of interests on

Shareholders, the Company and employees.

The Supervisory Committee currently comprises five members.
The chairman is Mr. Fan Yimin. The other four members are
Professor Yang Jinguan, Mr. Ouyang Zishi, Mr. Lu Qingfeng and

Ms. Zhou Min. Ms. Zhou Min is the employee representative.

All Supervisors were appointed for a term of three years starting

from 30 June 2015. All Supervisors are eligible for re-election.

Profiles of the Supervisors are detailed on pages 25 to 27 of this

annual report.

Attendance of meetings
The Supervisory Committee convened 4 meetings during the

year.

The following table sets out the attendance of each members in

these meetings:
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Mr. Fan Yimin u— RSk
Professor Yang Jinguan [UER S
Ms. Zhou Min Lk e
Mr. Ouyang Zishi N
Mr. Lu Qingfeng BEYLE

The meetings were convened to review the financial statements of

the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing
the accounts of the Company. As at 31 December 2017, the
Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties or events
which may have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to

operate as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are

set out in the independent auditor’s report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2017, senior management of
the Company comprises 5 individuals. The senior management’s

remuneration payment of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2017 falls within the following bands:

WAL R F
ERMERHEEHAATMRARFARE - R
T—tHEF+A=+—H > REEITN M
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220 L
S
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E—LE+H=+—HILFEE AN A5
S92 R A A R

Below RMB500,000 Lid NE#500,0007C 1
RMB500,000 to RMB1,000,000 AN ER¥500,00000 2 A R%1,000,0000C 4

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The remuneration paid/payable to RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”),
the Company’s independent auditor, and its member firm
in respect of annual audit services and non-audit services in
relation to agreed-upon procedures amounted to approximately
RMB1,740,000 and RMB40,000 respectively for the year ended 31
December 2017.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Articles lay down the rights of the Shareholders. They

include:
. right to entitle dividend or other forms of profit
distribution;

. right to attend shareholders’ meeting by person or by proxy;

. right to supervise and manage the business activities of the

Company and to put forward proposals and raise inquiries;

. right to transfer shareholding in the Company;

. upon payment of a reasonable cost, right to inspect and

copy:
— register of shareholders;

—  certain personal information of Directors, Supervisors,
general manager and/or deputy general managers

and senior management members;

—  certain information on repurchase of Shares; and

— minutes of shareholders’ meeting

Apart from the above, the Shareholders are also entitled to the

following special rights:

The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Unit 7605, 76th Floor, The Center,
99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Right to convene meeting

The Shareholders are given rights to convene special general
meeting or class meeting other than the Directors. According to
the Articles, any two or more Shareholders having voting rights of
10% or more in the general meeting to be proposed can give the
Board written requests for convening a special general meeting or
class meeting. The requests should state clearly the resolution (s)
to be considered. If the Board does not convene the meeting
within 30 days after receipt of such requests, those Shareholders
who give the requests are entitled to convene the proposed
general meeting themselves 4 months after the Board received

their requests at the Company’s expense.

Right to sue

According to the Articles, the Shareholders are entitled rights
to take legal action against the Company, the Directors, the
Supervisors, general manager, deputy general managers and
senior management members. A Shareholder can also take legal
action against another Shareholder. Action can be conducted

through court or arbitration authority.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control system for
the Group, which covers four main areas namely financial
management, operation, compliance and reporting, and risk
management. The risk management and internal control systems
of the Company are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failures to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

Financial management

The Board manages the Group capital on the basis of net debt-to-
equity ratio in order to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximize shareholders’ return. Each subsidiary
is responsible for overseeing its own daily net cash position while
the Board monitors the Company’s own. Should there be a capital
need, each subsidiary is responsible for its own arrangement

subject to the supervision of the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Operation

Each subsidiary has set up its own control procedures to monitor
its operation including but not limited to working safety, product
quality, asset safeguard, cost management and environmental
protection. Finance department of the Company sets out general
guidelines on fund control for all subsidiaries to follow. There
were no material accidents, quality defects nor environmental

destruction incidents occurred during the year.

Compliance and reporting

The Board assigns the compliance officer of the Company to
monitor the overall compliance and reporting issue of the Group.
With the assistance of company secretary and financial controller
of the Company, listing supervision division and finance
departments, the compliance officer of the Company carries out
its duty to ensure that the Group complies with applicable laws,

rules and regulations as well as reports correctly and timely.

Finance department of each subsidiary maintains proper
accounting records and prepares subsidiary-level financial
statements in accordance with suitable accounting standards. The
financial controller of the Company reviews the correctness and

reasonableness of the financial statements periodically.

During the year, the Company published announcements
and notices within the time frame allowed in the GEM Listing
Rules. The Board also sets out guidelines on dissemination of
inside information to ensure timely disclosure. Each material
transaction especially connected transaction proposed by either
the subsidiary or the Company itself must first be assessed by the
compliance officer of the Company to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and GEM Listing Rules before further action. The
Company seeks advice from lawyers, financial advisors as well as
the Stock Exchange if necessary. The Board also sets out code of
conduct to govern securities dealings by Directors and relevant

employees.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Compliance and reporting (Continued)

The Directors often update themselves about changes in
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The company secretary of
the Company also update any such change to the Board and the

listing supervision division of the Company.

Risk management
The risk management function focuses on market

unpredictability and aims at minimising potential adverse effect.

The Company does not have an internal audit department and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for internal control

of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external risk management and
internal control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the
annual review of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2017. Such review is
conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis.
The scope of review was previously determined and approved
by the Board. The Adviser has reported findings and areas
for improvement to the Audit Committee and management.
The Board is of the view that there are no material internal
control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser
are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board
therefore considered that the risk management and internal

control systems are effective and adequate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
The Board is committed to maintaining an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and in particular, through annual general

meetings and other general meetings.

There was no changes in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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PREAMBLE

The Group stringently fulfils its environmental and social

responsibilities.

The Group developed its sustainability strategy with aims to
create sustainable values to its stakeholders, and to continue to
lower the Group’s impact on the environment. To carry out the
Group’s sustainability strategy from top to bottom, the Board
has ultimate responsibility for ensuring the effectiveness of the
Group’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) policies.
The Board established dedicated teams to manage ESG issues
within each business division of the Group. Designated employees
were assigned to enforce and supervise the implementation of the
relevant ESG policies. The Group is also committed to constantly
reviewing and adjusting the Group’s sustainability policies to
satisfy the ever-changing needs of its stakeholders. Details of its
management approach in both the environmental and social
aspect can be found throughout different sections of this ESG
Report. The Group believes sustainability is essential to the

development of the Group’s overall long-term success.

The Group is pleased to present its second ESG Report to further
demonstrate the Group’s approach and performance in terms
of sustainable development for the year ended on 31 December
2017.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE OF THE
REPORT

This ESG report covers the environmental and social
performance within the operational boundaries of the Group
that includes the Group’s office in Hong Kong, the investment
business in Beijing, the manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment business in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), the tourism development business in Hunan, and the
winery business in the United States. For governance section,
please refer to pages 30 to 43 of this annual report. The reporting
period is the Group’s financial year dating from 1 January 2017 to
31 December 2017 (“FY2017”).
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
With the goal to strengthen the sustainability approach and

performance of the Group, the Group put tremendous efforts

into listening to both its internal and external stakeholders. The

Group actively collects feedback from its stakeholders to maintain

a high standard of sustainability within the Group, while also

building a trustful and supporting relationship with them. The

Group connects with its stakeholders through their preferred

communication channels as listed in the table below.

Government and regulatory —

authorities

UG B B A -

Shareholders -
i3z -

Employees -
1 &

Compliance with laws and
regulations

Support economic development
[ESRENE Y S ]

SRR R

Return on investments
Corporate governance
Business compliance
B[ i

floE SCRTE

EHEH

Employees’ compensation and
benefits

Career development

Health and safety in working
environment

8 54 A5 e A A

EE S

Tl RRE R 22 22 i) TAR BRI

i &2 5

Ty TN AL B R A B RO e KRB A
S F B IR BE L A ER BAN IR B R A
ASE B E B ) R E R R > DU
A SR R A AR R R B AR R AR o [R] IRE B g
SR EAR KRB RIR o AEEIER T K
IRIEpStHIE S EEEEIGe ik 3

— Supervision on complying with local
laws and regulations

— Routing reports and taxes paid

- BB ASHOAE BIER BRI

- M RS BIR

— Regular reports and announcements
— Regular general meetings

— Official website

- EME A

- EMBORKE

- HITHE

— Performance reviews

— Regular meetings and trainings

— Emails, notice boards, hotline,
caring activities with management

- REMH

- EMEE LI

- TR A AR
ST P 1Y) B 1S

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED) &2 8 (4)

Customers — High quality products and services — Customer satisfaction survey
ol — Protect the rights of customers — Face-to-face meetings and on-site
PR i B 5 visits

Suppliers
PEHE

General public

KA

PRI % 5 HER

Fair and open procurement
Win-win cooperation
ISSUNIIA
B £ 1F

Involvement in communities
Business compliance
Environmental protection
awareness

iRt

BN

BRI
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Customer service hotline and email
HE B A

TR % B A 4%

%5 R A5 AR K

Open tendering

Suppliers’ satisfactory assessment
Face-to-face meetings and on-site
visits

Industry seminars
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Regular reports and announcements
Regular general meetings

Official website
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Materiality Assessment

The Group undertakes annual review in identifying and
understanding its stakeholders’” main concerns and material
interests for the ESG Report. In FY2017, the Group engaged
its stakeholders to conduct a materiality assessment survey.
Specifically, internal and external stakeholders were selected
based on their influence and dependence on the Group.
Stakeholders were then invited to express their views and

concerns on a list of sustainability issues via an online survey.

With respect to this ESG Report, the Group identified product
quality assurance and recall percentage, health and safety relating
to products/services and protection of consumer information
and privacy as issues of high importance to both the Group and
its stakeholders. This review helped the Group in prioritising
its sustainability issues, highlighting the material and relevant

aspects, and aligning them with stakeholders’ expectations.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group is committed to ensuring long-term sustainability to
the environment and community where the Group operates. The
Group stringently controlled its emissions and consumption of
resources, and complied with all relevant environmental laws and
regulations in its daily operations. All offices and manufacturing
factories of the Group implemented effective energy conservation

measures to reduce emissions and resource consumption.

This section primarily discloses the Group’s policies, practices,
and quantitative data on emissions, use of resources, the

environment and natural resources in FY2017.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.l.

Emissions

The Group complied with all relevant local environmental
laws as set out in the country where the Group operates. In
FY2017, the Group found no disregard to influential laws
relevant to waste gas or greenhouse gas emissions, water or land

discharging, and hazardous or non-hazardous wastes.

In FY2017, the Group’s total air emission amounted to 2,159
kg of sulfur oxides (“SOx”), 1,879 kg of nitrogen oxides
(“NOx”), and 50,894 kg of particulate matter (“PM”). The
total greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions for Scope 1 (Direct
Emissions), Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emission), and Scope
3 (Paper Waste Indirect Emission) was 2,874 tonnes carbon
dioxide equivalent (“CO.e”), 3,445 tonnes COe, and 264
tonnes CO,e respectively. The Group’s total GHG emissions
amounted to 6,583 tonnes COQe, and the GHG intensity
for the Group was 2.9 tonnes CO,e/employee. Other than
GHG emissions, the Group also emitted 172 tonnes of non-
hazardous solid wastes (with an intensity of 0.08 tonnes/
employee), and 26,173 of non-hazardous wastewater (with
an intensity of 11.5 tonnes/employee) in its operations. The
Group did not generate any hazardous waste. The Group’s

total emissions are summarized in Table 1 below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY BRI VT o A B8 P (A)
(CONTINUED)
A.1. Emissions (Continued) A1, $Ei (%)
Table 1 — Group’s Total Emissions by Category in FY2017 F1— T — LA B A 4 4% 8
ol 3 23 0 48 ki

Air emissions SOx kg 2,159 =
SR Pk i AL N
NOx kg 1,879 -
RAD AN
PM kg 50,894 -
RIF kLT DT
GHG emissions Scope 1 (Direct Emission) tonnes CO,e 2,874 -
1L % S8 PRk R — (PR AW AL RE R
Scope 2 (Energy tonnes CO,e 3,445 -

Indirect Emission)
i 8 — (R B B PR KW EALRE R
Scope 3 (Paper Waste tonnes CO,e 264 -

Indirect Emission)

i = (IR B M PR AWM AL &

Total (Scope 1 & 2 & 3) tonnes CO,e 6,583 2.9
Hwt (HE— R K =) N ME AR AL TR E
Non-hazardous waste Solid waste tonnes 172 0.08
0 E BEY) fE] 8 JEE 4 N
Wastewater tonnes 26,173 11.5
15K N
* Intensity = amount + annual average workforce of the Group * =B - AR AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.1. Emissions (Continued)

BREE I+ 008 e (480)

A1, Heigew (5)

50

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment business

In the manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment
business, the Group is very prudent in controlling all
discharges. Any air emission, wastewater, solid waste, and
noise generated from the manufacturing process were
tightly monitored as they must meet the local emission

standards before discharge.

Air emission from the Group’s manufacturing factories
includes oil fume from canteens. The Group installed fume
purifier to treat oil fume to a density of less than 2.0 mg/
m?, which complies with the PRC fume emission standard of

catering industry, before discharge.

The Group included its GHG emissions data during FY2017
in Table 1 of this report. The Group’s GHG emissions were
mainly from the use of energy (including electricity). The
Group set up internal policies, further described in A.2.
Use of Resources, to reduce energy use and thus the GHG
emissions. In the PRC, the Group also planted trees outside

the manufacturing factories for GHG removal.

The wastewater generated in this business segment
includes only domestic wastewater. The Group installed
sedimentation basin and septic tank to treat wastewater

before discharged to the local sewerage system.

The solid waste generated in this business segment includes
domestic solid wastes and non-hazardous industrial solid
wastes. The method for treating solid waste was to recycle
packaging boxes, cans, glass and metals, before the non-
recyclables were collected by the municipal sanitation
department or qualified recycle company for further

disposal.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.1. Emissions (Continued)

BB W]+ 08 e (40)

A.l. BEi (%)

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment business
(Continued)

To minimises the mechanical noise from the welding
process, the Group adopted effective measures such as
using acoustic equipment, shock absorption equipment
and double soundproof glass. The Group’s manufacturing
factories are also located far away from the residential area,
therefore; the Group was able to comply with the Level 2 of
the PRC noise emission control standard during FY2017.

Tourism development business

The Group is the environmental shuttle bus operator in
Hengshan Mountain scenic area in Hunan Province, PRC.
Before each trip, the Group’s bus drivers remind passengers
to help the Group in protecting the scenic area by keeping
all rubbish inside the car, to be collected by the Group’s
employees at the end of the trip.

The GHG emission of the Group’s tourism development
business is mainly from the use of fuels in its environmental
shuttle buses and from the use of purchased electricity in its
daily business operation. Specific measures taken to reduce
energy use is further described in A.2. Use of Resources.

Investment business

Emissions for the Group’s investment business include GHG
emissions from the use of electricity, and municipal solid
waste and wastewater generated by the employees in the
office. No hazardous waste was generated by the investment
business in FY2017.

GHG emissions for the investment business came from
the use of electricity. Specific measures taken to reduce
electricity consumption in the office, and thus GHG
emissions from this business segment, are further described

in A.2. Use of Resources.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.l.

A.2.

Emissions (Continued)

Investment business (Continued)

The Group is committed to environmental protection in
its daily operations in the office. To reduce the amount
of municipal solid waste generated every day, the Group

implemented the following practices:

o Separates waste at source and recycles as many solid

waste as possible;

o Encourages all employees to reduce the use of

disposable items such as plastic tableware; and
o Advocates reusing of office stationeries.

Any non-recyclable municipal solid wastes are collected and

disposed by the property management.

Since the amount of wastewater generated highly depends
on the amount of water used, the Group adopted specific
measures, further described in the A.2. Use of Resources,
to reduce water consumption. Municipal wastewater was
directly discharged into the property wastewater handling

system.

Winery business

The Group’s Winery business involves the production and
sales of wine and related products in Virginia, United States.
Emissions for this business segment include GHG emissions
from use of energy (gasoline, diesel, and electricity) in
machineries and non-hazardous solid waste. All waste
generated in this business segment are converted into

fertilizers, achieving “zero waste” production line.

Use of Resources

The Group complied with relevant laws and regulations in
relation to the Group’s use of resources during the year
under review. In FY2017, resources consumed by the Group
were electricity, gasoline, diesel, coal, town gas, natural gas,
water, paper, and packaging materials (by paper, plastic,

wood, and glass).
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY BRI W] A B ()
(CONTINUED)
A.2. Use of Resources (Continued) A.2. BIHEF A ()
Table 2 — The Group’s Total Use of Resources in FY2017 Fo— B LR EUAE R A E
U5 B 85

Energy Electricity kWh’000 4,208 1.8
AEIR %] T T LR
Gasoline L 894,357 392.6
Tt 7t
Diesel L 265,520 116.6
el 7t
Coal tonnes 254 0.1
MR L
Towngas m’ 3,110 1.4
FIELER DAV S
Natural gas m? 8,566 3.8
PN AT DS
Water Water tonnes 66,463 29.2
7k K L
Paper Paper tonnes &5 0.03
A i N
Packaging materials By paper tonnes 960 0.4
ARt R N
By plastic tonnes 47 0.02
BIBR L
By wood tonnes 629 0.3
AR A
By glass tonnes 20 0.01
B e N
* Intensity = amount + annual average workforce of the Group * B B AN AR [ 4E ST AT
AETEALK T BB TR A FRA 7] 53

TR LR
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.2.

Use of Resources (Continued)

Electricity

The Group strives to save electricity through
implementation of internal policies and use of advanced
technologies. The Group’s electricity consumption came
from regular operation of the office and machineries at
the manufacturing sites and at the Group’s vineyard. All
subsidiaries of the Group stringently complied with the

Group’s policy of saving energy.

The Group started to replace traditional light bulbs with
electricity-saving light bulbs in the factory manufacturing
area and office area as well as educated its employees about
energy conservation and emission reduction. As the Group
reduced electricity consumption, it also indirectly reduced
GHG emissions. To ensure effective use of electricity, the

Group conducted the following practices:

. Turn office lights off whenever and wherever not
necessary;
. Turn office cooling air-conditioners down or off

whenever not necessary;

o Place posters “Save Electricity, Turn off Lights when

Leaving” in prominent places;

o Clean office equipment such as refrigerator, air-

conditioner regularly to maintain high operating

efficiently;
o Perform regular inspection of the equipment; and
. Encourage the use of staircase instead of taking the lift

for inter-floor traffic.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

(CONTINUED)

A.2. Use of Resources (Continued)
Energy Use
During FY2017, the Group consumed gasoline, diesel,
coal, towngas, and natural gas for transportation and
production purposes. The Group encourages energy saving
through simple measures, such as making the best use of
room to avoid unnecessary transportation, encouraging
its employees to take public transportation for commuting
and replacing highly polluting vehicles with more

environmental-friendly vehicles.

Water

The Group educated its employees on saving water. To
further improve the utilization efficiency of water resources,

the Group adopted the following practices:

. Place posters “Saving Water Resource” in prominent

places to encourage water conservation;

o Collect used water if possible for cooling, floor

cleaning and yard washing;

. Carry out regular leakage tests on water tap, washers

and other defects in the water supply system;
. Fix dripping taps immediately; and

. Turn off water supply system at night and on holidays.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.2.

Use of Resources (Continued)

Paper

Paper is mainly consumed by the Group in its offices.
The Group strives to reduce paper produced at source by

adapting the following practices:

° Use more environmental friendly paper;

o Disseminate information by electronic means (i.e. via

email or e-bulletin boards);

o Set duplex printing as the default mode for most

network printers;

o Think before print: use posters and stickers as
reminder for office employees to avoid unnecessary

printings;

o Place boxes and trays next to photocopiers to collect

single-sided paper for reuse and recycle;

o Give a second chance: encourage employees to use
used paper for draft documents or as scratch paper;

and

O E-mail tips: remind employees to consider the

environment before printing the email.

Packaging Materials
The Group consumed different packaging materials by
types. To reduce the use of packaging materials, the Group

reuses most of the carton boxes.

The Group acknowledge that for wine production and sale
business, there can be large consumption of packaging
material. In order to save the amount of packaging materials
used, the Group not only recycles the bottles, corks and
cardboard boxes whenever possible, but also persist in
using some eco-glass bottles which are more environmental

friendly than normal glass bottles.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
(CONTINUED)

A.3. The Environment and Natural Resources

BB W]+ 08 e (40)

A3, BRIERRARENR

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment business

The main impact on the environment from the manufacture
and sale of electronic fire equipment business was the use of
energy. The Group reduced its impact on the environment
through implementation of energy saving policies and trees
planting outside the building of the Group’s manufacturing

factories.

Tourism development business

The main impact exerted by the Group on the environment
for the tourism development business was the use of
gasoline and diesel in shuttle bus. The Group operates
environmental shuttle buses that exert less impact on the

environment.

Investment business

The main impact on the environment from the investment
business is the indirect GHG emissions through use of
electricity. The Group took effective measures to reduce
electricity consumption in the office and thus the overall

GHG emissions.

Winery business

The main impact exerted by the Group on the environment
for the winery business was the use of electricity, gasoline,
and diesel. The Group regularly upkeep all equipment
to ensure they are operating under high efficiency. The
Group’s vineyard is also surrounded by green plants, so part

of the GHG generated by the Group are offset by the plants.
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B.1. Employment B.1. &M

58

The Group treasures employee’s talent and sees employee’s
talent as the most valuable asset of the Group, the key in
driving success and maintaining sustainability. The Group
strives to provide its employees with a safe and suitable
platform for developing their career professionalism and

advancement.

The Group’s human resources policies strictly adhere to
the applicable employment laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, PRC and United States, including, the Employment
Ordinance, The Federal and Virginia Labour and
Employment Law, Labour Law of the PRC, and the social
security schemes that are enforced by the State Regulations
of the PRC to provide employee benefits. The Group’s
human resources department reviews and updates relevant
company policies regularly in accordance with the latest

laws and regulations.

To attract high-calibre workforce, the Group offers
fair, competitive remuneration and benefits based on
employee’s performance, education level, professional
qualifications, and experiences. The Group also regularly
reference market benchmarks for attracting and retaining
high-calibre workforce. In order to motivate and reward
existing management and employees, the Group formulated
the compensation and benefits system and conducted
regular salary adjustment to ensure employees are
recognised by the Group appropriately with regard to their
work efforts and contributions. Meanwhile, any termination
of employment contract would be based on reasonable and
lawful grounds. The Group strictly prohibit any kinds of

unfair or unreasonable dismissals.

The Group arranges working hours and leaves for its
employees reasonably based local employment laws and
written agreement with employees. In addition to statutory
holidays stipulated by the employment law of the local
government such as the basic paid annual leave, employees
may also be entitled to marriage leave, maternity leave and

compassionate leave.
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Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
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B.1. Employment (Continued) B.1. 1@ (%)

In terms of internal coaching and communication, effective
two-way communication between the general employee
and managerial employee is highly encouraged. Employees
maintain timely and smooth communication with the
management, colleagues and partners of the companies
within the Group through bulletin board posting, email,
training and meeting. The Group established the employee
union to provide timely recommendations to management
regarding quality, environment, and occupational
health and safety management aspects. The interactive
communication system benefited the Group’s decision-
making process and resulted in a barrier-free employer-

employee relationship.

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is committed
to create a fair, respectful and diverse working environment
by promoting anti-discrimination and equal opportunity in
terms of all human resources and employment decisions.
For instance, training and promotion opportunities,
dismissals and retirement policies are irrespective of
their gender, race, age, disability, family status, marital
status, sexual orientation, religion beliefs, nationality
or any other non-job related factors as stated in the
Group’s anti-discrimination regulations. The Group’s
equal opportunities policy enforces zero tolerance to any
workplace discrimination, harassment or victimisation
in accordance to relevant government legislation,
ordinances and regulations such as Hong Kong’s Disability
Discrimination Ordinance and Sex Discrimination
Ordinance. The employees have rights to report any
suffered discrimination to the Group’s human resources
department or employee union through oral or written
communication. Disciplinary actions would be taken against
any employee if there is any non-compliance or breach of

legislation related to the equal opportunities policies.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

B.1.

B.2.

Employment (Continued)

To cultivate employees’ sense of belonging, the Group
provides additional employee benefits such as medical
insurance and annual physical check-up. To cater the
needs of employees working at the Group’s manufacturing
facilities, additional employee benefits may include the
provision of working meals allowance, well-equipped
dormitories, transportation between working sites and
dormitories. In FY2017, the Group hosted a series of
activities for its employees, including annual dinner,
outing, sport competition and travels. These events helped
the Group’s employees in stress relieve, and in building

cohesion among its employees.

Health and Safety

To provide and maintain good working condition, and
a safe and healthy working environment, the Group’s
safety and health policies are in line with various laws and
regulations stipulated by local government, including
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, the
Production Safety Laws of the PRC, Occupational Disease
Prevention Law in PRC, and Occupational Health and
Safety Management System (OHSAS). In order to ensure
the health of its employees, the Group regularly organised
body check-up, and installed exhaust ventilation system in
the manufacturing factories. Since 2015, the Group has
conducted and passed the environmental and occupational
health and safety management. For the current production
lines, the Group installed smoke pipe system and
provided professional masks to workers to prevent lead
smoke hazards. In accordance with the national laws
and regulations on prevention of occupational diseases,
the Group provided professional earplugs and use the
work shifting system to protect the health of its employee
working on testing sound and light alarms. For special
types of operating positions, the Group regularly organised
employee assessment and trainings to help protect them

from health and safety hazard.
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Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
B.2. Health and Safety (Continued)
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The Group set up and strictly followed different internal
manuals, such as site safety management standards, safety
production accident investigation and management system,
labour protection management system, safety production
management system and other procedures documents,
to meet the specific safety requirement and comply with
the related fire safety regulations, labour protection
management regulations and the safety regulations in

production site.

The Group aims to achieve an accident-free workplace
environment by prohibiting smoking and liquor drinking
in the workplace, carrying out regular cleaning of air-
conditioning systems and disinfection treatment of carpets,
putting up safety warning signs, and holding regular safety
work meetings and safety inspection. The Group strives to
provide and maintain a clean, tidy, smoke-free, non-toxic,
non-hazardous, healthy and safe working environment. The
production director and safety management committee
in the production sites supervise and ensure proper
implementation of the health & safety measures. Besides,
the Group holds regular health and safety work trainings
in emergency management, hazardous materials handling,
machine safeguarding and occupational health and safety
areas to remind its employees to minimise the risk of
accidents and to enhance the employees’ health and safety

awareness.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)

B.3.

B.4.

Development and Training

The Group has a training centre located at Hebei, which
offers different training and development opportunities
to its employees, for strengthening employee’s work-
related skills. In 2017, the Group held a range of regular
trainings and development programmes to encourage
lifelong learning. For newly hired employees, the Group
provided comprehensive orientation training to introduce
the Group’s corporate history, culture, business policies
and procedures and product knowledge. As for experienced
employees, the Group offered technical and operational
training such as production line training, new product
introduction, design of gas fire extinguishing system and gas
detection testing. The Group also encourages its employees
to attend external safety training and examinations, with
aims to enhancing their competitiveness in the working
place and expanding their capacity through continuous

learning.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong, Labour Law of the PRC, Prohibition of
Child Labour of the PRC and other related labour laws
and regulations in Hong Kong, China and other regions to

prohibit any child and forced labour employment.

To combat against illegal employment on child labour,
underage workers and forced labour, prior the confirmation
of employment, the Group’s human resources department
requires job applicants to provide valid identity documents
to ensure that the job applicants are lawfully employable.
The Group formulated guidelines such as “Prohibition
of Engaging Child Labour Administrative Provisions and
Remediation Procedures” to completely eradicate child

labour, underage workers and forced labour.
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Operating Practices
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B.5. Supply Chain Management B.5. 3t g 45

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and
vital to maintain and manage a sustainable and reliable
supply chain. The Group achieves this goal by conducting
comprehensive evaluation of potential suppliers, and by
investigating selected suppliers through site visiting. The
Group checks on the supplier’s production capacity, price,
quality of raw materials, quality of service, supply record,

technical capabilities and other customer reviews.

Before the Group enters a purchase framework agreements,
the Group conducts a detail assessment with its suppliers
to ensure that they complied with local laws and
regulations, and fulfilled their social and environmental
responsibility. The Group requires suppliers to provide
business license, tax registration certificate, organisation
code, product production licenses, financial information
and other business certificates such as RoHS Standards,
Quality Management System Certification (ISO9001),
Environmental Management System Certification
(ISO14001), occupational health management system
certification (ISO18001) and China Compulsory

Certification (“3C Certificate”) for internal assessment.

The purchasing and quality control department performed
annual evaluation on the suppliers’ performance with
regards to the price, quality, and delivery time. Qualified
suppliers become “approved suppliers” and collaborate with
the Group in providing high-quality products. To avoid
the disruption in production, the Group maintains at least
three suppliers for each raw material. The Procurement
Department sets out the purchase forecast and places orders

in advance to ensure timely delivery.

For any non-compliance with the Group’s standard, the
Group would urge suppliers to take corrective actions
immediately. The Group would closely monitor the
implementation of the remedial measures to ensure that

they are carried out properly and effectively.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Operating Practices (Continued)

GRLELE L E )
BB ()

B.6. Product Responsibility B.6. EEMEE

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire equipment business

In order to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
consumers, and to strengthen the supervision and control of
the quality of products, the Group complied with related law
and regulations on products safety and health, advertising
and labelling including Law of the PRC on Product Quality,
Fire Prevention Law of the PRC and Metrology Law of PRC.

Great importance is attached to the product quality and
safety of the Group’s fire safety products. As the Group’s
products are classified as China Compulsory Certification
(“CCC”) products, the Group’s quality management system
adheres to a number of national and internationally
recognised technical specifications such as GB/T19001-
2008, GB16808-2008, GB/T24001-2004, CCCF-HZBJ-01 and
GA1061-2013 in production of fire equipment. The Group’s
Quality Control Department is responsible for quality
inspection and product testing including leakage test,
basic function test and alarm sensitivity test based on the
product graphs, technical requirement and methodologies.
Following the internal operating manuals, such as record
control procedures, product monitoring and measurement
control procedures and production process control
program, the Group ensures its products are safe to use and

meet the needs of its customers.

By implementing a full range of quality control in the
production process along with continuous investment put
into research and development, the Group aims to serve
high quality products beyond customers’ expectation, under
the “Sincere cooperation with mutually benefits” principle.
The Group adopted a rapid approach in addressing any
product deficiencies and in recalling issues. The Group
solves the deficiencies problem and provides replacement
within 24 hours. Every month, the Group conducts regular
inspection of the users’ equipment, and collect feedback
from users to ensure the fire systems are in the best working

condition.
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Operating Practices (Continued) B ()
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued) B.6. AR (4)
Tourism development business A S T IR T

The Group strictly complied with related laws and
regulations in rendering of travel and leisure services
including Regulation of the PRC on Road Transport,
Provisions on the Administration of Road Passenger
Transport and Passenger Stations and Provisions on the
Administration of Motor Vehicle Maintenance. The Group
actively develops tourist sight projects, located at the famous
scenic area, and provides the environmental shuttle bus for

visitors at Hengshan Mountain scenic area.

The Group established the safety production committee
(“Safety Committee”) to lead the overall safety work in
tourism development. The Group formulated the daily
quality inspection, reward and punishment standards,
administration of operation service, safety production
management system and daily quality inspection log. The
quality inspection department monitors the quality of
service, and prepare monthly service quality analysis to
identify problems and implementation of rectification.
Furthermore, the Safety Committee preforms annual
assessment for traffic safety indicators: frequency of general
liability accident, frequency of accidental death, frequency
of accidental injury, direct economic loss on accident and

frequency of minor accident.

The Group established the safety maintenance committee
to implement the Group’s safety management system. The
safety maintenance committee monitors and reports the
vehicle maintenance plan on a monthly basis, and performs
vehicle maintenance tasks, such as annual inspection and
safety technical assessment, to ensure the transportation
vehicles are in good condition. Under the normal
circumstances, the Group’s transportation vehicles comply
with the GB7258-87 “Safety Technical Conditions for Motor
Vehicles”, GB4785-84 “Numbers, Positions and Colours
of the External Lighting and Light Signalling Devices for
Motor Vehicles and Their Trailers” and JT3111-85 “Highway

passenger transport general technical conditions”.
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The Group strictly abides by the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, Law on Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests of the PRC and related laws in other operating
regions, to ensure customers’ rights are protected.
Information collected would only be used for the purpose
for which it has been collected for, and customers would
be told on how the data is being used. The Group prohibits
provision of customer information to a third party without
authorisation from its customers. Customers have the
rights to review and revise their data, and to opt out from
any direct marketing events. All collected personal data
is treated confidentially, and is securely kept. The Group
places strong emphasis on confidentiality obligations, and
employees are told about the legal consequences for the

breaches of obligations.

Winery business

Upholding the core value of “A Taste of History”, the Group
strives to provide good quality wines to its customers. All
products are inspected by the Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and
Trade Bureau (“TTB”) Labelling Compliance, Occupational
Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) Complications,
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) and Food and
Drug Administration (“FDA”) Compliance. To ensures the
Group’s products were manufactured, correctly labelled
and marketed in accordance with the Federal laws and
regulations, the Group’s wine labels have to obtain approval
from the TTB and go through lab analysis. The Group also
monitors the alcohol and acidity level of its wine to ensure
that the wines the Group sells are safe to consume. Quality

of the Group’s wines were tested monthly.
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Operating Practices (Continued) B ()
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued) B.6. B AE(4H)
Investment business e
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Operating Practices (Continued) BHEERE(H)
B.6. Product Responsibility (Continued) B.6. AR (4)
The Group ALEH

The Group issued internal guidelines to ensure the
marketing department is providing accurate information
to its customers. The Group complied with the relevant
laws and regulations such as Advertising Law of the PRC.
The Group strictly prohibits any misrepresentation or
exaggeration of offerings made by the Group’s employees.
The Group’s legal counsel reviews all marketing
information and helps prevent violations of advertising and

labelling practices.

The Group grasps the needs of its customers through weekly
meetings, new product introduction meetings, customer
visiting and customer hotline. Annual customer satisfaction
survey was sent to dealers and customers. The research and
development department shall promptly deal with customer
complaints and take appropriate action for meeting the new
product quality requirements. Besides, the Group’s after-
sales department and quality control department perform
evaluation and investigation upon receive of customer
complaints, identify the cause, and provide its customers
with a prompt reply. The Group strives to improve its
products and services’ quality by collecting customers’
feedback and conduct regular monitoring throughout the

production process.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Operating Practices (Continued)

B.7. Anti-corruption

68

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and
working environment, the Group strictly adhere to the laws
and regulations relating to anti-corruption and bribery,
irrespective of the area or country where the Group
conducts its business such as Law of the PRC on Anti-money
Laundering, Hong Kong’s Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
and American Anti-Corruption Act. The Group formulated
a comprehensive operation system, which prevent any
bribery, extortion, fraud and other illegal activities, as
stipulated in operational manuals such as operation
services and audit management system and procurement
management methods. All employees are expected to
discharge their duties with integrity and self-discipline, and
they should abstain from engaging in any activities related

to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Furthermore, the Group set up an internal whistleblowing
policy to enable employees to report any suspicious
activities. The management would conduct investigations
under confidential, objective and instant principle to
protect the Group’s interests. The Group advocates a
confidentiality mechanism to protect the whistle-blowers
from threats and any disadvantage to the whistle-blowers’
employment relationship. Where criminality is suspected,
it will be reported to the relevant regulators or law

enforcement authorities.

Community

B.8. Community Investment

The Group understands well the importance of making a
positive contribution to the communities where the Group
operates, and sees the interests of the communities as
one of its social responsibilities. The Group is committed
to promoting the economic development and living
environment of the community, and insists on helping
individuals and organizations within the community. The
Group is also keen to support social welfare activities and
community care projects, and encourages its own employees

to participate in these activities and projects.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

Community (Continued)

B.8. Community Investment (Continued)

The Group’s winery business regularly offers free culturally
themed gathering events for its surrounding community
as well as donates to local schools and local non-profit
organisations such as the Association for the Protection of
Women’s Rights. In FY2017, the Group won third place in
planning activities for the Association for the Protection of
Women’s Rights. In addition, any business activities by the
Group’s winery business would take into consideration of

the local community by first obtaining their approval.

The Group’s fire system subsidiary fulfils its social
responsibility by providing plenty of jobs to its local
community, especially in creating job opportunities for
local residents. The Group’s fire system subsidiary has
been recognised by the local community for providing jobs
and solving employment issues. The Group’s fire system
subsidiary was also awarded for always fulfilling its legal
responsibility by paying corporate tax. The Group’s fire
system subsidiary also pays high attention on environmental
protection. The Group’s fire system subsidiary has been
regularly collecting the recyclable waste and selling them
to local recycle station for more environmental-friendly
disposal. In FY2017, the Group’s fire system subsidiary
provided materials support to employee’s facing financial
difficulties, donated fire alarms to nearby Fire Department,

and donated to local charity event.

The Group’s tourism subsidiary has been awarded as
the excellent company in Hunan Province for several
successive years. The Group’s tourism subsidiary is an “AAA”
enterprise in credit quality, an “A” enterprise in tax credit
quality, and an excellent enterprise in Hengyang City. The
Group’s environmental shuttle bus service achieved the
“Pioneer Workers” honorary title by the Safety Department
of Hengyang City, Hunan Province. The Group’s tourism
subsidiary sponsors internal employees that are facing
financial difficulties as well as provides scholarships to
students in need of financial support. For eight successive
years, the Group has been providing free shuttle bus service
for local students, especially during the examinations

period.
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The Directors hereby present their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is engaged in the marketing and sale of embedded
system products and related products during the year. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and analysis
of business review of these activities, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 8 to 20 of this annual report. Such discussion forms part
of this report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 95 to 96.
The state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 97
to 98 and note 35(a) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2016: Nil) for the year.

No interim dividend was declared in 2017 (2016: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 5. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. Shares were issued
during the year on placing from general mandate. Details about the
issue of shares are also set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BANK LOANS

Details of the bank loans of the Group are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the Company Law of the PRC which oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
note 35(b) to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, an amount of approximately RMB562.5
million (2016: RMB450.0 million) standing to the credit of
the Company’s capital reserve account and an amount of
approximately RMB76.8 million (2016: RMB76.8 million)
standing to the credit of the Company’s statutory reserve funds, as
determined under the PRC accounting standards and regulations,
were available for distribution by way of future capitalisation
issue in accordance with the PRC Company Law. The Company
had, as described in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, retained profits of approximately RMB49.8 million
(2016: RMB81.6 million) as at 31 December 2017. Details of the
distributable reserves are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less than 30% of the total sales for the year.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
36.6% (2016: 36.3%) of the total purchases for the year while the
largest supplier accounted for 16.0% (2016: 16.1%) of the total
purchases for the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
(CONTINUED)

The Group has sold certain products to related companies
controlled by Peking University. Details of transactions are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. Save as
aforesaid, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

DONATIONS
The Group had made donations of RMB972,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB672,000).

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors during the year and at the year end
are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong
Ms. Zheng Zhong
Mr. Ip Wing Wai

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ni Jinlei

Ms. Xue Li

Mr. Xiang Lei (appointed on 31 July 2017)
Mr. Zhao Xuedong (resigned on 24 May 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Shao Jiulin

Mr. Li Juncai

Mr. Lin Yan

Mr. Li Chonghua

Supervisors

Mr. Fan Yimin
Professor Yang Jinguan
Mr. Ouyang Zishi

Mr. Lu Qingfeng

Ms. Zhou Min

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Directors and
Supervisors are eligible for re-election.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Profile of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 21 to 29.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Mr. Xiang Lei was appointed for a term commercing from 31 July
2017 until conclusion date of 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company. Each of other Directors and Supervisors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 30 June 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has
any existing or proposed service contracts with the Company as at
31 December 2017, excluding contracts expiring or determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the written annual confirmation of its
independence pursuant to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company, based on such confirmation, considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to
which the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or
Supervisor of the company had a material interest, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Saved as disclosed under the section “Connected transactions”
below, there is no material contract between the Group and the
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF wEH - BEHRERITEAN BRI G &
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT HH 8 Py =2 £ B W AT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests (including interests in R _&E—L4FE+ A =+—H > &EFHF - EH
shares and short positions) of Directors, Supervisors, and chief A2 7] e w47 BN B 7 AR 2\ 7] 3 H A Bk
executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares & (/& 26 i3 5 M B 56 ([ 3525 KW B 15
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the il ]) S5XVH#R) 2 Bty KA BB A - HEA MR 5%
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the & ¥ [ 1] &6 491 5 352 e me B i 45 2 =) 4w it
“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company  s{ iR GEM LT M I %5 5. 4605 2 B 25 (AL 45 %
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to  H#E4E ZIRA) WF -

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule 5.46 of the

GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the A</ ] 3% i Ji B b BA Bt 4 2 47
Company

Director
fx
Mr. Zhang Wanzhong Beneficial owner and 205,414,000 - 205,414,000 99.34% - 14.90%
REDEE beneficiary of trust
5ok TN B4 IN
Supervisor
B3
Ms. Zhou Min Beneficiary of trust 205,414,000 - 205,414,000 29.34% - 14.90%
il en faHtZaA
74 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

Annual Report 2017



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

&

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)
Note:

The above Director and Supervisor are taken to be interested in the
issued share capital of the Company through their respective interests as
beneficiaries, among other beneficiaries, of Heng Huat trust (“Heng Huat
Trust”). By a declaration of Heng Huat Trust made as a deed on 19 July
2000, Mr. Xu Zhendong, Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and Ms. Liu Yue (who has
been replaced by Mr. Xu Zhixiang since 9 May 2003 as a trustee) declared
that they held the shares of Heng Huat Investments Limited (“Heng
Huat”) as trustees for the benefits of over 300 employees of Beijing Beida
Jade Bird Software System Co., Ltd. (“Jade Bird Software”), Beida Jade
Bird and Beijing Beida Yu Huan Microelectronics System Engineering
Co., Ltd. and their respective subsidiaries and associated companies and
the Company. Heng Huat is beneficially interested in the entire issued
share capital of Dynamic Win Assets Limited (“Dynamic Win”), and
is taken to be interested in 205,414,000 shares of the Company which
Dynamic Win is interested. Mr. Xu Zhendong, Mr. Zhang Wanzhong and
Mr. Xu Zhixiang (who replaced Ms. Liu Yue as a trustee on 9 May 2003
upon Ms. Liu Yue’s resignation as a trustee on the same date) are trustees
holding 60, 20 and 20 shares out of 100 shares in the issued share capital
of Heng Huat. Each of Mr. Xu Zhendong and Mr. Xu Zhixiang was former
Director who resigned on 5 May 2015.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rule
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules as at 31 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to
any Director and Supervisor or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and Supervisors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2017, the following interests and short positions
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the
Company

32 S e SR B LAt N R T A B HE R Mt
iy Z HESE B A

HoEF—LET A= —H o REESER
WA Wk 1263 336 1A ML RE AR 28 W ZE A7 L 2 M i
FLME A - REER R SUAC L W C AT A 2 HE 4R
SR

A% 2 ) 9 B B A TR By 2 4 AT

Peking University (a)  Through controlled corporations

YN BRZ LR AT

Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd. (a)  Through controlled corporations

ERBEEEAHRA BTN

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Software (a)  Through controlled corporations
System Co., Ltd. BT AT

EFIRT RERAEREHRAA

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Limited (a)  Directly beneficially owned

ERIRT RAREMEA R BB A

Beida Microelectronics Investment (a)  Interest through controlled
Limited corporations

ERMETHEARAF BT PN F 2

Sanya Jade Bird Youfu Jidi (a)  Interest through a controlled
Construction Service Co., Ltd corporation

SIE R R SR AR AR BT YER A7 2 i

76 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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85,000,000 12.14% 6.16%
85,000,000 12.14% 6.16%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER 2 BB R B Al N - e oy B R R e
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN iy 2 HE & B ik A (#)

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the  ZAN/% W] 3% 8 i B M BH B 10 =2 4743 (%)
Company (Continued)

Haikou Jade Bird Yuanwang Sci-Tech (a)  Directly beneficially owned 85,000,000 12.14% 6.16%
Development Co., Ltd EHEGHA
BOHSEEMERRARAA
Grand East (H.K.) Limited Directly beneficially owned 110,000,000 15.71% 7.98%
1A% (&) AR HEHGHA
Heng Huat Investments Limited (b)  Through a controlled corporation 205,414,000 29.34% 14.90%
B —RZLEH A
Dynamic Win Assets Limited (b)  Directly beneficially owned 205,414,000 29.34% 14.90%
HBEEARAE B
Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited () ~ Through a controlled corporation 84,586,000 12.08% 6.13%
KU HHARAE BB RZEMAA
New View Venture Limited (c)  Directly beneficially owned 84,586,000 12.08% 6.13%
HHEGHA
Asian Technology Investment Company Directly beneficially owned 50,000,000 7.14% 3.63%
Limited iyt o]
ST BB A TR 7

AETRACKH B TR R A LA ) 77
B LA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)
Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

Peking University is taken to be interested in 14.50% of the
total issued share capital of the Company through the following
companies:

(i) 115 million promoters Shares (representing approximately
8.34% of the Company’s total issued share capital) held by
Beida Jade Bird, which is 46% beneficially owned by Jade Bird
Software. Jade Bird Software is 48% beneficially owned by
Beida Asset Management Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary
of Peking University;

(ii) 85 million promoters Shares (representing approximately
6.16% of the Company’s total issued share capital) in which
Haikou Jade Bird Yuanwang Sci-Tech Development Co., Ltd.
(“Haikou Jade Bird”) is interested. Jade Bird Software owns
100% equity interest in Beida Microelectronics Investment
Limited which in turn owns 46% equity interest in Sanya Jade
Bird Youfu Jidi Construction Service Co., Ltd which in turn
owns 100% equity interest in Haikou Jade Bird; and

(iii) Mr. Zhang Wanzhong is a supervisor of Beida Jade Bird.

The promoters Shares are held by Dynamic Win, which is
beneficially wholly-owned by Heng Huat. Please refer to the note to
the section “Directors, Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above for
further details of Heng Huat.

The promoters Shares are held by New View Venture Limited,
which is wholly-owned by Mongolia Energy Corporation Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors and

Supervisors, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’,

Supervisors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in

shares and underlying shares” above, had registered interests or

short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2017.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 5
November 2014, the Company and Jade Bird Software entered
into the equity interest transfer agreement on 5 November 2014,
pursuant to which the Company acquired 40% equity interest in
Beijing Shengxin Runcheng at a consideration of RMB400,000.
Jade Bird Software is a holding company of Beida Jade Bird,
a then substantial shareholder of the Company. Jade Bird
Software is therefore an associate of Beida Jade Bird and a then
connected person of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.
Completion of the transfer took place during the year.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 30
August 2017, Chuangi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. (“Chuanqi
Tourism”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into the guarantee contract with a bank to provide
joint liability guarantee (under the PRC laws) for the principal,
interests and other relevant fees of the loan of RMB190 million
borrowed by Chuanqi (Hunan) Enterprise Development Co., Ltd.
(“Chuangqi Enterprise”), an associate of the Group. On the same
date, Chuanqi Cultural Development Group Co., Ltd. (“Chuangqi
Cultural”), as the counter-guarantor, and Chuangqi Tourism, as
the guarantor, entered into the counter-guarantee contract to
guarantee the repayment of the full amount paid by Chuangqi
Tourism under the guarantee contract. Chuanqi Tourism is held
as to 35% by Chuangqi Cultural, Chuanqi Cultural is a connected
person of a subsidiary of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules. Mr. Chen Zongbing (“Mr. Chen”), a director of Chuangqi
Tourism and his associate together indirectly hold in aggregate
more than 50% equity interest in Chuanqi Cultural, Chuanqi
Cultural is also an associate of Mr. Chen (a connected person
at the subsidiary level of the Company) under the GEM Listing
Rules. Chuangqi Cultural has an indirect 49% equity interest
in Chuanqi Enterprise, Chuanqi Enterprise is an associate of
Chuangqi Cultural under the GEM Listing Rules. As a result,
the provision of the guarantee under the guarantee contract by
Chuanqi Tourism to the bank in respect of its relevant loan of
RMB190 million to Chuanqi Enterprise as the borrower and the
provision of the counter-guarantee under the counter-guarantee
contract by Chuangqi Cultural to Chuanqi Tourism constituted
connected transactions of the Company.

PR AZ 5
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions as
disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements do
not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules, which are required to comply with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and Supervisors
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had interests in a business which competes or may
compete with the businesses of the Group, or may have any
conflicts of interest with the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group strictly complies with applicable labour law and
regulations both in the PRC and Hong Kong. Competitive
remuneration package with medical and travel insurance offered
to the staff. Adequate retirement fund and provident fund are
contributed timely.

The emolument policy of the Directors is structured by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to their functions and
contributions to the Group.

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the GEM Listing Rules.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 17.24 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

As at
assist

31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of financial
ance provided by the Group to its affiliated companies,

including (i) shareholder’s loan provided to an affiliated

company; and (ii) guarantees provided by the Group in relation
to bank facilities of its affiliated companies is RMB536,400,000
in total, which exceeds 8% in the asset ratio as defined under

Rules
assist

19.08(1) of the GEM Listing Rules. Details on the financial
ance and guarantee as at 31 December 2017 are set out

below:

3% GEM L 1l B H0 58 17.24 % ) 3 28
& B
RoE—HEF A=+ —H > AEEEE
T N A B B B BT 1) BT B
B AT Z R AR (i) AS 4R B B BB A
Al ZARATRVE TR 2 IR A IR EH A A
[ ¥ 536,400,000 G - # i GEM L 7 81 HI 25
19.08(1) T R EMEELRLZ8% o h F
—LEF A= BB RIERZ
FEREIE

Changsha Songya Lake Construction Investment Co., Ltd.
¢
AP WA SR AT PR v (TAAHE W Rt )

Songya Lake Construction”)

Chuangqi Enterprise

ATk

Notes:

The amount includes (i) a guarantee of RMB200,000,000 to Bank A
and Bank B by the Company; (ii) a guarantee of RMB113,000,000 to
Bank C by Chuanqi Tourism, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company; and (iii) an interest-free and unsecured shareholder’s
loan of RMB33,400,000 from Chuanqi Tourism to Songya Lake
Construction. The total amount of the facilities from Bank A and
Bank B to Songya Lake Construction is RMB786,000,000 and
the total amount of the facilities from Bank C to Songya Lake
Construction is RMB800,000,000.

The amount includes a guarantee of RMB190,000,000 to a bank by
Chuanqi Tourism. The total amount of the facilities from the bank
to Chuangi Enterprise is RMB190,000,000.

346,400
(note 1) (§E1)

190,000
(note 2) (5£2)

536,400

:w
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 17.24 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES (CONTINUED)

The audited combined statement of financial position of
the above affiliated companies and the Group’s attributable
interests in the above affiliated companies based on its audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in the PRC, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies, are presented below:

MRIRGEM L1l B 58 17.24 05 1 B 8%
#RH(%1)

RE LWL A ERE - F - bET A
St F R 2 R A A A R (R
2 R I A S gk O 2
SLOE ) o bl ) 2 SR A D B
TR B A S 0 R A B G % ) 2 3
2IMF

Assets G
Liabilities fafd
Net assets FEE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after reporting period of the
Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on pages
30 to 43 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Environmental, social and governance report of the Company is
set out on pages 44 to 69 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of the
Directors or an associate company. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’, Supervisors’ and
senior management’s liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors, Supervisors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ERFHY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

RSM Nelson Wheeler was appointed as independent auditor of
the Company upon the retirement of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited in 2015. On 26 October 2015, our auditor changed the
name under its practices to RSM Hong Kong and accordingly has
signed its report under its new name.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by RSM who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ni Jinlei
Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
20 March 2018
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
BB

To the Shareholders:

We have monitored the operation and management of the
Group as well as the act of the Directors and senior management
faithfully throughout the year ended 31 December 2017. We have
discharged our supervisory duties under the general principle
of honesty and integrity and have strictly complied with the
requirements of the “Company Law of the PRC”, GEM Listing
Rules and the Articles. We are accountable to the Shareholders
and have safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders, the
Group and its staff.

The Supervisors during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Mr. Fan Yimin
Professor Yang Jinguan
Mr. Ouyang Zishi

Mr. Lu Qingfeng

Ms. Zhou Min

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, all Supervisors

are eligible for re-election.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, we have held 4
meetings of the sixth session. The following table set out the

attendance of each member in these meetings:

BB

WME-Z-EHEF+ A=+ —HILFEE K
BHEGCDEHEEAEN 2 EEREH > D
LERESGEHE KRB - AEHG W
R IR R B AT B BT > A Rk [ AR
%1 GEM LR AI R e A 2 BE - AR
FEMBRRAT > WORBEKRE - AEE X
1 B < HEsE -

R RBEARE B BRI

BRI
BBl
NGt
B
JE g+

REEREAM A > T A BEF A SR E
AT o

wWE-F-LHFE+ A=+ —HILFEH
AN B B AT T MR o TR S A
JE H % e 2 DL

Mr. Fan Yimin u— R
Professor Yang Jinguan W BB
Mr. Ouyang Zishi N
Mr. Lu Qingfeng BEYEE
Ms. Zhou Min Attt

We convened the four meetings to review the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016, the three months ended 31 March 2017, the
six months ended 30 June 2017 and the nine months ended 30
September 2017 respectively.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
gy

Subsequent to the year end, we convened the eighth meeting of
the sixth session to review the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

As a result of the work done above, we are in a position to express

our independent opinion in respect of the following matters:

1. The first, second and third quarterly results and annual
results of the Group for 2017 have reflected the financial
and operating positions of the Group on a true and fair

basis.

2. The senior management of the Group has not abused their
authority to prejudice the interests of the Shareholders,
the Group and its staff, nor contravened the laws and

regulations and the Articles in discharging its duties.

3. The Group was not threatened with any major litigation
nor was there any matter that we had intervened with or

threatened against the Board.

4. The connected transactions of the Group were fair and
reasonable. No act prejudicing the interests of the Group
has been identified.

We would like to express our appreciation for the strenuous
supports given by the Shareholders, the Directors and all staff to

our work during the year.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Fan Yimin

Chairman

Beijing, the PRC
20 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A B b e

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

BEIJING BEIDA JADE BIRD UNIVERSAL SCI-TECH COMPANY
LIMITED

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
95 to 212, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A B B e

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1.  Impairment of goodwill
2. Recoverability of trade receivables
3. Equity method accounting for associates and joint ventures
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A B b e

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
I S o 2 I

1. Impairment of goodwill
1. mEEE

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

AR AT B B R M AE19

The Group has goodwill of RMB17,557,000 attributable
to the manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment segment cash generating unit (“CGU”).
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually.
B4 TR T M By SO ) B 8 R TR B R R
7 (T 324 7 A B0 ) M6 A5 B 8 2y A IR 17,557,000
TG o BLAE AR B AT B E R o

Management has concluded that there is no
impairment in respect of the goodwill of this CGU. This
conclusion was based on the value in use models that
requires significant management judgement in making
assumptions about future revenues, profit margins and
growth rates and in selecting an appropriate market
discount rate.

Y L A A % B < A 67 Y R I S o B o %A
sy LA 1l PR (AR 2 23 St ol P A (0 21 10 L A B
RACHaE ~ AT AR B R AR G - DL R PR T
S B0 R IR 5 A P A L R o

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

AR S T B S I 7 X

Our procedures included:

HEHENETEE

— Assessing the integrity of the valuation model;

— WAl A AR A AT SE A

— Challenging the reasonableness of management’s
key assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

- MRS AT SRR > B A R
B A BRSO

— Reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and considering the
historical accuracy of those budgets;

—  Toh AR SRR o Bl ASH R TR > 05 E
%4 U LA A HE R

— Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rate
used with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists; and

- FEEFENEAESERAHIT - WGP REBLR
WEE s K

— Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in

relation to the goodwill impairment assessment.

T R B YRR 1 T A



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
LS

2. Recoverabilily of trade recetvables

2. JENCE SRR AT 1

Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements

ZARAFE B R 7127

The Group has trade and bills receivables with
aggregate values of RMB733,313,000 before the
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB81,045,000 as at
31 December 2017. The Group generally allows credit
period ranges from 3 to 6 months for its customers. As
at 31 December 2017, the trade and bill receivables of
RMB405,315,000 were past due but not impaired. This
has increased the risk that the carrying values of trade
receivables may be impaired.

HAEER —F—LHE+ 2 H =+ — BB IR A
F 781,045,000 7C HiJ (1 5 52 5 W 3 B S8 A (B TR O
733,313,0000C °  HARME —RAG T EF T =28 A
MfEEM - R_F—-LFE+A=+—H  BKRESE
B R R H405,315,00070 58 C i W1 R BLE - 453
I RE AT 2 oy A R T (T ) L DR P JL B

During the year, an allowance for doubtful debts of
RMB13,002,000 was charged to profit or loss.
AR TR A B0 BR R AR A AL RE13,002,0007C ©

Management concluded that there is no further
impairment in respect of the trade receivables.
This conclusion required significant management
judgement in assessing the recoverability of past due
trade receivables.

L TR A B DR M A DR o A R
L A 2 R A B R T A [ B A e RO
B o

I5A 3 % it =% 0H (4)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

B AT T vb 3 B S o o JE A R B 5

Our procedures included:

HHENEP A

— Obtaining confirmations from debtors on a
sample basis to verify the accuracy of the debtor
balances;

- BERE RS NS RERR - DA U5 A A5 R e e
7%

— Re-computing the accuracy of the ageing analysis

on a sample basis;

- B IR A AR A A E AR

— Reviewing the receipt of cash after the year end

for significant debtor balances;

— TP A B AR W B R R A\ S R PO A B

— Assessing the impairment allowance made by
management after taking account of the past
collection experience of the Group;

- R PR T R SRR SRR A R 1R Y
AR A

— Discussing with management the credit status of
those debtors with overdue balances including
any collection actions planned and loss provision
made; and

- SRLAEHR R A A R RO AR R UL > AR
AT ATt BT B Bt Sl R 5 e

— Assessing the adequacy of the credit risk
disclosures in relation to trade receivables.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
I S o 2 I

3. Equily method accounting for associates and joint ventures

3. BUEFEL ARG E R R Bl ik

Refer to notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated f[inancial

statements

R E B IR B M 722 K% 23

The Group has investments in associates and joint
ventures of RMB685,366,000 and RMB316,421,000,
respectively, as at 31 December 2017.
BEBMR T -tHF+_HA=+—-HIRBEELAKLE
A 2 0 4 2 Bl 2 A R 685,366,000 70 K A IR
316,421,0007T °

Certain of the associates and joint ventures are
engaged in the investing in unlisted equity securities
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The
determination of the fair value of the unlisted equity
securities requires significant management judgment
in selecting appropriate multiples from market
comparables and in respect of unobservable inputs
such as discount for lack of marketability.

HTHEL R REGEAREN T HENRICME ([ HE])
feRBEI] ElIRA SR o B E IE b A RE IR AT E
fhF o A B 7E P33R T T 3 T LA S A T B R A
SR ({91 405k 2 7355 DR Ak B 58 ) 7 TR 5 AT e EE RSB

The Group appointed independent professional
valuers to assist in assessing the fair value of those
unlisted equity securities investment.

5% [ 2 W S A (T B A 5% 4 JF b T A A
AN NTE -

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

B AT T ob 3 B o o o S B B 5 X

Our procedures included:

HENRF A

— Evaluating the competence, independence and

integrity of the external valuers;

—  WHESMNAG RN BE ST~ S e B n] SRk

— Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation

methodology used by the external valuers;

— Al SN Al (BRI BI PR A (B 25 A A R

— Considering the appropriateness of the multiples
selected from the market comparables and
the discount for lack of marketability with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialists;
and

- EEFRBEEEZOHIT > B ETEERTS
AT EE AR R 2 T R VTR A 5

— Assessing the adequacy of the fair value
disclosures in relation to the unlisted equity
securities.

— Al SR b B A S A B A T (E ORI Y AT
RETE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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OTHER INFORMATION AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the Other Information.
The Other Information comprises all the information in the
Company’s 2017 annual report other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of the Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B B A B R R I Y
{E(#1)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is LIU Eugene.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Ao o R A B LAt 2 i

Turnover

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Gain on bargain purchase of associates

Gain on bargain purchase of
subsidiaries

Other gains and income

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Share of losses of associates
Share of losses of joint ventures

Profit before tax

Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income after tax:

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:

Investment revaluation reserve
reclassified to profit or loss on
step-acquisition of a subsidiary

Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive income
of associates

Share of other comprehensive income
of joint ventures

Income tax relating to changes in
fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets

Other comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for
the year

BEE
985 TR B A
B

W S 7 ) R AR A
WS 5 o 2 ) 2 (A A

HoAtoeai B A
LS
AT LB 52
HoAtBA 32

Eiteginkll

il A

B A T 5 % ] Al 4L
HEA & B R
i it 1y it )

RELY B
A Bt A

SRR 2 A -
Iy el TES IR
5 i B — T 0 24 71
A L 2
it

R e
BT 51 35 2 T 3436

Y EVNUERTES JTON
RS STES JION
ST {3 4 8 R 7 24 (8
BB 2 5196

ACAE B Aty 2 A
CERBt

AR A B 2 i WL 4 A8 A

11

12

k3]

1,412,542

(764,842)

647,700
26,628
8,735
27,016
(95,192)

(123,144)
(78,749)

412,994
(5,969)
(54,748)
(784)

351,493
(68,411)

283,082

(7,260)
(58,601)
22,335
(36,584)

26,435

16,713
(36,962)

246,120

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
oy TR A B LAt 4 1 6

Profit for the year attributable to: R Al A< 4 PR ¥ )
Owners of the Company R /NSE 2N 129,560
Non-controlling interests TR 153,522
283,082
Total comprehensive income for JRE Al A% 4 € T WG it A
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company E/NE 2PN 100,369
Non-controlling interests JEFE EHE 25 145,751
246,120
RMB
N
Earnings per share (53rE
Basic and diluted (cents per share) FEA T W (47 ) 17 10.5
96 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
i IR Dl

Non-current assets e v By & s
Property, plant and equipment Y2~ W A 18 260,460
Goodwill RS 19 17,761
Other intangible assets HAb M & 20 6,638
Biological assets B E 21 1,267
Investments in associates i /N P i < 22 667,042
Investments in joint ventures NEEhEZRE 23 286,923
Investments in film production BB BE 24 =
Available-for-sale financial assets Al A 25 157,829
Deposits paid for potential investments W E AT 2 4 19,888
Deferred tax assets % 2E A E A 33 11,272
1,429,080
Current assets i B & A
Inventories e 26 155,436
Trade and other receivables & 5 K HAE WA 27 581,492
Time deposits with original maturity 2| H & =@ H ~
of more than three months E AR
when acquired 29 1,234
Cash and cash equivalents 4 MRS EY) 29 509,341
1,247,503
Total assets g R 2,676,583
Current liabilities i B £ 15
Trade and other payables & 5 B FAth A 2R 30 441,030
Bank loans SRITE K 32 166,356
Current tax liabilities BP0 R TE & 44,770
652,156
Net current assets I B A R A 595,347
Total assets less current liabilities H8E A D B AL 2,024,427
AeHACR & BRI A R A 97
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

i A5 IR D

Non-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

FE i By £1 1%
RSB I A i

BT

B Bl
JieA
it i

AN R BB A HE AR

e I i

HEHE 25

Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2018 and are

signed on its behalf by:

NI JINLEI
il &%

Director

HE

98 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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33 1,616

2,022,811

34 128,176

1,346,461

1,474,637
548,174

2,022,811

T E - NAEZA T B S HE &
N AR

ZHANG WANZHONG
iR A

Director

#HE



mmmms  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At1 January 2016 RF—RE——H 118480 31170 113,798 (35,835) 157,585 12,352 568,249 1,292,529 397,686 1,690,215
Issue of shares Bhh 9,696 79,946 S S = = = 81049 - 81,042
Capital contribution from HERERILE

non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - 3,691 3,691
Total comprehensive income for the year REEATGEH - - - 22,677 (51,868) - 129,560 100,369 145,751 946,120
Transfer i - S 19,832 s S o (19,832) o = S
Acquisition of subsidiaries ERB AR - S S S = = = = 9,850 9,850
Disposal of a subsidiary without lossof i E— B /A (1 &3

control RS - - - - = = (203) (203) 4584 4381
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 2 fHERERE R - - - - - - - -8 (2938)
Changes in equity for the year AEEREES 9,696 72246 19,832 0T (31.868) - 1095% 18008 130488 332,596
At31 December 2016 REF-AETZA=1-0 128176 449,966 133,630 (33,178) 105,717 12,552 677,774 1474697 M8174 2002811

At January 2017 RoZ-tF-A-0
Tssue of shares Bl

Total comprehensive income for the year A4 2 44
Transfer g

Appropriation of safety production fund %24 EHAH K

Changes in equity for the year KRR

At31 December 2017 REF-LETZA=1-0

ALK T B BB BT A ] 99
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maBleia®

CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Allowance for doubtful
other receivables

Allowance for doubtful
trade receivables

Allowance for deposits paid for
potential investments

Gain on bargain purchase of
associates

Gain on bargain purchase of
subsidiaries

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment loss on goodwill

Impairment loss on investments in
associates

Loss on disposal and written off of
property, plant and equipment

(Gain) /loss from changes in
fair value less cost to sell of
biological assets

Interest expenses

Interest income

Net foreign exchange loss/ (gain)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

REWHZBEHE
FR P A ¥4 A1)

k3
A R AR TR AR AR A

JRE A o M I e 8 A

WUEAE B SO 2
1A

W B I 5 A R 2 R AE AR

W S A T ) o i

I8 B fif

7 B 2 (LA
BHEEARBE L
e 1

U LM 3~ s M
sl 1R

A ) S P 5 ) B
B AR Z (),

FLEL B3
FILELA
AL k)

R
Realised gain on reclassification from 43 [ B Wi — i Bt & /& =]

investment revaluation reserve on

step-acquisition of a subsidiary
Reversal of allowance for

doubtful other receivables
Reversal of allowance for

doubtful trade receivables
Waiver of trade and other payables
Share of losses of associates
Share of losses of joint ventures

Operating profit before
working capital changes
Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and bills receivables

B4 7 45 0 A ol T BB
G RG  BLK 4

188 [ A JRE SRR IH R B
B

158 o] SR 5 Bk

SRR A

F 0 o B AR A R
B A 6 2 2 ) A 4

JE A & 7 A e 1R

RHEE G e BB AT
ikl

M

TR A o MR I SR A

Increase in prepayments, deposits and  FEAJZKIH ~ 4% 4 K H A

other receivables
(Decrease) /increase in trade and
other payables

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

W IE S
5 B FAbME ] IR
(WD) /B

A HEE TS B) 2 Bl

SEREIEES

EEAREEE

b oAl
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351,493

3,893

10,065

1,000
(26,628)
(8,735)

14,745
2,701

3,319

3,113
11,776
(1,170)

(5,807)

(7,260)
(1,397)
(1,375)

54,748
784

405,265

(28,639)
(82,494)
(18,469)

109,088

389,751

(56,552)

333,199
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mableiag®

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Deposits for investments

Decrease/ (increase) in time deposits
with original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Decrease/ (increase) in amount due
with associates

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of other intangible assets

REFH B W E

WS 8 g 2

BEE S

FH9 A =R A 2 EH
Feas b,/ (3 hm)

LI AR A RKIA
W)

BV - WS B
A

BRI - RS Bt

S LAt S T

Purchases of available-for-sale financial 5 n] {4 H 8 B & &

assets
Investments in film production
Investments in associates

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

B REZE
B A R 2 B
S gl-)

FRBEE G By < Bl 1 A

(13,565)
(19,888)
(84)
(2,347)
2,480

(65,826)
(840)

(40,800)
1,170

(139,700)

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A BlEi R

CASH FLOWS FROM il G By B R

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bank loans raised R IT B R 115,000
Repayment of bank loans R RAT B (167,153)
Repayment from/ (advance to) A SR (T SR

shareholders K (24)
Increase in amounts due to JREAST BRI N R IE RS

related parties 1,696
Interest paid EATFLE (11,776)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT 2 I A 3K IE 81,942
Proceeds from disposal of B T — ] A T 2 1 R 20 e

partial interest in a subsidiary fi 2 T A5 3K 4,381
Dividend paid to non-controlling A I P A A 2 IR

interests (29,388)
Capital contribution from IR 4 1T

non-controlling interests 3,691
Net cash generated from/ (used in) EAER V) MEnE 2

financing activities B (1,631)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND Bl B B4 55 (Y B I o 98

CASH EQUIVALENTS 191,868
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MK 258 8y 2§ 3,713
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 4E¥IZHE&REH &% HY

BEGINNING OF YEAR 313,760
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 4ERZHEHERHE%EY

END OF YEAR 29 509,341
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e 3 P i

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) as a sino-foreign joint stock limited
liability company. The Company’s H shares are listed on
the GEM (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of its
registered office is 3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building,
Yanyuan District Area 3, No.5 Haidian Road, Haidian
District, Beijing 100080, the PRC. The addresses of its
principal place of business in the PRC and Hong Kong are
3rd Floor, Beida Jade Bird Building, No. 207 Chengfu Road,
Haidian District, Beijing 100871, the PRC and Unit 7605,
76th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong

Kong respectively.

The Company is engaged in the marketing and sale of
embedded system products and related products. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

— & R

AN Ty b e N R LRI ([ R )
FE AL 2 A A B IR A IR AR A
A] o AN R HBOR A& #E G 3  iA R
A (THE2EfiF 1) GEM (T GEM ) Bl e
AN T 2 E i ik A o B A A T
T UE 16V DE B 5 SR A B = RO KE S
=B (E 45 100080) » H7F B K& & s
2 A SE B 4 R B v B L A T
TE IR B 20798 A0 K T S A% 3 A8 (30 4
100871) K 7 s B J K 99 9% vh B v
L76HE7605% -

AN ERE AR REE 2185
e B KR B EE o ELRR S AN Fl 2 B
EHHN G A AR LM 43 o

A PLHL

2R B IR TR E W g AR A
& ([ &g st g )) sz Al
7 s 5 i ot A ) (T 7 o A 5 i o 8
SUD) fm o 7 i U S A Y S B R i
S5 e ot A S (7 o B 5 i o YE S 1)
TG AR (et )) K
B o W% A A5G IS R R AT 6 T S
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial

statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its

accounting year beginning on 1 January 2017:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide
disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign
exchange gains or losses). The Group has provided

this information in note 37.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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28

A UL M (F])

U A A B OO TR KA
AT 7 W S A YR HOR AR [ 2 AR
w0 I A AT R AR A o
Ak 3HHN P A At 400 ] O 1 R
A1 0] U M ) BEL AR 2 ) A B 2 2% 5 % JeE T
R A B R BOR A B (R R % S A
BMBWAERN) ZER

R A0 6T B HEAE HT B0 7 8 B 5
U S B B e

(a)  TRAWHT AT B AR 05 AT W7 o S 5 o
e
AR A AR 4 L © PR A0 7 o 1w R
N BTG S LR
H B U 2 & w4 B A0 B A B
BEA B 2 AT R RN RT (Y A
B HER

itk Rt A T IEZ AERT B &
HR  WEEEE

% M5 R B R T 45 L )
Lz ABZ 2 > GEEABRER
SR E KRB ) (NS HE
W g B IR) © AR A B 37
fRAZE R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2017. These
new and revised HKFRSs include the following which

may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on

or after

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 1 January 2018

Customers

Amendments to HKAS 40 Investment 1 January 2018
Property: Transfers of investment
property

HKEFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income 1 January 2019

Tax Treatments

3.

PR AT AT B K805 6T HY 7 8 S 5
o R R e ()

(b)  CLAE 0L 1 R A 2800 B T R K A T
9 S 5 o S
A A ISl 0 £ L Y LA 1L e R
R =F—-tF—HA— BB 2 M
A A AT S R AE R Y A 4
Bkt HER o BLIE T AU THTE N AY
%S AT B KRG T A s B O
S B A SR [ A ]

LA H #3
B 1% B
hzgst
B A%
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9% [ TH —H—H

MBS %4
15%¢ [REZFS —H—H
AU |

TG FHEAIS40 —F N
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15,
the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to
date is based on the information currently available to
the Group. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that interim

financial report.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement
of financial assets, new rules for hedge accounting and

a new impairment model for financial assets.

HKEFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis.
The Group plans to adopt the new standard on
the required effective date and will not restate

comparative information.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. ERAVP AT B AL RT W 7 v A 5 it

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 1 ) B B ()
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) T/ 5 fEL v A A 250 BT T B SR A BT
(Continued) T s T 5 e e H) (4)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) By 5 B AR A QI 45 90k 2 il T AL
(#)
Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets WEAEEPR —E—LHFETH
and financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on =1 —HZ B R R A
the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at Br (¥ BEG% B A2 2 5 R G 05
that date, the directors of the Company have assessed W) o A F SR AU RS
the impact of HKFRS 9 to the Group’s consolidated e A E J) 55 B 3 A 4 L 5 B RS
financial statements as follows: WRZ BT
(a) Classification and measurement (a) SEINGEE
The Group expects to irrevocably designate 7 45 [ T8 4% AS BT 46 ] b A%
those listed and unlisted equity securities 5% 5 BUIRE 0 S A T Ak B
currently classified as available-for-sale as at fair b R I T A R O 4 E
value through other comprehensive income. F LAY PR E A H A 2 T ik
5o
Fair value gains and losses on these instruments 2% TR 2Z A E Rl
will no longer be recycled to profit or loss on TR R T 6 1R[] 45 2 4R
disposal. Impairment losses on equity securities i o AR §E S5 2 W (R i 4RI
will no longer be recognised in profit or loss but NP E A AR o TR R
rather in other comprehensive income. At T A A R o
ALK BB TR R FRA T 107
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Impairment
HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise and
measure either a 12-month expected credit
loss or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on the asset and the facts and circumstances.
The Group expects that the application of
the expected credit loss model will result in
earlier recognition of credit losses. Based on a
preliminary assessment, if the Group were to
adopt the new impairment requirements at 31
December 2017, accumulated impairment loss at

that date would not be significantly impacted.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKEFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting

for revenue from construction contracts.

HKEFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. The standard permits
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption. The Group intends to
adopt the standard using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of
the adoption will be recognised in retained earnings
as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be
restated.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group

has identified the following areas which are expected

to be affected:

()

Timing of revenue recognition

Currently, revenue arising from the provision
of construction contracts and travel and leisure
services are recognised over time, whereas
revenue from the sale of embedded systems
and wine and related products are generally
recognised when the risks and rewards of

ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains control of the promised
goods or service in the contract. HKFRS 15
identifies three situations in which control of the
promised goods or service is regarded as being

transferred over time:

a)  When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the entity’s performance, as the entity

performs;

b)  When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the

asset is created or enhanced;
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

c¢)  When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to
the entity and the entity has an enforceable
right to payment for performance

completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these three situations, then
under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue
for the sale of that goods or service at a single
point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only
one of the indicators that will be considered in

determining when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue
standard is not likely to have significant impact
on how it recognises revenue from the provision

of construction contracts.

For contracts with customers in which the sale
of embedded systems and wine and related
products and provision of travel and leisure
services are generally expected to be the only
performance obligation, adoption of HKFRS
15 is not expected to have any impact on the
Group’s revenue or profit or loss. The Group
expects the revenue recognition to occur at
a point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on

delivery of the goods.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Continued)

(b) Warranty obligations
The Group generally provides for warranties
for repairs to any defective electrical products
and does not provide extended warranties in its
contracts with customers. As such, most existing
warranties will be assurance-type warranties
under HKFRS 15, which will continue to be
accounted for under HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,

consistent with its current practice.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a
single accounting model for lessees. For lessees
the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases (with
optional exemptions for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward the
accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS 17
substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore
continue to classify leases as operating or financing

leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to
apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first

adoption.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard
will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. The Group’s office property leases
are currently classified as operating leases and the
lease payments (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the
Group may need to recognise and measure a liability
at the present value of the future minimum lease
payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-
use asset for these leases. The interest expense on
the lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-use
asset will be recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s
assets and liabilities will increase and the timing of

expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 41, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
for its office properties amounted to RMB34,831,000
as at 31 December 2017. The Group will need to
perform a more detailed assessment in order to
determine the new assets and liabilities arising from
these operating leases commitments after taking into
account the transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16

and the effects of discounting.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e 3 P i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g.
biological assets and certain investments that are measured

at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgements or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are

set out below.

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.

activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability

to exercise that right.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling shareholders and owners

of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e 3 P i

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and any contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at

their acquisition-date fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e 35 P e

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the sum of the consideration
transferred is recognised in consolidated profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to

the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the

consideration transferred to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is
recognised immediately as an expense and is not

subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B e e B

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policies of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible, including potential voting rights
held by other entities, are considered when assessing
whether the Group has significant influence. In
accessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not
considered.

Investments in associates are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and are initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of
investments over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the associates’ identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in
the carrying amount of the investments and is tested
for impairment together with the investments at the
end of each reporting period when there is objective
evidence that the investments are impaired. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investments. When the Group’s share of losses
in associates equals or exceeds its interest in the
associates, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associates. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e 35 P e

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that associate
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity

method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held

for sale).

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the
arrangement. When assessing joint control, the Group
considers its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B e e B

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a
joint venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group has
assessed the type of each of its joint arrangements and
determined them to all be joint ventures.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and are initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint ventures
in acquisitions are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
joint ventures’ identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in
the carrying amount of the investments and is tested
for impairment together with the investments at the
end of each reporting period when there is objective
evidence that the investments are impaired. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of the joint ventures’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investments. When the Group’s share of losses
in the joint ventures equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures. If the joint
ventures subsequently report profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses
not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture
that results in a loss of joint control represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) the
Group’s entire carrying amount of that joint venture
(including goodwill) and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the jointly controlled
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of jointly
controlled entities have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000)
except when otherwise indicated.

(i)  Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on initial
recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair

values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s

presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that

statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency

translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(212) Translation on consolidation (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that
form part of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit

or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and

translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
and leasehold land (classified as finance leases),
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which

they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(g)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on

a straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as

follows:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land 70 years
Buildings 20 years

Machinery and equipment 3 to 10 years
Leasehold improvements, furniture

and office equipment 2 to b years
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at

the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets

are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Operating leases

The Group as lessee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g)

(h)

()

Operating leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the relevant lease.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets which represent transportation
operation license, rights and patents, copyrights,
computer softwares and customer list are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

ranging from five to ten years.

Biological assets

The Group is involved in the agricultural activities of
the transformation of biological assets (vines) into
agricultural produce (grapes). The biological assets
are measured at fair value less costs to sell at initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period.
The fair value of biological assets is determined based
on the present value of expected net cash flows from
the biological assets with reference to their growing
conditions. Gain or loss on initial recognition and
from subsequent changes in fair value less costs to sell
is included in profit or loss for the period in which it

arises.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at its
fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest. The
fair value of agricultural produce is determined based
on market prices in the local area. Gain on initial
recognition at fair value less costs to sell is included in

profit or loss for the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

)

(k)

Biological assets (Continued)

The fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest
of the agricultural produce becomes its cost for
the measurement of inventories. Such inventories
are subsequently stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when

incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

(m)

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract at the end of the reporting period. When it
is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred. The accounting

policy for contract revenue is stated in (r) below.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit

or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised

in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the financial assets within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. The directors
determine the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(i)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method (except
for short-term receivables where interest is
immaterial) minus any reduction for impairment
or uncollectibility. Typically trade and other
receivables, bank balances and cash are classified
in this category.

(ii)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets not classified as loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments
or financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve, until the
investments are disposed of or there is objective
evidence that the investments are impaired,
at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified from equity to profit
or loss. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on available-for-
sale equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(0)

(p)

(q)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance

for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash

and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and

equity instruments are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair value and are subsequently

measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the guarantee

contracts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which

case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

Ccosts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably.

Revenues from the sales of embedded system
products and related products are recognised, when
the installation work is completed, the customer
has accepted the systems and the products and the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the customers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the embedded systems and related

products sold.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract
is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the percentage of
contract costs incurred to date to the estimated total
contract costs for the contract; and revenue from a
cost plus contract is recognised by reference to the
recoverable costs incurred during the period plus an
appropriate proportion of the total fee, measured by
reference to the proportion that costs incurred to date

bear to the estimated total costs of the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are probable to

be recoverable.

Revenues from rendering of travel and leisure services

are recognised when the services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenues from sales of wine and related products are
recognised on the transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered and the title has

passed to the customers.

Management fee income is recognised when services

are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment are established.

Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time

of leave.

(ii)  Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the

Group to the funds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii2) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits,
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination

benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of

obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be

received.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w)

(v)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of

the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying

amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current

tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not

be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this
is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual

asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit.
Present values are computed using pre-tax discount
rates that reflect the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit whose

impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are
allocated first against the goodwill of the unit
and then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates
are credited to profit or loss to the extent that they

reverse the impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether its financial assets are impaired,
based on objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition,
the estimated future cash flows of the (group of)

financial asset(s) have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
investment below its cost is considered also to be

objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not
to be impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes
in economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables, etc.

Only for trade and other receivables, the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of

the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is

directly reduced by the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B e e B

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

(z)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if
the amount of the impairment loss decreases in a
subsequent period and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the
allowance account for trade receivables) through
profit or loss. However, the reversal must not result
in a carrying amount that exceeds what the amortised
cost of the financial asset would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the

impairment is reversed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow

is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period or those that indicate
the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those

involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a) Joint control assessment
The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint
arrangements. The directors have determined that
the Group has joint control over the arrangement
as under the contractual agreement, it appears that
unanimous consent is required from all parties to the

agreement for all relevant activities.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for
the Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned.

The carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2017 was
RMB311,778,000 (2016: RMB260,460,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B e e B

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, RMB76,080,000 (2016:
RMB68,411,000) of income tax was charged to profit

or loss based on the estimated profit.

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Company received an
assessment demanding final tax for the year of
assessment 2004/2005 from the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD”) relating to a
claim for gain on disposal of long term investment
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2004.
The case was forwarded to the Appeals Section of the
IRD, the outcome of the tax claim cannot be readily
ascertained. In cases where the taxes charged by the
IRD are different from the estimated amounts, a

material tax charge may arise.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. The carrying amount
of goodwill at the end of the reporting period was
RMB17,761,000 (2016: RMB17,761,000). Details of the
goodwill are provided in note 19 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of bad and doubtful debts, in particular of a loss
event, requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been

changed.

As at 31 December 2017, accumulated impairment
loss for bad and doubtful debts amounted to
RMB110,562,000 (2016: RMB98,413,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. As at 31 December 2017, allowance for slow-
moving inventories amounted to RMB2,869,000 (2016:
RMB2,869,000).
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

)

(g)

Fair values of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group appointed independent professional
valuers to assess the fair values of certain available-for-
sale financial assets. In determining the fair values,
the valuers have utilised methods of valuations which
involve certain estimates. The directors have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the methods
of valuations are reflective of the current market

conditions.

The carrying amount of the available-for-sale financial
assets as at 31 December 2017 was RMB232,606,000
(2016: RMB157,829,000).

Valuation of biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are valued at fair value
less costs to sell. In determining the fair value less costs
to sell of the biological assets, the directors and the
vineyard expert have applied the income approach
which requires a number of key assumptions and
estimates to be made such as discount rate, harvest
profile, costs incurred, cultivation area, and expected
yield of the biological assets. Any change in the
estimates may affect the fair value of biological assets
significantly. The directors and the vineyard expert
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that

the valuation is reflective of their fair value.

The carrying amount of biological assets as at
31 December 2017 was RMB4,276,000 (2016:
RMB1,267,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), United States dollars (“USD”), RMB
and Canadian dollars (“CAD”). The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2017, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened 6% (2016: 7%) against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit
after tax for the year would have been RMB1,989,000
(2016: RMB2,999,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange gain/loss on cash and

cash equivalents denominated in HK$.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Price risk

The Group’s listed equity securities included in
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to equity security price risk. The
Group has not mitigated its price risk arising from the

listed equity securities.

At 31 December 2017, if the share price of the
equity securities listed in Hong Kong included in
the available-for-sale financial assets had increased/
decreased by 10% with all other variables held
constant, the consolidated investment revaluation
reserve would have been RMB4,820,000 (2016:
RMB4,712,000) higher/lower.

Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit

risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history.
Amounts due from an associate is closely monitored by

directors.

The credit risk on non-pledged time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions with high

credit-ratings.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Group
as set out in note 38, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in
respect of these financial guarantees at the end of the

reporting period is disclosed in note 38.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. SR R B (4

(CONTINUED)

(d) Liquidity risk (d) WEE &E
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current AR ) 2 BUR T M P BN S
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that WM MEEETR - MRS
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its BBttt - LLREAT H A 0 K% R i
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. BELFEK -
The maturity analysis based on the contractual FRAB A B ) IR AT AR B BB S A0 R
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative Rl BB B B A A R

financial liabilities is as follows:

At 31 December 2017 R E—-LE
+oA=

Trade and other payables B 5y B A AT B IE

Bank loans (note) SRATEA (B 5E)

Financial guarantee B HE R

At 31 December 2016 R

+=A=+—H

Trade and other payables B 5 B H AR 3 IH 402,527 - 402,527

Bank loans (note) SRAT AR (B EE) 172,379 - 172,379

Financial guarantee BB ER 200,000 - 200,000

Note: Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause BEERE - % bt B A3 AT - B A e
are included in the “on demand or within 1 year” SRR BRI SRAT B RGTA [ 4%
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 FER B AR AR IR o R T
December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the aggregate F-tFE+-A=Zt—HEZ
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans F-ANF+TH=1T—H %
amounted to RMB20,850,000 and RMB51,356,000 SR SRAT 2R R BLA B S0
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial Al B N 20,850,000 7 K A
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable [#51,356,0007C © 851 LA
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to BB IR L > 3 AR A 4RAT
demand immediate repayment. AN AT REAT i H 1 7 R R
BV 25 35
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The directors believe that such bank loans will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows are as

below:

2016 ZE-RE

54,224

6.

St % Ja o 4 BE (4

(d)

it B 4ax e (%)

R A B SRAT B O AR R B
B e T SRR P 2 R RO -
B o A B AR R R BB G 0L
B

54,224

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises from
its bank deposits and bank borrowings. These deposits
and borrowings bear interests at variable rates varied

with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 December 2017, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower/higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been RMB531,000 (2016:
RMB388,000) lower/higher, arising mainly as a result

of lower/higher interest income from bank deposits.

(e)

AR
S TR 2 2 RIS IR F 847
T S S
LT LT LT 2 0 0
il -

WoE—tEFZA=+—H
B HZ R TR BT 1018 5 B i
i HA B R AR AR > RN
A TRBLAR W A D B I R
¥531,00000 (= F—784F « AR
388,0007C) » FEHMRITERZ
FE WA WD, 0 TR -

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

A

Financial assets:

Loans and receivables (including

RS BRI (L4 Bl

6. S e b B (Af)

) HFT+A=+—HWERTAEER

cash and cash equivalents) TR S48 ) 1,074,755
Available-for-sale financial assets ] fik A B 157,829
Financial liabilities: WE A
Financial liabilities at amortised cost PSS A 5HE 2 B 75 B & 568,883

(g) Fair values
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs

to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Group can access at the measurement

date.
Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017

(9 AV
O BB L4 2 e 2 A S
5 U A (e A
AT -

7. APEEHE

NTE BT 2 B R G AT
A2 T v B T R R R i
B S 2 A8 o DU A FEFH R PR AR
PRAG (7 B A BRI
Ty =R S RO BN HE

HUEEA  AEE AR R H A A
g FEESARRE RIS
R (RACTHEE) o

SEofEEmA A 1E BT RS 2 R LIS
g EE SRR E R BB
A5 th 22 o A g -

I  EESARL LK W
g AME-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. A PEE R ()
(CONTINUED)
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and A 4 [ 2 SR R S R A O B
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the ZEREUCEE H o WERRE R R
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. ARE SR 2 Ko — S -
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (a) WT+H=Z=+—HAPFMHEEHRZH
December: %

O Pk Oy P

Recurring fair value

measurements:
Financial assets i g7 3200
Available-for-sale financial 7] {it 8 B 75 ¥ &
assets

Listed equity securities LA i 5
Unlisted equity securities  3F LT A F

Biological assets R
Vines 7
Total At

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. ~-PAEER(8)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (a) RTZHA=Z+—HBAVPHEEHRZH
December: (Continued) % ()

Recurring fair value RN PG
measurements:
Financial assets B E
Available-for-sale financial 7] it 8 B 75 & &=
assets
Listed equity securities AR R 47,122 - - 47,122
Unlisted equity securities 7 LA #E % - 110,707 - 110,707
47,122 110,707 - 157,829
Biological assets R R
Vines ik - - 1,267 1,267
Total HEt 47,122 110,707 1,267 159,096
148 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. PG (8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) AR = JE A PG EE S
on level 3: R :

At 1 January R—H—H
Total gains or losses R BITERR 2 Wi
recognised i TR A
in profit or loss ® B
Decrease due to harvest TR e 5 T 9 2
Exchange differences P 5,25 4
At 31 December wmt+-A=+—H

® Include gains or losses o BRI IR
for assets held at end of FHZEEZ
reporting period W4 Bk 18

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. ~-PAEER(8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) MBBZEIEA PG R & ER
on level 3: (Continued) W o ()

At 1 January m—A—H 112,807 4,602 117,409
Total gains or losses T HERR 2 s
recognised Bk AR
in profit or loss ® Hizw - (3,113) (3,113)
Purchase e 70,729 - 70,729
Transfer out of level 8 S (183,536) - (183,536)
Decrease due to harvest TR] 8 S T 3 2 - (378) (378)
Exchange differences HE i, 25 - 156 156
At 31 December wt+=-H=+—H - 1,267 1,267
® Include gains or losses o AR A
for assets held at end of BAZEREZ
reporting period g B 1R - (3,113) (3,113)
The total gains or losses recognised in other A FEA 22 THT A4 7R i R 2 AL i B
comprehensive income are presented in other TR KR A 1R i B A 2 T Wi
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or fi Rk 2 HAB LA 251 -

loss and other comprehensive income.
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7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 31 December 2017:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors
for these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between the
financial controller and the Board of Directors at least

once ayear.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the

recognised professional qualifications and recent

experience to perform the valuations.

Available-for-sale financial assets - Market comparable ~ Market prices
Unlisted equity securities approach
AP S R R LA Tk i

7.

AP (8)

(c)

AEHR _F-LET A=
H B % F A% 48 R e B 2 P AR 8 P
WA 2 Al 18 05 35 % i A\ B 2 3%
=

A5 I 2 ot s A B T B R R
EATHE Z A FERTR » SR =
JEAVEFETE o BARS AR H R
GNP EFH R M E R ER o BF
A B R o i D ARG ERE T
Bl BOEAT — WKt o

WA = A HERHET S - AL
T TR ELAR R T S AR RO
B SR 0 S (S ST A (E -

110,707 =

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. ~-PAEER(8)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c) AEEPR_-Z—LHE+_H=Z+—
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value H B 8% FI A A8 R e B 2 PR R B P
measurements at 31 December 2017: (Continued) M2 A 7 ¥ B A\ B 2 9
# (%)

Biological assets Discounted Risk-adjusted 15% (2016:13%)  Decrease 1,267
cash flows discount rate
EhERE AT JRR R R (CE-AE:18%) WD
Growth rate 2% (2016: 2%) Increase
WR% (ZF—AF 9%
Gross margin 33% (2016: 43%)  Increase
SEUlEs (ZF—AH  43%) S
During the two years, there were no changes in the TN > T 2 A (8 15 A0 4
valuation techniques used. ) o
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8. TURNOVER 8.
The Group’s turnover which represents the net invoiced
value of goods sold and services rendered to customers,

after allowances for returns and trade discounts and net of

tax are as follows:

Sales and contract works of embedded B R A R B S
system products and related products HH B dh B & 4 LR
Rendering of travel and leisure services PR 8 K A [ B
Sales of wine and related products T 2 T A B
Management fee income FERAIA

9. OTHER GAINS AND INCOME 9.

BEM

A BRI EETES 2R
DR T & P 2 R B BRR & K B 5 o
R BLIE R 2 B > WIS

1,268,479
130,043
10,150
3,870

1,412,542

Fo At W 2 B LA

Bank interest income SRATHLE A 1,095
Government grants (note) B R A U (B ) 10,232
Interest income from loans to others ) HoAth N 4R it Bk 2
FLE A 75
Gain from changes in fair value less costs  “E4) & 7 22 T-{H 5 &)
to sell of biological assets T B AR 2 Wi AR =
Realised gain on reclassification from 3 I B B — [ B 2 m] IR
investment revaluation reserve on e P A fe A R 0 A
step-acquisition of a subsidiary 1Y 5 B Wi 7,260
Rental income A A 2
Reversal of allowance for doubtful 38 1] At JRE iz o TR R
other receivables A 1,397
Reversal of allowance for doubtful 58 0] 1 Ui B ) R R R
trade receivables Eeigin 1,375
Waiver of trade payables AT 5 IR —
Waiver of other payables 6 FL A A ROE -
Others HoAlh 5,580
27,016

Note: Government grants represented subsidy to the Group by the
PRC government as incentives primarily to encourage the
development of the Group and the contribution to the local
economic development.

BERE + ORI 15 BB 4 T A SR B 2 A
Bz ZAF S B fE A A S
BRIk AR S A 5 I

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. & Bl

154

The Group determines its operating segments based on
its strategic business units that are managed separately by
the chief operating decision-maker. Each strategic unit
requires different technology, development and marketing

strategies.
During the year, the Group had four reportable segments,
which were managed separately based on their business

nature:

Manufacture and sale - research, development,

S BAR % T R R RO\ S LY
R S5 B T R AT AR R o A% SR
SES BTG BN B~ B Rl 4
W o

JRAEAL > ARSI A YA AT R Sl
AR 45 (9 SE 15 VR B o A B

R REEE T —WHE - B

of electronic fire manufacture, marketing, T 7 5 Wk~ IR
equipment contract work and sale of R LR EE
electronic fire alarm systems ERGLIE € EF W
and related products R E
Tourism development - development of travel and leisure ez SEug — B R e A KR
business e
Investment holding - holding of fund, debt and equity e gcdils — A A I A
investment Ei'a <y
All other segments — business activities and operating i HAb 3 — RIS E AR
segments not separately TSI I 8 S
reported, including production FLAE A B
and sales of wine and related ) 2 1 S R I E i

products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include interest income, unallocated other gains and
income, finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses.
Segment assets do not include unallocated corporate assets.
Segment non-current assets do not include available-for-

sales financial assets and deferred tax assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as
if the sale or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current

market prices.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. 43 6% P (4)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss: WL 4 B v A gl 1R = B R

Year ended 31 December 2017

Revenue from external customers
Segment profit/ (loss)

Interest income
Finance costs
Unallocated corporate expenses

Profit before tax

Other segment information:
Allowance for:
doubtful other receivables
doubtful trade receivables
Interest expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss on investments
in associates
Share of (losses) /profit of
associates
Share of losses of joint ventures
Income tax expense

Year ended 31 December 2016

Revenue from external customers
Segment profit/ (loss)

Interest income
Finance costs
Unallocated corporate expenses

Profit before tax

Other segment information:
Allowance for:
deposits paid for potential
investments
doubtful other receivables
doubtful trade receivables
Interest expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Share of (losses)/profit of
associates
Share of losses of joint ventures
Income tax expense/ (credit)

BRE-ZtE+TZA
=+—HIEEE

KAMFER Z A

AR/ (ER)

A A

il AR

AT ERT

VR i A1

Heflasy W ERY :
ﬁu?%ﬁZ%ﬁi

ﬁ
@HW nA )/

{_L
T ih 1 4
FBL %

BRE-Z-AFEFH
=t HIEE

RASMREF Z A
shEpiE i/ k)

%ﬁ&&ﬁiﬁz

i
SUBIIERE
NS5 SR

HERY

37

BB R AR (1) /
il

L

FrARNL/ (%)

1,268,479 130,043 3,870 10,150 1,412,542
341,342 61,752 (18,892) (9,566) 874,636
47 188 4 190 1,170
(5,969)

(18,344)

851,493

- - 1,000 - 1,000
2,783 1,110 - - 3,803
10,060 - - 5 10,065
6,151 5,280 - 345 11,776
11,062 3,639 33 11 14,745
(3,873) 9,438 (53,313) - (54,748)
- N (784) . (784)
52,618 15,684 116 (1) 68,411

WFACK T R TR PR W
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. > #B&ERH(H)

Information about reportable segment assets: AT R 2) BRE A 2 BB

At 31 December 2017 REZZF—LHEFZA
=t-n
Segment assets e

Unallocated corporate assets KARAEERE
Property, plant and equipment  #)% B Kt fh
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRe%EY

Others Hit
Total assets ERE
Segment assets including: 2R A
Investments in associates PR AR S

Investments in joint ventures REBELEZRE
Additions to non-current assets Vs & i B) G

At 31 December 2016 REZB—AEFZA
=t-n
Segment assets IR 1,837,270 273,841 933,083 30,692 2,574,886

Unallocated corporate assets RO EERE

Property, plant and equipment — ¥)% ~ K% Kt 7171
Cash and cash equivalents e kHEZEY 81,299
Others Hitr 12,627
101,697
Total assets Mg 2,676,583

Segment assets including: SRR AL
Investments in associates REEA R Z B E 6,627 197,934 462,481 - 667,042
Investments in joint ventures REBLEZHE = - 286,923 - 286,923
Additions to non-current assets s & IF B & 92,557 3,046 88,415 336 184,354
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 10. 4> 5B&E BH(#)
Geographical information: i [ R

PRC except Hong Kong FE (N E3E ) 1,402,392 1,201,930
The United States F 10,150 15,911
Canada JIEVN - 42,138
Others HAl - -
1,412,542 1,259,979
In presenting the geographical information, revenue is Sl ORI o WA TIAR IR S BT TE
based on the locations of the customers. Hh o
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, revenue MEE-FE—LFEL —F—NRFE T H
from any single external customer does not attribute to 10% =t —HIREE - EEANE F R
or more of the Group’s revenue. 2R A A A E R AR 2 10% B L
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. Bh&E AR

Interest on bank and other loans SRAT R HAh B ORI S 11,776
Net foreign exchange loss/ (gain) B M S s 1R, (i as ) 18R (5,807)
5,969

J AT SR R A A 7] 157
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax RS9 A5 76
Provision for the year ARG JE A
PRC i
Under/ (over)-provision in AT A A
prior year KR/ GREREM)
PRC i
Hong Kong Fit
Deferred tax (note 33) PR AIEFLIH (B 5133)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 since the Group

had no assessable profit for both years.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the country in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations, and practices in respect thereof.

Three subsidiaries of the Company had been certified by
the relevant PRC authorities as high technology enterprises.
Pursuant to the Income Tax Law in the PRC, the three
subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax
(“EIT”) at a rate of 15% effective for three years within
2019.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017

12. Fii f5 Bi b 32

68,045

1,714
(7)

69,752

(1,341)

68,411

MR E —F - LE R TN
T A = B AR RHE A i R BL
A > R AR B T A 5 1 {1 4 32 317 e g
AR it i o

SHLAt b 7 B SR R P 2 B IE G AR B A 4R
P AE B PP E R K 2 BUAT i) - iR
LI % 2 BUAT R AR

A ) = T R 2 A o A T A B
A S R R R B A 3 o AR P BB A
o = 8 R HE 15 % 2 B R B
B A PR B ([ ) -
B S 11 X (K 3 4 0



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e 3 P i

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Other subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC
are generally subject to income tax on their taxable income
at a tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%).

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Company received an assessment
demanding final tax for the year of assessment 2004,/2005
from the IRD. The amount of this assessment was
HK$47,852,000 (equivalent to RMB39,999,000) in which
HK$47,748,000 (equivalent to RMB39,913,000) relating
to a claim for gain on disposal of long term investment
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2004. On
25 February 2013, the IRD issued a notice to the subsidiary
informing that the case has been forwarded to the Appeals
Section of the IRD for further processing. No provision was
made as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 as the directors
opine that the subsidiary has strong grounds and sufficient
evidence to defend the capital nature of the gain. Moreover,
the IRD regarded the assessment as protective action and
allowed those part of tax relating to the contended capital
gain to be held over unconditionally pending the outcome
of objection. The directors opine that the action of the
IRD highly correlates with timing factor because the year of
assessment 2004/2005 became statutorily time-barred by the
end of March 2011.

Should the assessment regarding the claim for the gain be
finally judged against the subsidiary, current tax liabilities
and corresponding income tax expense of HK$47,748,000
(equivalent to RMB39,913,000) will be recognised.

192,

Pt 45 B il =2 (4)

AR ) PR AR ST 2 H A B TR 4 ) 2
JHERE R B A B F25% (. F— N
iF 1 25% ) AR AR B

W FE——AF > RAF—KWEAF
W EFEEBRER(TBBER] K%
T T E AR B SR B
O E o BB 4 B B 47,852,000
5 T (HH i A R % 39,999,00000) >
H 47,748,000 ¥ JC (A1 R N R
39,913,000 ¢ ) B A 2 — F LY AFE | =
H =1 —H LB ORI R
B2 HRAR - R =
H A HH - BUH R 5% 5 2 75
M FE A B RO RSB R B AR
HAEME— L I o A B R L a4 M
o E) A 2 PR K R il R 2 A
PR R O R — LR F
—RNETZH=Z T —HEREE - M
Ah o BLHS R EERL A IR AT B AR
FHHZFREAR N ZHABE > £
15t B S B A SR AT IR R A o R
PR RS SR 2 AT B 32 B AR AR R R R
L] :: )i te e Uit gte e S iy 5 K 3
R F——FZ RO EEERR

547 B HR AR A 25 1Y) BB B 4K R S R
A FIARF > MR 47,748,000%5 IC (F8
HI AR T539,913,0000T) 2 B AR TH &
i S A R T AR B BH 3

ALK T BT R A IR A 7]
TR LR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. i f3 B B 32 (4)
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and JI A5 B S B R i Vi A 3fe o B A 2E i
the product of profit before tax multiplied by the PRC BRI Z HIRMNT

Enterprise Income Tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax o ot i Vi ) 351,493
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% % B (X T 5 5i 2K 25 %

(2016: 25%) (ZF 784 1 25%)

WA Z BLIA 87,873
Tax effect of share of losses of associates JRE A B A F s TR 2
BLBS B 13,687

Tax effect of share of losses of joint AL & B AR R

ventures BiHs 3 2 196
Tax effect of income that is not taxable AN HERBL A 2 B R 2 (10,538)
Tax effect of expenses that are not AN RN 2 B

deductible 6,230
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not &) 8 A R i RR AL 1R

previously recognised BB (75)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised TR LS e 15 2 B 2 9,104
Over-provision in current year A4 B R A A (46)
Under-provision in prior year AT AT A AN 1,707
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries  Ji Hth 7] 2 45 [ 45 46 2 Fff g

operating in other jurisdictions NCIR NG -2 570
Tax effect of tax concession BT o 2 B 5 (36,887)
Super deduction of research and WFEE B 3 2 A1 B

development costs (3,410)
Income tax expense FTAS BB 68,411
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. AAF B A
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/ REBMAFEERFCE(GEA) LT
(crediting) the following: HIH

Allowance for deposits paid for potential — BLIEFER & L AT 2

investments A T 1,000
Allowance for doubtful other receivables — HoAih JfE i FCE R BRA3 3,893
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables WA R 5 M 2 R B3 A 10,065
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAfth 48T G £ 1,734
Auditors’ remuneration A% IR P 4 1,700
Cost of inventories sold B E A 723,218
Depreciation e 13,011
(Gain) /loss from changes in fair value ) E N (S ) e

less costs to sell of biological assets Az (i) kiR 3,113
Loss on disposal and written off of R M 2E ~ B

property, plant and equipment Baiid i SB1Y
Operating leases charges in respect of T BT 2 KB

land and buildings B 2 11,959
Research and development expenditure B 5% &% B 5§ B % 53,214
Reversal of allowance for doubtful other 1§ [\ At JfE i 3k VB R IR

receivables e (1,397)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful trade 15 0 R ) MO R

receivables e (1,375)
Impairment loss on goodwill P 2 W e 1 2,701
Impairment loss on investments in BN T A 2 W E

associates [ Ei5l ~

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs and depreciation EERFEBARSE B TA KP4 A
of approximately RMB55,558,000 (2016: RMB50,034,000) R #55,558,00000 (& —/N4F « AR
which are included in the amounts disclosed separately 50,034,0007C) » 5% % WA T AR E SO
above. Tl i < e o
HEAAE AT R R R A A T 161

TR LR



162

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. 18 B f&AIp %

Salaries, bonuses and allowances 4 > ALAL M EEEG 149,509
Retirement benefit scheme contributions A F 513 t 3 36,158
185,667
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during AEN > AN KR H] T4 B AN A B EE
the year did not include (2016: nil) directors whose (CFE—NAE ) TS > e RS
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. T ESCREIZ AT o T4 (T E—NAE
The emoluments of the five (2016: five) highest paid &) e A 24T

individuals are set out below:

Basic salaries and allowances FEAR 4 SO G 4,582
Discretionary bonus Ty 1 6 4L 3,150
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B /R4& | &t & 44E 499

8,231
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. 1@ B & A B 7 (%)
(CONTINUED)
The emoluments fell within the following band: P <5 5 [ 40 -

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #57C 51,500,000
(equivalent to RMB836,000 to It (AHE i A R ¥5836,000 7T
RMB1,254,000) (2016: % NRH1,254,00000)
RMB895,000 to RMB1,342,000) (ZF =A% AR
895,000 00 2 A R
1,342,0007%) 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001#5 7 £ 2,000,0005
(equivalent to RMB1,254,000 to I (A R AN R 1,254,000
RMB1,672,000) (2016: JoE ARW1,672,0007T)
RMBI,342,000 to RMB1,789,000) (TF—7N4E 0 AR
1,842,000 CE A R
1,789,0007C) 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001%5 542,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,672,000 to I (A R AN R #1,672,000
RMB2,090,000) (2016: It & AN RH2,090,00070)
RMB1,789,000 to RMB2,236,000) (ZF—ARF AR
1,789,000 % A R
2,236,0007%) 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 L %3,000,0007
(equivalent to RMB2,090,000 to JC (HH & i AN R #52,090,000
RMB2,508,000) (2016: JtE ANRH2,508,00070)
RMB2,236,000 to RMB2,684,000) (ZF =T AR¥K
2,236,000 & A R ¥
2,684,00070) 1
JETRACK S BB R R AT LA 163
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 e 35 P e

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a)

15. EFLAEFME

ERLREFHE
A R R (N
A A B 2 7)) Z BB AT

The remuneration of every director and supervisor in
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of

the Company or its subsidiary undertaking is set out

below:

EFEA

Name of director

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong ~ SRE %L

Ms. Zheng Zhong BEL

Mr. Ip Wing Wai ERBSEE

Mr. Ni Jinlei RemtE

Ms. Xue Li HELE

Mr. Zhao Xuedong BEREE (i)
Mr. Xiang Lei HE A (i)
Mr. Shao Jiulin AR

Mr. Li Juncai FRAKE

Mr. Lin Yan ¥y

Mr. Li Chonghuaz FRERL

Name of supervisor o

Mr. Fan Yimin —REE

Prof. Yang Jinguan ER it

Mr. Ouyang Zishi BT AL

Mr. Lu Qingfeng BERIEE

Ms. Zhou Min Ll S

Total for 2017 “E-tha

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Note: (i)

Name of director

Mr. Zhang Wanzhong

Ms. Zheng Zhong
Mr. Ip Wing Wai
Mr. Ni Jinlei

Ms. Xue Li

Mr. Zhao Xuedong
Mr. Shao Jiulin

Mr. Li Juncai

Mr. Lin Yan

Mr. Li Chonghua

Name of supervisor
Mr. Fan Yimin

Prof. Yang Jinguan
Mr. Ouyang Zishi
Mr. Lu Qingfeng
Ms. Zhou Min

Total for 2016

EREA
RE AL
WELL
ERELE
et
HELL
"R
A
Rk
iS:pivtd
ERERE

By
et
tieBa
BRB e
BRI
At

Resigned on 24 May 2017

(ii) Appointed on 31 July 2017

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

15. EHELEHEME(H)

(a)

R ()

950 557 - 37 844
290 400 - 106 796
220 - - - 990
80 587 - - 617
80 - - - 80
80 - - - 80
80 - - - 80
80 - - - 80
80 - - - 80
80 - - - 80
1,250 1,494 - 143 9,887
50 . - . 50
50 - - . 50
50 - - - 50
50 - . - 50
50 - - - 50
950 - - . 950
1,500 1,494 - 143 3,137

it

ﬁl_l(b:

(i) R-F-tEFERA-fM

H &HE
(ii)y WF—LtHEELA=1+—
H M ZAT

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR

165



166

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into
between the Company and its executive directors,
the Company’s executive directors are entitled to an
aggregate amount of discretionary bonuses of not
more than 5% of the consolidated profit after tax but

before the provision of such bonuses.

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
supervisor waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or supervisors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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15. EFELREHEME(H)

(a)

(b)

EHREFHE ()

HRYEA L R S PAT I F 5T L 2 ik
Ba# > AN RPATE S AR
MEABRBR (HREMIEALZ
Hil) 5 3 1 F115 % < B TS AEAL -

BE-EZ—LFELE_E—ARFET
A=+ —H IR > W S ol
5 B[R] B R AT B & 2
E.Fo

BE R —HAE R RN
AZ+1—H IR - AEEN KN
AT ] 28 = ol B T AT T A 4 0 A
FHW T A A 4R B s o S Ry 2 48
B 2 1 B R I

EHRRY - RIFRGHZERHE
)

A R A AL AR 4R [ SE 5 5T S AT AT
TR A AT PR AT Ao IR [H] A7 AT A 24
CEE V'S & d IEYNaw ST
A E I i (AN B R M ) i 2
R2EHy ~ L RAEH) o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e 3 P i

16.

17.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and wages
subject to a monthly maximum amount of HK$1,500 per
employee and vest fully with employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The Group’s PRC employees are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to
the central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet

the required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates other retirement benefits schemes
for all qualifying employees in elsewhere and required to
contribute certain percentage of the employee’s salaries

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of RMB170,668,000
(2016: RMB129,560,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,369,157,000 (2016: 1,230,896,000)
in issue during the year. No adjustment has been made
to the basic profit per share amounts presented for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. Therefore, the
calculation of the diluted earnings per share is the same as

basic earnings per share.

16.

17.

B KR A st

7 5 o1 AR 0 A A i o P R A w491
TR A s A R R — TR M
AREEFIE(THELF# ) - A% HH
MR A B IR EFRE R TEZ
5%wtHE - % B LE A Rm & HE A ER
1,500 7T » 17 H. 2% 4 [ 77 A 58 A 4t 1
Z B Btk — BB R BT A o

ASE W 2 B A B TG 2 B el i B
AT 2 P SRR BB o A A P
JUB R wt BB IE B A B &K TE
A5 T H A BB ARAR A o 5 Hb i B
JRF B BORE A G B B A BUA B RIS AR AR
8B B AP o wl i b iR R
At & > A M 2 SAL M B R %t
BT BT R o

AEEINA BA WK IR S ERIES
7 HLA AR PR L B > Sl R % A SR
BE T ER K EATE A Fre&ns TE
o3 EEAE K -

5 It 2 A

o e AR % i v 2

2505 E A ON HE AL A R R A 2 R T AR
PEAS N EHEA N M A AR AF B N RN R
#170,668,000 70 ( — 2 — /N4 0 NRHE
129,560,0007C ) B 4F (A £ 47 35 78 I i
HET- 1 $01,369,157,000 ( . F — N 4F ¢
1,230,896,000) A wH5A o ML #ERK = —
F—bLERZF—-NFE+ZA=Z+—H
1E 4R B 2 A e B AR i A o R o il
W > T AL A R R ) B g R R AN
AR

ALK T BT R A IR A 7]
TR LR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At January 2016
Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary
Transfers

Reclassification

Disposals and vritten off
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017

Additions

Transfers

Disposals and written off

Exchange differences

At31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation

At1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Reclassification
Disposals and written off
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017
Charge for the year
Disposals and written off
Exchange differences

At31 December 2017

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

18. W3k ~ Wi Kkl

ik
RoF-RE-A-H 19,461 15,620 89,396 30,006 16,879 79,166 50,049 319477
FE = = . 14317 858 3,706 46,945 65,826
Y- HHE A E = - 9 10 - - 19
o = = 68,758 9,114 §477 - (75,340) -
B8 - = - (620) 620 - - -
RS (3,267) 2 - (299) (33) (1,009) (2.43) (6,976)
Eizs 1,698 5 41 901 % # 713 3,969
e Syt o o

RoE—tE-A-A
RE
i
i Bt
Eizs
RoF-th

+2A=t-H
ZiliE
REF-AE-A-H - 9 1821 M 1370 5418 LAY
R = 92 3,091 3,99 1319 4458 - 13,011
BN = = = (788) 1,058 (270) - .
i Rt - - E (201) (%4) (959) - (L177)
Bz = 5 57 199 19 9 - 97
RoF-REFZA=1-H

JoF-tE-A-H
i
i Rt
EizE
i S 3

+2A=t-H
i
BoF-LE

+2A=1-H
RoF-E

+2R=1-8 17,892 14402 187,332 97,778 5,601 17,530 28% 260460
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y3k - W Bk s (4)
(CONTINUED)
At 31 December 2017 the carrying amount of property, WoE—LFEF+_HAH=1+—H P
plant and equipment pledged as security for the Group’s W& B sk < MR (E B > AF A 4R
bank loans amounted to RMB123,398,000 (2016: BRATHR KN - AHESE M AR
RMB72,676,000) (note 32). #123,398,0007C (—F — R4 : AR¥

72,676,0007C) (Fif5E32) -

19. GOODWILL 19. w2

Cost A

At 1 January w—H—H 20,404

Exchange differences [fE 5, 25 52 180

At 31 December W+ —_H=+—H 20,584

Accumulated impairment losses H AR 1R

At 1 January w—H—H =

Addition wNHE 2,701

Exchange differences [fE 5, 25 52 122

At 31 December wt+—_HA=+—H 2,823

Carrying amount e i ¥

At 31 December wt+—-HA=+—H 17,761
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at T ZEFS A B TR Y P A 0 B R ) B &
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) that are VAR ARSI S B &
expected to benefit from that business combination. The M(THEEELSEN]) - HEAEREDR
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows: PR B

Manufacture and sale of electronic fire R N B T T B

equipment segment A 73 17,557
Multiple units without significant goodwill  ifi £ 55 A P2 2 Z i B0 204
17,761

AR T R R A T 169
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

19.

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and turnover
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using
pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are referred to past experience and current
market expectation and/or demand or based on long-term
average economic growth rate of the geographical area
in which the businesses of the CGUs operate whichever is
applicable. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based

on past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors for

the next five years.

The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows
from the Group’s manufacture and sale of electronic fire
equipment segment and the production and sales of wine
and related business are 18% (2016: 17%) and 13% (2016:
13%) respectively.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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19. W2 (4)

B 4 A B 2 T R [ AR B T
AR Ik e o fERE R 2 E 2
BTy B A R B - R R - MR Z T
BB LB SR o ARG BRI T S Bk L
B3 i 455 36 6 W I (] A6 (0 % B 7 A
5 TR 2 R Y BR BT B A DAA
IRBLEE o M9 1= % 228 1 15 KSR KR A
DUTEI K2/ B SR SO 4 B 46 A A
RS S5 BT AE L 22 T 1) R ARG R
Rt (BT EB ) - AT KE¥E
TR E R BT 3 R B R -

A B2 AR 5 A S AL T 2 ORI T AR R
J) B T B A R B R TR o

FH DA BLA R B B R K B 5 W T
R T B A R B i A A Y M A B 2
55 A5 T ) B0 46 0k 2 R B AT L /518 %
(=084 17%) F’18% (=& —R
F113%) o



smmms NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. HihiEE & E

Cost [ %N

At1 January 2016 WoFE—ANE—H—H 30,000 80 3,208 1,886 7,143 49 317
Additions #m - - = 840 = 840
Exchange differences i i 25 B = = = 15 488 503

At 31 December 2016 and R ZF—N4HF

1 January 2017 ToAZ+TH R
i
Additions i
Written off it
Exchange differences B i
At 31 December 2017 REF—LAE
VS
Accumulated amortisation 25t ¥ 8
At1 January 2016 WoFE—RFE—-H—H 30,000 b3 535 369 3,997 34,954
Amortisation for the year A4 {5 = 14 320 232 1,168 1,734
Exchange differences MR = - - 8 326 334
At 31 December 2016 and it “F— N4
1 January 2017 ToAZ—HR
—“F—tHE-A-H
Amortisation for the year A4 #ESH
Written off st
Exchange differences 5 22 5L
At 31 December 2017 REF—LE
AEGES R
Carrying amount S A
At 31 December 2017 REF—LAE
+2AZ+—H
At 31 December 2016 S
+-A=+—H - 13 2,353 2,132 2,140 6,638

WFACK T R TR PR W 171
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

21.

The Group’s transport operation license represents a public
transport monopoly operation in a designated national 5A
level tourist attraction in the PRC. This asset is used in the

Group’s tourism development segment.

The customer list represents customer relationship acquired
through business combination. The remaining amortisation

period of the customer list is two years (2016: three years).

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group is engaged in the production and sales of
wine and related products. At 31 December 2017, the
Group owns 7 acres (2016: 7 acres) vines. During the year,
the Group harvested approximately 13 tons (2016: 31
tons) of grapes, which had a fair value less costs to sell of
RMB166,000 (2016: RMB378,000) (determined at the time
of harvest) with reference to their market prices. The fair
value of the Group’s biological assets as at 31 December
2017 has been determined based on income approach
and taken into account the adjustments to harvest profile,
cost incurred, cultivation area, and expected yield of the

biological assets.

Reconciliation of carrying amount of vines:

At 1 January w—H—H

20. FoAty T2 % e (4)

21.

A 4 ] 22 5 10 78 i A A W RS S o R R
T I 5 5 AR A S A8 7 2 T
HE o B2 I E Y R AR 4 T 2 ik e S Bk
JE5Y R o

HF A AR T S TR RS
B BEAE BN BN AFE (2%
AR 34 o

P& B

A A B4 R A T B TR E 2
BEEE - RF—-LFETA=Z1—
H > AREEBEA7TAE(ZFE—NE 74
PE) BB o AR A > A HE R 2 W Y
I3ME (- —/N4F © 31ME) > HA P
B AN B N H166,0000T (- FE—8
A0 NRIES78,00000) (A i At R [H] i
GE) o EHSERE I TE o ALY
EEK _E—-LET A= —HZA
PEARPE A L W EFFAEEY
BEMI RS ~ TEAE 2 A - i
b s e FEH ) 2 R o

71 R T (R

Gain/ (loss) from changes in fair value T 5 Bl Y B A 2

less costs to sell etk (ksiE) (3,113)
Decreases due to harvest [T WA R T i 70 (878)
Exchange differences ifE .25 %0 156
At 31 December wt—-H=+—H 1,267
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 21. APEE ()
The Group is exposed to climate and other risks related to 7 A2 [ T S SR A B B 2 R AT A ) At
its vines: JaB
Climate and other risks SR 1% e At JRL B
The Group’s vines are exposed to the risk of damage from A SR ] 2 A R T R G s AL - R
climatic changes, diseases, fires and other natural forces. e~ KOS K oAt | AR B iR IR 2 L
The Group has extensive processes in place aimed at B o AREEEMARRT - BEBEER
monitoring and mitigating those risks, including regular WD R 5 B > B S A e A Y
vines health inspections and industry pest and disease (R R WL B B A T A ik S R A o
surveys.

22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. RBE AW ZHRE

Unlisted investments: JEEHHRE
Share of net assets JE A T 667,042
The amounts due from/ (to) associates are unsecured, FEW " (FEAT) W 2 ) 3 TE T e IS 44
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. B 15 e A 1] 52 28 3
JeE ALK HRFERERD A R AW 173
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. RBHE AT ZHRE (4])
(CONTINUED)
Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 December REFHN - F—LHE+_H=+—HZ
2017 are as follows: FEBA AT

Beijing Jade Bird Beijing, the PRC RMB1,000,000,000 40% 1% Investment in unlisted
Hengsheng PRC enterprises or
Investment growing entities
Fund (Limited
Partnership)

(“HS Fund”)

A BlEESE RS F R NN B i
(AIREH) ([ 1E A 1,000,000,0007E RPRBZRRE
%)

Changsha Songya Changsha, the PRC ~ RMB105,150,000 - 28% Land development and
Lake Construction urban infrastructure
Investment Co., project development

Ltd. (“Songya Lake
Construction”)

RUMBHEMERZZEE TEED N b B R T A I
BRZ ] ([ RAHE ) 2 105,150,0007C HitR
& 1)

Chuangi (Hunan) Hunan, the PRC RMB250,000,000 - 29% Project development
Enterprise

Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Chuanqi
Enterprise”)

e () B RA AR ARHE JHH R
RAF (MERTED 250,000,0007¢

Beijing Xinzhongrui ~ Beijing, the PRC RMB250,000,000 - 25% Investment in unlisted
Venture Capital Co., PRC enterprises or
Ltd. (“Xinzhongrui growing entities
ve?)

A F R E AR EA Rt AR B i e
PR3 ) (T {5 i A1 250,000,000C RPEEZ B ®
#1)

Shanghai Shengjin Shanghai, the PRC ~ RMB200,000,000 25% 20% Investment in unlisted
Venture Capital PRC enterprises or
Investment Co., Ltd. growing entities
(“Shanghai Shengjin
ve?)

L EASASEREAR HE i ARHE oL E R e
AN A A% 200,000,0007¢ RPTEZBHE
#ED
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)
The following table shows information on the associates that
are material to the Group. These associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is
based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associates.

% of ownership interests/voting KRAEFE A 2 W
rights held by the Group ﬁ%*&é/&%
Hor

At 31 December wtr-H=+—H

Non-current assets B G

Current assets B E

Non-current liabilities FEVE A

Current liabilities B A 1R

Net assets FEE

Less: Non-controlling interest i : FE 4 £
(“NCI") ([ o fehEds 1)

Net assets attributable to YA N TR E
the owners

Group’s share of net assets N ] oA R A A

Goodwill ik

Other adjustments Ay 5 e

Group’s share of carrying AR B 73 A A
amount of interests M T8 {E

Year ended 31 December: EE+-H=+—H

ILAEJE -

Revenue A

Profit/ (loss) for the year AR (FEE)

Other comprehensive income — JHAth 2 T Y& 4

Total comprehensive income A T A AR

Dividends received from Wi 7 A R R,

associates

22. JRBEE A v 2 8E (4])

AR A S T e R 2 W
B2 BB o RZ AR IR 2 R AR S
FUIRESR AR o BT 2 51 W B5 00t 2
TR ) 2 A s T o v U
Bk o

41%/41% 47%/47%

305,979 663,006
4,941,817 1,750,684
(751,225) (400,000)
(2,685,180) (1,868,174)
1,111,391 145,516
(250,662) -
860,729 145,516
352,899 67,811
- 9,310

15 3
352,914 77,124
768 14,308
(180,477 7,724
(69,137) =
(199,614) 7,724

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

AREMFAH 2 B
AR B
HrE

% of ownership interests/voting
rights held by the Group

At 31 December wTr_HA=+—H

Non-current assets B E

Current assets B E AR

Non-current liabilities I E E AR

Current liabilities i) A E

Net assets T

Add: share capital not injected il © AR A EA
by other shareholders Z A

Net assets attributable to WA N i EE
the owners

Group’s share of net assets N AL A A

Other adjustments HoAth 7 B

Group’s share of carrying A4 B 73 A A
amount of interests W THI (&

Year ended 31 December: g E+-H=+—H

IR -

Revenue e A

Loss for the year AAEE 5 4H

Other comprehensive income — Hith 2 T Y& 4

Total comprehensive income AT W £t A AR

Dividends received from B A I A ) S

associates

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017

22. FBEE AT ZHRE (4])

25%/25%

248,522
107,902
(35,418)

321,006

321,006

80,252

(2,422)
(18,575)

(20,997)

49%/49%

212,784
171,686
(2,000)

(136,071)

246,399

246,399

120,735

120,735
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. NEEEAFZHE (H)
(CONTINUED)

LM B 2 B AT HEHE
i, BORHEE 4y L

% of ownership interests/voting rights
held by the Group

45%/45%

At 31 December wt+_A=+—H
Non-current assets IE BB 52,291
Current assets LB A 2,961
Non-current liabilities IE B A (950)
Current liabilities TiE A (3,000)
Net assets attributable to the owners HEA Nk E 51,302
Group’s share of carrying amount of A B2 1 7 A AR i R T (L

interests 23,086
Year ended 31 December: B2+ -H=1+—HI

AR -
Revenue A -
Loss for the year AAEE R (1,989)
Other comprehensive income oAt 2 T i 3% (15,460)
Total comprehensive income AT U £ SR EE (17,449)
Dividends received from associates B I 45 8\ LB, -
AL R BB R A R A 177
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22. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. FIBEE A H 28R E (H)
(CONTINUED)
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share T F B A 534k AR R e A R
of the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that FARE R IR AR 2 B8 N W) 2 44%E -

are accounted for using the equity method.

At 31 December: BHZA=4+—H:

Carrying amounts of interests HE 7 % AT EL 12,931

Year ended 31 December: ®E+T-A=1+—H

ILARJE

Loss for the year AR E (11,888)

Other comprehensive income L Ath, 2 AT UL 4 (4,761)

Total comprehensive income A T A HE R (16,649)
At 31 December 2017, the bank and cash balances of RoE—-LFE+ZH =1 —H  REE
the Group’s associates in the PRC denominated in RMB o g W LN R RHE 2 R AT I
amounted to RMB906,548,000 (2016: RMB689,168,000). P4 4% 5 AR ¥906,548,000 0 ( =&
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to — N AR H689,168,0007C) © i A
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and B St MR R A I W 2 e i N R A B Al
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign IR B KA e ~ B T B A
Exchange Regulations. TE ) BER
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23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REBREEZIRE

Unlisted investments: JEEHRE

Share of net assets JRE A 1 286,923
Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December 2017 AEFHSELEN T —LHE T H
are as follows: =+ —HZHEEW R -

SBI & BDJB China Fund, Cayman Islands USD73,436,598 50%  Investment in unlisted
L.P. (“SBI China”) companies and real

estate assets and

companies in the PRC

SBI & BDJB China Fund, FE#HE 73,436,598 G BRI EHATL K
L.P.([SBI China]) 7 H 7 Y E 2
SBI & BDJB Management Cayman Islands 100,000 ordinary shares of 50%  Provision of investment
Limited USD1 each management and
advisory services
SBI & BDJB Management [ & #f 5 100,000 5 A {E1 T2 SRR I AR
Limited gL
The following tables show information on the joint RIS AL S B ERZGEM
venture that is material to the Group. This joint venture is EZER - ZEBNERGE B RE
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using DIHESS EE AR o T 2241 BA 15 & R B 22 Y
the equity method. The summarised financial information HRYE A A 2 2 75 Uk B i 2 v R B 5
presented is based on the HKFRS financial statements of the o

joint venture.

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REBREZRE (M)
(CONTINUED)

LS SRS 2oy
s, BEAEE

% of ownership interests/voting rights

held by the Group 50%/50%

At 31 December: wW+_A=+—H:
Non-current assets B A E 704,771
Current assets it 3,046
Non-current liabilities JE L E A fE (16,885)
Current liabilities T A (458)
Net assets & E 690,474
Less: NCI W FEHE R RS (119,071)
Net assets attributable to the owners WA N L& E 571,403
Group’s share of carrying amount of AR AR T 23 A AR i R T

interests 285,394
Cash and cash equivalents included in AR E) B 2 A K&

current assets & EY 3,046

Current financial liabilities (excluding A AT E) & 652 B RS
trade and other payables and provisions) B (NOiEE 5 K H A
included in current liabilities JREAT R IE e 4 A )

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding #FA i 8 & &2 I i #
trade and other payables and provisions)  FH & & (NEFEE 5 K&
included in non-current liabilities A A SR IH KA )

180 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017



mmmmm NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e 3 P i

23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REBREEZRE (M)
(CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December: BETH=4—HILEE :

Revenue A -

Depreciation and amortisation Pres KAk g -

Interest income FLEA =

Interest expense FE B XL -

Income tax expense R -

Loss for the year A 1R (872)
Other comprehensive income A 2 T A A 78,793

Total comprehensive income A TH i A AR 77,921

Dividends received from joint venture ElaERERE =

ALK T BT R A IR A 7] 181
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23. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REBREZRE (M)
(CONTINUED)
The following table shows the Group’s share of the amounts N 2R G A A [ 53 ) A P AN R Al
of the immaterial joint venture that is accounted for using RS IEAIRZ At s JF -

the equity method.

At 31 December: BTHZA=4+—H:

Carrying amounts of interests HE 7 % 1T EL 1,529

Year ended 31 December: BET-A=1—HILEE

Loss for the year RSy o (349)

Other comprehensive income HoAth 4 Tk A 31

Total comprehensive income A TH U 55 AR EE (318)
At 31 December 2017, the bank and cash balances of the W oE—tHE+A=+—H KEHR
Group’s joint ventures in the PRC denominated in RMB ARG ZE AN R EHE 2 SR AT S B
amounted to RMB69,000 (2016: RMB39,000). Conversion SRR A N 69,0000 (ZF — /84
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s A RHE89,00070) o A% A R 5046 AL A
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration e (op e N SR [ AN A5 BHAGE 11 ) M
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange CHEME ~ B S AT BRI 2 ) BFR -
Regulations.
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24. INVESTMENTS IN FILM PRODUCTION 24, NEHHIEZRE

At 1 January m—H—H
Addition during the year LR INE) |
At 31 December wt—=H=+—H

Investments in film production are stated as cost. The
amount represents investments in co-production of films
in China. The investments are governed by the relevant
agreements whereby the Group is entitled to benefits
generated from the distribution of these films based on the
percentage of capital contributed in the film production

projects.

T R A 2 ORI ARSI IR © %R
TR RS WAEER L BE - ER
AR e B - PRI SE B A R R
RAFIH R B 2 GO 3 %5 B
AT E AR 2 4R

WFACK T R TR PR W 183
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 25. Wit BB EEE

Equity securities, at fair value AT S A TE
Listed in Hong Kong (note (i)) TEA BT (MEEEG)) 47,122
Market value of listed securities sz E 47,122
Equity securities, at fair value MEASTE 5 o He AN TEAE A
Unlisted outside Hong Kong (note (ii)) BEshE BT (BFEE Gi)) 110,707
157,829
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the AT TS DR S A R

following currencies:

110,707

HK$ T 47,122
157,829

Note: B EE -

(i)  The fair values of listed equity securities are based on current (i) BRSO P L R0
bid prices. L .

(ii)  The fair value of the unlisted equity securities was reference (ii) HE - T—bER E—NE+T A
to the valuation performed by Greater China Appraisal S —HIERE S TR AELEY
Limited and Brilliant Appraisal Limited, independent ISR T 5 25 P 7. B3 Al (R Bl 1 28 5T
professional qualified valuers, derived from estimations of A BR2S 1 T WA 4 A PR 2N 7 4T
the equity value by using market approach which makes ZAGAE o T Il T B AR
reference to market transactions for the years ended 31 M AME (AL > SR EHIERS -

December 2017 and 2016.
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26. INVENTORIES 26. 7%

Raw materials JR AR} 56,027
Work in progress TERL 22,346
Finished goods LT 77,063
155,436

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. B 5 Ko I fth HE Wk E

Trade and bills receivables JEM R 7 Bk B S R 546,626
Less: allowance for doubtful debts I SRR A (68,677)
477,949
Advances to staff TEAT B T8 2,557
Deposits ¥4 2,869
Due from associates JRE A B A2 ) R IE
(note 22 and 42(b)) (B 5E22 %2 42(b)) 64,195
Due from shareholders JRE VAT % PR 3 JE
(note 81 and 42(b)) (B 5E31 % 42(b)) 130
Loans and interest receivables JE Wi K R A S 1,000
Other receivables T Ath B Wi R B 45,216
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W SRR (29,736)
86,231
Advances to suppliers AL R RROA 6,238
Prepayments TEATRIE 8,425
Gross amount due from customers for JE R TRK P 3R0E
contract work (note 28) AU (Bt aE28) 2,649
581,492
AL R BB R A R A 185

TR LR



186

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is sometimes required. The credit period generally
ranges from 3 to 6 months, starting from the date on which
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of products
are transferred by the Group to customers or the date of
completion of services provided or the payment due date
as defined in the contracts, whichever is the latest. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise the credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforesaid and the fact that
the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration

of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based
on the date on which the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of products were transferred by the Group to
customers or the date of completion of services provided or

the payment due date as defined in the contracts, whichever

is the latest, is as follows:

0 to 90 days 0%290H

91 to 180 days 91%#180H
181 to 365 days 181%365 H
Over 365 days 365 H

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017

27. B 5 B Fo Aty FE Wk IR (4

WRIEAEE 2 B 50K > BT & 5 Ak
AT HO  AEBEEF KL EH IR
MRl o BRURH — M =2 NA A A
R A% 4 67 7 i A 2 T KBy 2 [
Wl =R E 2 B R AR 2 58 H
B K PTAE 2 AR B (DL AR 5
HREE) R - B E A RAEE
T o ARG BT e 42 ) AR 1 2 R i
WA > MBA fE BREHIE  BoRfE &
JE B 98 2 F M1 o v RS N B B E AR
A R o SRR bl A5 T - kA
A RE W B2 o B B R 2 AR R >
B L B Sl 0 8 2 S v o R AR 5 R K
WAFE -

FRE S 52 7 e I S R B i 23 A (AR AR 4
P 1 % RS I ik Y B R AT LB S
[e] S 30 T i A3 AR 5 2 A S A
P RE HD) ey

322,037
72,075
53,638
30,199

477,949
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, an allowance for estimated
irrecoverable trade and bills receivables was RMB81,045,000
(2016: RMB68,677,000), in which included an allowance
for estimated irrecoverable trade receivable from a related
company controlled by Peking University, a substantial
shareholder, of RMB41,000 (2016: RMB68,000).

Reconciliation of allowance for trade and bills receivables:

27.

At 1 January w—H—H
Allowance for the year AAE A
Reversal for the year A A B 5 (]
At 31 December wr=ZA=+—H

S8 5 e Gt W Witk 9K ()

WZF—tLEFZH=T—H - #fhsE
SR [a] 2 KR 5 R B SRR 2 T A
Ty N HES1,045,00000 (ZF—R4 © A
R #68,677,00070) » & HEFERAFIA
AL ] 2 R i o T I R I R T o
B Al 2 8 5 MRS N 41,000
JE(ZF—RE - ARH68,00000) °

TE SR oy MRk I B4 2 S AR T R A T

10,065
(1,375)

68,677

WFACK T R TR PR W 187
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. B 5y B Atk W Wk 0 (4

(CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2017, trade and bills receivables of W_E—-tH#+_H=+—H > AR
RMB405,315,000 (2016: RMB333,684,000) were past due 405,815,000 00 ( = F— /N 4F © AR H
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent 333,684,00070) Z MEIE 2 MR M R
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. L A 0 1 I R (> B2 4 NI T 3
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: KRB B L E F AR o 25 EWE S

MR Z IREE AT N T

Less than 3 months Dk s i H 178,547

3 to 6 months 3268 H 71,300
6 to 12 months 621211 H 53,638
Over one year 14ELL 30,199
333,684
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills W _E—-LHER T NFE+_H
receivables are all denominated in RMB as at 31 December =+ —H > AEEEIRE SR E
2017 and 2016. MR T R 4 8 AN R WA
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28. GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO 28. MEWMEAHHESE TR % Pk IEMA
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK ]

Contract costs incurred plus recognised CEATEEAMEST

profits less recognised losses to date FR%E A B fERR 1R 18,317
Less: Progress billings B AR (17,158)
1,159
Gross amounts due from customers for JEW R TRE ) #0E
contract work (note 27) HAAR (Bt aE27) 2,649
Gross amount due to customers for PSR TR EAT & 7 30E
construction work (note 30) HEH (B 5E30) (1,490)
1,159
In respect of construction contracts in progress at the end A i B AR TR il A = RE A AT
of the reporting period, retentions receivable included in oA BIKESERZHEEESEE AN
trade receivables is RMB3,188,000 (2016: RMB4,144,000). [ 53,188,000 70 ( —F—N4F « AR
The amount of retentions expected to be recovered 4,144,00070) ° THHA A M AR 1240 A £ Ik
after more than twelve months is RMB878,000 (2016: | B 4 A N R #878,000 00 (&
RMB992,000). —NAE - ARH992,0000T) ©
Advances received in respect of construction contracts W oFE—-bEF+ A=t —HEES
amounted to RMB2,003,000 at 31 December 2017 (2016: H)EGEK B N R 2,008,000 7C (& — 5
RMB5,169,000) and is included in trade and other payables. 0 ANR%5,169,00070) » 7#FAE 5 K&

LAl B A BRI o

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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29. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 29. EX ABE R EZED
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances Bl S ARAT AT 3K 509,341
Time deposits T MK 1,234
510,575
Less: Time deposits with original maturity & : 3] H @i = H 2
of more than three months when FE AR — R T A
acquired — Non-pledged (1,234)
Cash and cash equivalents W4 R 428 Y 509,341
The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and cash REBMZ LU RS RESZEY
and cash equivalents are denominated in the following BE(E T LA R & & st (i
currencies:

399,881

HK$ It 70,248
USD B 2,478
CAD e 37,968
510,575
190 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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29. DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 29. fEak R BlE Bl &5 EHY (4)
EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily SRAT B MRAE B RAT A7 3K R IRV Bk
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for a term of R o 7 BAAE 3R 2 A2 T00AE 3 5 S A H
six months (2016: six months) and at fixed interest rates of (ZF—N4E  ANAA) » WiRFEE .5
0.5% (2016: 0.5%) per annum and are therefore subject to JE (T —NAF 1 0.5)F) [ 2 B RFHE
foreign currency risk and fair value interest rate risk. SO ZE R 2 A1 W TR T (LM R B
No bank balances is secured to a bank for a bank ME A SRAT 45 68 O AR T84T > DAERAS R
loan granted to the Group as set out in note 32 to the TALZ BATER > 7HIE NSRS i
consolidated financial statements. B R M 32 -

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. S 5 B JLAth HE A 5k JH

Trade payables AT 2 Wk 263,175
Gross amount due to customers for A TR & 7 #E

construction work (note 28) AU (Bt aE28) 1,490
Accruals and other payables JRE w2 % A e Ao R IH 89,146
Salaries and staff welfare payables JEA 7 4 B B AR A 45,894

Due to associates (note 22 and 42(b)) JRE A B 5 W) FRIE
(i #E22 %42 (b)) =

Due to a shareholder (note 31 and 42(b)) JEAT— % B A K IE
(B k31 %42 (b)) 848

Due to related parties (note 31 and 42(b)) JEAf B A+ 3K H
(B k31 %42 (b)) 3,464
Advance from customers TR AR 37,013
441,030

T BB LR A A T 191
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. B 5 Ko I At £ 3k (4)
(CONTINUED)
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date HR 75 1AL 8 1 A1 0 e 4 A E 2 R B B
on which the significant risks and rewards of ownership of o] S T AR [ 2 H W 2 AT 5
materials were transferred by the suppliers to the Group, is WEFRE /- pran
as follows:

0 to 90 days 0290 H 219,734

91 to 180 days 91£180H 33,025
181 to 365 days 181% 365 H 856
Over 365 days 365 H 9,560
263,175
31. DUE FROM/(TO) SHAREHOLDERS/ 31. WEWC(HF) ek Bi g A L3k JH
RELATED PARTIES
The amounts due from/ (to) shareholders/related parties JRE,” (f5F) B SR T B N\ kT T S 41K
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment W A S A S R o
terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32. BANK LOANS 32. SRITHEX

Bank loans SRATE N
— Secured — E K 121,356
— Unsecured — IR 45,000
166,356
The bank loans are repayable as follows (note): AT R AREBWMT (G -

Within one year A4 A fE 166,356
Portion of bank loans that are due for PRI TE — AR (B R A 4%

repayment after one year but contain BRI

a repayment on demand clause SRAT BB A

(shown under current liabilities) (RRB AT -

166,356
Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment it E%?ﬁ%ﬁgﬁ_nﬁﬁ@ﬁ%\b%%ﬁﬂZﬁ
dates set out in the respective loan agreements. WIERHERA -
ALK T BT R A IR A 7] 193
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

32. BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans are
denominated in RMB except for RMB5,850,000 (2016:
RMB6,361,000) which is denominated in USD.

The Group’s bank loans of RMB205,850,000 (2016:
RMB121,361,000) carry fixed interest rate ranging from
4.35% to 5.50% (2016: 4.35% to 5.50%) per annum
and expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
The Group’s bank loans of RMB15,000,000 (2016:
RMB44,995,000) carry floating interest rates at 5.66% (2016:
5.46% to 5.94%) per annum, thus exposing the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2017, the secured bank loans were
secured by (i) the pledge of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment; (ii) the corporate guarantees given by the

Company and a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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2. SRATHK (A7)

B DL 2T FHE 2 30E AN R 5,850,000 70
(T F—7N4F 0 ANR%6,361,00050) 7 >
AEE T 2 SRAT B IR (E DL R T
{E °

AL 2 SR AT BN R 205,850,000 7
(ZF—784F + AR$121,861,000 0C)
Fi A F4.85JH 25,508 (ZF—N4F - 4
T-4.35J8 25 508 ) 2 [ 2 F A FEE
B AR BRI A R R o AR
[ 2 RAT RN R ¥515,000,00000 (%
—NAE 0 AR H44,995,0007T) $%5.66 5
(& —7N4E 1 546 £5.94)8) 2 ¥ 1)
EFIEFEE - B A B R A7 B A T
=7

WoFE—LETH=T—H > GiKM
SATRRE DL S HEER - () AEEZ
W ~ BE BGRATEAR 5 G AR R R
— W BB 2 F) 2 IF i R RE 25 B2 o 1) 4R 2
HfR -
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33. DEFERRED TAX 33. ERERIH
The following are the deferred tax (assets) and liabilities DA /A 55 [ ) f 52 O 4R SE B JE (& )
recognised by the Group. LAt -

At1 January 2016 BoE—RE—f - (9,539) (302) 9,697 (234)
Acquisition of subsidiaries eI B A 7l - = 8,632 8,632
Credit to profit or loss for AEAASE R B R

the year (note 12) (HiE12) (1,341) = = (1,341)
Credit to other comprehensive — §F AF A2 4

income - - (16,713) (16,713)

At 31 December 2016 and RoE-AE+TA

1 January 2017 St-HR-F—4%
—~A—H
Credit to profit or loss for FTAREE G A SR
the year (note 12) (Mfzk12)
Charge to other comprehensive it oAl 2: il 41Fk
income
At 81 December 2017 REF—LE+ZA
=1—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

33. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

(after offset) for statement of financial position purpose:

Deferred tax liabilities PEAERIH A F
Deferred tax assets S ol VEUE

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB176,917,000 (2016: RMB169,096,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of total RMB165,110,000 (2016: RMB162,191,000)
that will expire within 2022 (2016: 2021). Other tax losses

may be carried forward indefinitely.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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33. EHLBIIHE(H)

L B R L R 2 A A T 4 i (R AR
ST

1,616
(11,272)

(9,656)

ARG AR > AR [ i R B 2 BB
R A N 176,917,000 70 (- FE—X
£ AR 169,096,000 58) - Al 1E
HE 65 R A U I o Bl A A B TE IR A
I > WM A T R AT o] I AE B TE K
FE o mh A K HERE LTS s 48 A MR N IR
#165,110,00070 ( —F — N4« AR
162,191,00070) » HA§h —F =~ 4 (
T NAE L DR TR 2N EN o HiA
ot T s 45 7T RE A KR 45



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A

Registered, issued and BEtft - EET AR

fully paid:
Shares of RMB0.10 (e A R0, 10702 it

(2016: RMB0.10) each (ZF—AF  ARH0.107)
At 1 January 2016 RoZ—AE—-H—H 700,000 484,800 1,184,800 70,000 48480 118,480
Issue of shares B = 96,960 96,960 - 9,696 9,696

At 31 December 2016and  H=FE—AEFZA=+—HE
1 January 2017 “F—tfE-A—H
Issue of shares B RG

At 31 December 2017 RoE—tHE+"H=1+—H

On 11 January 2017, the Group entered into a placing W E—LHFE—H+—H » AREHHE—
agreement with a placing agent to place up to 96,960,000 e AR oL — AR ek o AR
new H shares at placing price of HK$1.43 (equivalent to B EE M43 7T (R A AR H1.28
approximately RMBI1.28) per share. The transactions have JC) fit B 5 £ 96,960,000 BCHT HK » 32 5
been completed on 6 February 2017 and the premium of B T — AR T H S H 5 R B 1 B
the issue of shares amounted to RMB112,553,000, net of AT E E N H112,553,0007T (155 8
share issue expense of RMB598,000, was credited to the 12 N R ¥598,0007C) - I AR/ )
Company’s share premium account. Z B A v AE MR o

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to A AE H] 2 G A BEE AR R AN 4 8] RE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern PR A - DL R i AL RS S HE AR
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the Ll A1) 25 % B Al B A | S o

optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

WFACK T R TR PR W 197
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S 5 e 35 P e

34. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new
shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing

debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total equity. Net debt is calculated as total debts less cash
and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises all components
of equity (i.e. share capital, share premium, non-controlling

interests, retained profits and other reserves).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from the year ended 31
December 2016, was to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio
at the lower end of the range 0.1 to 0.3, in order to secure

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents amounted
to RMB658,235,000 (2016: RMB509,341,000), which exceed
total debt of RMB220,850,000 (2016: RMB166,356,000).
Accordingly, there was no net debt at 31 December 2017
and 2016 and calculation of debt-to-equity ratio at 31
December 2017 and 2016 is not meaningful.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Company to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.
The Company receives a report from the share registrars
monthly on substantial share interests showing the non-
public float and it demonstrates continuing compliance
with the 25% limit throughout the year. As at 31 December
2017, 49% (2016: 45%) of the total promoters and H shares

were in public hands.
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34. JRA(#H)

A B 1 B B REE BAR SR o A
VA LA A IO 0 AR R AR D
Bl SR B 2 BB T LA o By
HERF oG B ARG AR B B
Je B S AT R BRATORTRG » IR
AR LK Il BUA (RS B B A
AR 5 o

A T LB R RE A L SRR M AR o
A B LU R IR A AR AR AR O o
RS 1 R DA A R D B 4 B B 5
YIS o RERE SR 61 & I A HE 2 ¥R 4 (R
JEeA ~ ety - R AROHE AR - fR B R
F R HAM Aok A) o

PEEE—LFETZH Z—H IR
o AEBBENARE X —NF
TZAZT—HIRFEEZ R > B
TR BB LR 0.1 E0.35 B N 2 %
AT > TR LA BESCARHEBURVE -

WoZF—tEFZA=+—H BHEeX
B4 B B N R 658,235,000 0 (—
T—NF  ANRH509,341,00000) >
R 220,850,000 78 ( & — /N4 ¢
AR 166,356,000 70 ) Z E B HEHH - K
M R F—LFER FE-ANET A
S — B SRS AT A WA
F—LERF—RNETZHA=T—H
2 B HE RS R 3 o

AN TR 1 HERE T B AT BT B T 2 T AT
M ME — B3 AMECIE I B A LS - R AR
IS RFECE AN D IR e 2 25% o AR T
g 7B Ay PO R IS A IR A R
Rl E R TR O ERRY B
BURA LRI EN —EMFG25%Z TR
HE - —F—tHF+_A=+—H>
2R A KHK 2 49% (—F—7K
i 45%) BA BRI -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a)

35. A HZ MBI DL % K Gk i 5 B)
Ay T 2 A R 2

Non-current assets R A E
Property, plant and equipment LESN =& 7,771
Investments in subsidiaries, net of TR E S A 2 BE
accumulated impairment losses OBk 2 s E R 176,534
Investments in film production REERMEZRE -
Available-for-sales financial assets AL S -
Investments in associates hEE AT Z B E 415,150
Deposits paid for potential HLTERAE B8 SO 2 e
investment 400
599,855
Current assets B A A
Inventories e 185
Due from shareholders JRE T e R 130
Due from subsidiaries JRE ke Y g 2 ) K IE 194,854
Due from associates JRE B 2 ) R IE 3,640
Due from a related company JRE Mie— 5% B W > ) T 27
Prepayments, deposits and other TAAT A ~ s K
receivables At 1 i TE 8,695
Time deposit with original maturity | H & = {# H 2~
of more than three months E WK
when acquired 1,234
Cash and cash equivalents 4 M 4S5 EY 64,964
273,729
Current liabilities i By £ 5
Trade and other payables EE&E@WEH KIH 14,075
Due to a shareholder TEAT— 44 BB K 824
Due to related parties JREAST Eﬁﬁ)\ﬂ:%ﬁlﬁ 3,464
Due to subsidiaries JREAST B} JB 2 ) 3 118,719
137,082
NET ASSETS & A 736,502
Share capital e 128,176
Reserves (note 35 (b)) fitt#5 (B 535 (b)) 608,326
TOTAL EQUITY AR 45 736,502
Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2018 B — E=H - HEFEHEE
and are signed on its behalf by: HHER BN AN S AEE
NI JINLEI ZHANG WANZHONG
o & %% REH
Director Director
EFH EFH

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35. AA R ZMBIRNE R L2 H)

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (#)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AAWZEMHES)

At 1 January 2016 REE—NF—A—A 377,720 76,766 57,028 511,514
Issue of shares BEATR A 72,246 - - 72,246
Total comprehensive income AR AT A A

for the year - - 24,566 24,566
At 31 December 2016 and REF—AE+ZA

1 January 2017 =t —HRZF L4

—H—H

Issue of shares BT AR
Total comprehensive income ACHE JE 2 T LA AR A

for the year

At 31 December 2017 REZ—LF+ A
=+—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36. RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the

movements therein are presented in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income and consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Capit
The

Grou

al reserve
capital reserve of the Company and the

p represents the aggregate of:

share premium totalled RMB559,438,000

arising from issue of new shares;

the waiver of an amount of RMB1,654,000
recorded as part of issuance expenses
for the listing of the Company’s H shares
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange in
July 2000 (the “Listing”) payable to
an unrelated party who had provided
services to the Company during the
Listing pursuant to prevailing accounting

principles and regulations in the PRC; and

the net gain of RMB1,427,000 resulting
from debt restructuring of Beida Jade Bird
Universal Fire Alarm Device Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
transferred in accordance with prevailing
accounting principles and regulations in
the PRC.

36. fkfh

(a) AHEH
AL 7 G R R L B N
A TR R 28 3% I 4R S ME 25 B 3R 2

5 -

(b) R TEE RS

(1)

B
Ay E) B A R i A A
FAISTHZ B

- BiTWEAMEAR
559,438,000 JC 2 HX
Ui fE

- RBHEBATZ GEHHE
A B K WA A
AHBR —FERFEL
A 1€ B 28 it GEM _E 1T
(I 77 1) Rk i A A ]
FRHEIR TS 2 I B 7 e
£ AN B ¥ 1,654,000 76
AT 5 K&

—  AREREBTZ gt
B B i 1 s 4 A 8 )
MWE A AR E BRFE
TH B s 4 A PR )
% A R 2 Il R
NRH1,427,0000C »

WFACK T R TR PR W
TR LR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VA 255 e < i

36. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Reserve funds

Reserve funds comprise statutory surplus
reserve and discretionary surplus reserve. In
accordance with the laws and regulations in the
PRC and articles of association of the Company
and its subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC
(collectively referred to the “PRC entities”), the
PRC entities are required to appropriate 10% of
their profit after tax, after offsetting any prior
years’ losses, to the statutory surplus reserve.
When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
reaches 50% of the PRC entities’ registered
share capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory surplus reserve can be
used to offset prior years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by issuing
new shares to shareholders in proportion to
their existing shareholding or by increasing the
par value of the shares currently held by them,
provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory surplus reserve after such issue is not
less than 25% of share capital. The PRC entities
may transfer an amount from their profit after
tax to the discretionary surplus reserve approved
by the shareholders. The discretionary surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses of the PRC entities and to distribute to

shareholders in the form of bonus issue.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 4(e) to the financial

statements.
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(b)

{1 B D 9 ()

(if)

(iii)

fi i 22

T Mt 3 & AL 0 E AR AR
BREBBBARES - WE
Hh B R A B R R DL AR A T
T v B S A S 2 B B
oy E] (RAR RS T A )
ZABRFERRAA > R
e H Bl A% T A (A 89 AT AT
DUEAE BE R 14%) > $2E10%
VR E B R - w2k E B
% fith A 2 3] v [T B G T
AB50%IRF » AT o] — 25 4 B
Fo I LB o VR E R R AR TT
JHO HE 8 DL FE 4F B s 48 (2
) o R AT A e B R R R
JI& LU 51 1] e R A7 5 A
e 3 o e R T AT R 2
T (L 0 e A > ME A B S
AT 4% 15 7€ B0 T Al BR A AN 15
DI IEAR Z 25% o o B E B
AR B 4 A B BLAR T A
8 2 SRR e 2 AT B B R
5 o AT 3 2L BR i i vT AR
G 68 v [ BT B 0 A A
B I DUAT By =X 1) R R
B o

FEE 52 15

T 2. {1 £ 415 REE 58,965 S0 26 75
TS i % I A 1) T A REE B 26
B o GH Ak i S R B T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 36. fii i (%)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b)  fali il PR B ) 3% (48
(iv) Investment revaluation reserve (iv) REEHH
The investment revaluation reserve comprises BB A kA6 55 R i

RFFA Z vl it i B B 5
NVERFHEBFE - UK
AR B R R B 54 (n) (i) BT

the cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets held at the

end of the reporting period and is dealt with in

accordance with the accounting policy in note W2 GFrEOR R -
4(n) (il) to the financial statements.
(v)  Other reserve (v) HAbf#H
The other reserve of the Group represents the A SR [ HC AR A 4R T 81 2 4R
aggregate of: B

The equity-settled share-based payments of
RMB10,969,000 recognised upon transfer
of equity interests in a subsidiary of the
Company from certain of its original

shareholders to a director and certain

DLRE 2R &5 B 2
R RN N
10,969,000 J© - £ #
FoF -4+ H
=+—HILEERALN

employees of the Group during the year ) BB 2w HE A e L
ended 31 December 2012. T VBB R e 2 A A
— A E R R TR H

The difference of RMB1,583,000 arose

from the decrease in non-controlling

N B %1,583,000 G Z
ZEEA > )T UR A JE

interest of RMB4,617,000 (being the HE 45 A\ R 4,617,000
proportionate share of the carrying 7t (Bl PWC Winery,
amount of the net assets of PWC Winery, LLCTF & FE R H 2~
LLC) and RMB3,034,000 (equivalent to FO A5 453 ) BB N R

approximately USD475,000), which arose
on the acquisition of additional 25% equity
interests in PWC Winery, LLC during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

3,034,000 7t (A1 & it
#1475,000 % o0 ) Z #
B HnBE %=
E+-A=+—H1
AF B — 25 I B PWC
Winery, LLC 25%HE i
RFEEAE ©

- The reserve includes RMB3,743,000 is the AR R R L e e
safety production fund, which is for future 4 AR ¥ 3,743,000

enhancement of safety environment and

improvement of facilities.

TG R R 2
BRI e B0 it

WFACK T R TR PR W

TR LR
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36. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 36. fififhi (4)
(c) Profit appropriations (c) A4 HL
Under the PRC Company Law and the PRC entities’ AR P R 2 3 B B AR
articles of association, the net profit after tax as EREANA > e M o g R A SR
reported in the PRC statutory financial statements, {5t S8 2 v B E A 3R T 2R
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting PRBUE AR > (ERTFEHE 51 & A LE
principles and regulations, can only be distributed H A 1R A A R AU
as dividends after allowance has been made for the
following:
(i) Make-up of prior years’ cumulative losses, if any. (i) TS AR E 2 2ETEE (W
A) e
(ii)) Allocations to the reserve funds as stated in (ii) HEE £ 3C(b) (i) BT K i 5 3
(b) (ii) above. £
37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. B BlE R R
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities A Y B A 2 B IR
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities T R W A S A S B E R
arising from financing activities, including both cash B 8E > GBS IR aE) -
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing REIE B E A 2 A A HRAEH SR E
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future L B AR A B 4 I o 9 A A A [ 5 B B
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated GERSEEMEEE 2B eREE -

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

At 1 January 2017 H_FE—LHF—H—H

Interest expense AR
Non-cash movements F BB
Cash flow Hahie
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tHF+ZA
=T
204 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited

Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S B e e B

38.

39.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group issued guarantees to
several banks in respect of banking facilities granted to two

associates.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Group under the guarantee. The maximum liability of
the Group at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantee issued is the facility granted by book amounted
at RMB503,000,000 (2016: RMB200,000,000). At the end
of reporting period, facility drawn down by the associates
amounted RMB403,000,000 (2016: RMB200,000,000). The
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the financial guarantee as its fair value was considered

insignificant.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2011, a subsidiary of the Company received an
assessment demanding final tax for the year of assessment
2004/2005 from the IRD. The amount of this assessment
was approximately HK$47,852,000 (equivalent to
RMB39,999,000) in which approximately HK$47,748,000
(equivalent to RMB39,913,000) relating to a claim for gain
on disposal of long term investment recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2004. On 25 February 2013,
the IRD issued a notice to the subsidiary informing that
the case has been forwarded to the Appeals Section of the
IRD for further processing. The outcome of the tax claim
cannot be readily ascertained up to the date of this report.
Should the assessment regarding the claim for the gain be
finally judged against the subsidiary, current tax liabilities
and corresponding income tax expense of HK$47,748,000
(equivalent to RMB39,913,000) will be recognised.

38.

39.

S 85 1 IR
RE_F—LHE+_A=+—H A%£H
LT [ B M R SRAT L e T
HATERIMAER -

R IR > 3 AR RR Ay A B ] R
AEARPEIE PR VE ST R o R R
AEE RO BETIER T Z AR ERR AR
T 2 BE AN R 503,000,000 7T (—
T—NAE 0 AR %200,000,00070) o it
WAEWIR > BrE AR g A AR
#403,000,000 70 ( —F— R4« ARH
200,000,000 7C ) o 7 £ 5] 3lf7 408 5 o 5 4%
PR FRAT AT AR FE A > R 2 LA P {E B
BLE TR 38 -

DR =R

W oFE——AF > KA —RKWE A A
W B RN —FZFN S RF R
FE B B SN B SO N o BERLIN 4
A K 47,852,000 76 (FH & 7 N R
39,999,0007T) > FHH1%747,748,0005 70
(AHE i N R #539,918,00000) S & —
FENAE+FZH =+ —H IEFEE R
MHERHREZ W2 WRAR - i’
CE AT HA S BRI
Bt 2 m) B A A > BN B R TR
TR R ERRAEE— R o A
A H W o R RETE S SR R A
o A B HY R R 0 SR o A% )
M JE A F R F > s TERR 47,748,000 %5
It (R A AN R #39,913,00000) 2 B
ot T A B B P A3 B B S

ALK T BT R A IR A 7]
TR LR

205



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. HEARKE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the ARAE B HCE M &5 B 2 & AR IE
reporting period are as follows: I

Contracted but not provided for EHT A MRS
Property, plant and equipment LE RN NS 20,207
Unpaid balance of capital contribution to M AR R A EAAE
associates and joint ventures 2 RAT H iR 156,579
41. LEASE COMMITMENTS 41. HME®RYE

At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease WoF—LHFEFT A =1+—H  BERN
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are AT AR A A R R AR AT 2 R R
payable as follows: TR T -

—HFN

Within one year

In the second to fifth years inclusive B EH A
(BL1E E R M4F) 3,542
9,109
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the A8 T B A AR AR A A [ o T
Group for certain of its offices and operating premises. AW EREAT 2 M o AT AR 2y
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to five —BRHF(CE-NE D B ) >
(2016: one to three) years and rentals are fixed over the HEMRNZMHET5EE » HAAEEER
lease terms and do not include contingent rentals. 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to those related party transactions

42. ERBEEALZS

and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions

with its related parties during the year:

Sales of electronic fire alarm systems
and related products to a related
company controlled by Peking

University

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment from a non-controlling

interest of a subsidiary

Management fee income from

associates

Rental expenses for office buildings
charged by
— a shareholder of the Company
—a non-controlling interest of
a subsidiary

Rental income from an associate

Car rental expense charged by
an associate

Loan interest expense paid to
a non-controlling interest of

a subsidiary

DE-PN ZciPd

— [ B 2 R
CRRGILE S E 3
IR 2 i

1) — [T B Jag 2 W) 2 T 4 M
RS R 2 S K
B

A BE A
HHERA

VAT & 07 R 2 e =
M A

— AR —ZBOR
—— @A R Z
FE R

oA H — R A R
& A

— [ A FI Rz
TREAH BB

ST — I B~ Rl 2

T e FBO b A 2 B
FLR B S

The directors are of the opinion that the above

transactions with related parties were conducted in the

usual course of business.

(a)

I BB ik 9 At 8 43 e 2 R% 55 A
BN 2L 5 AR > AREBIRA
AF g BB N AT AR R
R

70

29

3,883

2,464

966

3,430

109

212

407

R LAk BB\ 2 525 T
T — BB R R AT
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. ERABBALZS (H)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Included in the consolidated statement of financial (b) 4B MBHRIE LT B A+
position are the following balances with related ZHER
parties:

(c)

Due from associates

Due from shareholders JRE i e R 130
Due from a related company JRE e — 5% el b R B 4
controlled by Peking University B A EERIE > FEA
included in other receivables A 1 Wi 27
Trade payables to a related company M4 — 5 s b 50 KB FE il
controlled by Peking University Z B R B IR 16
Due to associates JE AT B | 3O -
Due to a shareholder JREAsh— 42 B SR IH 848
Due to non-controlling interests of  JEAT & w2 I He AL
subsidiaries included in W25 3KCH > FHA A
other payables AT BIH 18,250
Due to related companies controlled JEASH Eh b R B 2
by Peking University R 2\ A 3,464
Compensation of key management personnel of the (c) /R B4 A B4
Group:

Short term employee benefits J 31 g B AR
Post-employment benefits Rt A A 642
10,798
Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ o B 4 2 o — 2 RS A

emoluments are included in note 15 to the consolidated LI AR R M S o
financial statements.

Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2017 are as follows:

43. EEME A ¥
MR_-FE—tFE+_HA=+—H > ARF
TS AREEWT

Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech (Cayman) Cayman Islands/ 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding

Development Company Limited the PRC USD1 each

ERERRTH (H2) BRARLT WERE /T 10,000 AR {81 % 7E 2 frdceed i
Lk
Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Hebei, the PRC 180,000,000 ordinary 51% - Technology research,

Company Limited (“Jade Bird Fire Alarm”) shares of RMBI each development, manufacture
and sale of fire alarm system
products

XE BRTHURMRAGERAT (FRHEE)  FEIL 180,000,000 B T A B R L LT ~
Rz LER ®EERME
Beijing Jade Bird Universal Fire System Software Beijing, the PRC RMB1,000,000 = 51%  Technology research,

Service Co., Ltd. (“Fire Software”) development, sale of
software of fire alarm system
products

TR E BRTHIR SRR AR L ARH#1,000,0007 B R A AR - P
([ D)) B EERRE
Chuangi Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. Hunan, the PRC RMB100,000,000 60% - Exploration and development

(“Chuanqi Tourism”) of travel and leisure business
A A RAR ( [ERE] ) G ABH100,000,0007C Tl SR A5 2 8¢ BBt e
Beijing Hengsheng Investment Management Beijing, the PRC RMB2,000,000 55% - Provision of investment

Company Limited management and advisory

services
LRt EE AR AR HEALR ABH92,000,0007 B A T
Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment Ningbo, the PRC RMB60,000,000 = 70%  Investment holding
Co., Ltd
FHRARBAARLA S RH60,000,000 ¢ el
Si Chuan Jiu Yuan Intelligent Surveillance Sichuan, the PRC RMBS,000,000 - 38%"  Design, manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan Jiuyuan”) of fire alarm system, security
and fire equipment products
WIS EREARRIEAT (TWIAR] ) pEM ARH8,000,00070 HHRS - RERKERER N
2t RERHE
PWC Winery, LLC The State of Virginia, Members’ contributed - 70%  Production and sales of wine
the United States capital of and related products
USD4,200,000
PWC Winery, LLC FEE M BRI #4,200,0005 7 TR A B P R
Maple Armor Fire Solution Canada Inc. Canada CAD12,000,350 - 47%"  Design, manufacture and sale
(“Maple Armor Fire”) of fire alarm system, security
and fire equipment products
Maple Armor Fire Solution Canada Inc. IEIN 12,000,350/ ¢ RS - RERKERBE R
( 'Maple Armor Fire| ) 2k RERSE
* Sichuan Jiuyuan and Maple Armor Fire are accounted for as a i P9Il A %s K Maple Armor Fire K4 £ 5]

34 2 2 W R I A1 7 B I 2 R MR

subsidiary by virtue of the Group’s control over it.

WFACK T R TR PR W 209
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43, FEME A (4H)
The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which EREIIGEALNE R - BEHA
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the i 3 A 3 B 2 B S N R AR
Group.
The following table shows information on the subsidiaries RN A G A ORI R 2
that have NCI material to the Group. The summarised Z WA o BAHS ERHAE B A 2N | TR
financial information represents amounts before inter- TESH TR 458 -

company eliminations.

% of ownership interests/  FEHERHE £ i F5 2
voting rights held ARG
by NCI BRI

49%/49% 62%/62%

At 31 December: ®+=H=+—H:
Non-current assets JE G 307,211 27,044
Current assets T 819,873 190,715
Current liabilities B & i (367,908) (149,729)
Net assets R 759,176 68,030
Accumulated NCI 2t R 4 371,844 41,998
Year ended 31 December: ®ZE+ _-H=1—H
IR -

Revenue s 963,588 242 538
Profit 15 337,159 20,278
Total comprehensive 2T W 5 AR

income 337,159 20,278
Profit allocated to NCI BT IR £

i 1 165,141 12,519

Dividends paid to NCI GANERELIG 2P d 95 29,388 -
Net cash generated from/ EEE /(IR &8

(used in) operating H8 2 BEHH

activities 281,436 9,604
Net cash used in investing  Ji &5 8) 2 3 4

activities FH (124,755) (527)
Net cash generated from/ &4 B/ (FIIR) M &

(used in) financing GE 2 B e THE

activities (64,495) 17,380
Net increase/ (decrease) in B4 LB A% EY

cash and cash equivalents 3411,/ (36 {58 92,186 26,457

210 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
Annual Report 2017
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43. FERE AV ()

% of ownership interests/ 3 B 45 Fir £ 2.
voting rights held WA

by NCI BEWER 49%/49% 40%/40%

At 31 December: ®+=H=+—H:
Non-current assets FmB G E 217,135
Current assets g 156,123
Current liabilities B AR (84,517)
Net assets B 288,741
Accumulated NCI EEiEEayigiEn 115,496
Year ended 31 December: ®ZE+ _-H=1—H
T4

Revenue 45 129,201
Profit i I 40,873
Total comprehensive ek k|

income 40,873
Profit allocated to NCI DT IR

1 1 16,349

Dividends paid to NCI BRI R A 2 RS —
Net cash generated from EEAEETEEZ

operating activities iRt 64,595
Net cash used in investing  Ji IS B E 5 8) 2 3 4

activities T (3,298)
Net cash used in financing Ji il &5 8) 2 B4

activities i) (78,605)
Net (decrease)/increase B4 M &% 8

in cash and cash (WD) /s i a

equivalents (17,308)

JERAEK T E B R A AR 911

TR LR
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 43, FEME AV ()

T A2 IR 25 BT 45 2 AT HE
s, R

% of ownership interests/voting rights
held by NCI

53%/53%

At 31 December: B+=H=+—H:
Non-current assets T it By 34,763
Current assets T 57,679
Current liabilities AR (10,099)
Non-current liabilities T it B A (33,926)
Net assets HEFE 48,417
Accumulated NCI Bt I 1R ROhE i 25,621
Year ended 31 December: EKET-HA=Z4+—HIk

AR
Revenue i i -
Loss 518 (5,068)
Total comprehensive income AT R A AR A (5,068)
Loss allocated to NCI o3 BE 2 P R4 2 s 1 (2,682)
Dividends paid to NCI SEREIEEYS Erbdiids) -
Net cash used in operating activities FHTA RE81 B 2 B 8 1 (7,324)
Net cash used in investing activities PR B GG By 2 Bl 1 (20,721)
Net cash generated from financing activities A= B fil & 15 8 2 345 1550 61,454
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 34 S 31 4 % (B 38 548 33,409

212 Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited
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